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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZE-N\f —+F 3 “E-RfF —mE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FE% FAT FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&31) (&5) (&351) (7))
Results (for the year ended 30 June) ¥& (BZAA=THILEE)
— Revenue 74&% 142,754 194,544 4,979,715 5,610,013 6,159,471
— Adjusted (loss)/profit* B)/&H (LR (244,348) (60,580) 1,600,951 269,095 507,836
— Attributable (loss)/profit M (Eﬁév gl (3,811,905)  (4,188,139) (30,434) 14,117 28,294
— Dividends -KE - - - - 12,564
— (Loss)/earnings per share -5k (&8B)/BF (9.29) (13.23)2 (0.096)° 0.045° 0.090%
{in HK dollars) (LB TTat)
Financial Position (as at 30 June)  BI#&MR (RAA=1R)
— Cash and cash equivalents* -RekReFE 112,534 121,971 131,426 235,451 78,319
— Total assets -BE#RE 552,770 4516973 9,304,180 9,466,273 9,402,237
— Equity* — 48,234 3,565,065 7753,217 7777687 7511,336
Financial Ratios (as at 30 June) BEEE(RKXA=1H)
— Current assets/Current liabilites ~ —RBEE/FEHEE 2.37 15.07 31,58 13.62 1793
— Assets/Equity* —BE/ R 11.46 127 1.20 122 125
— Sales/Assets L VE - 0.258 0.04 0.54 0.59 0.66
— Gearing ratio —ERERLE 7.05 0.06 0.03 0.03 0.03
e Excluding impairment * Ret AR E
= Excluding overdrafts * T@%%S‘Z
# Attributable to owners of the Company L N A= AL
A Adjusted pursuant to the share consolidation in = Bz Z—+FTARMDAEMTIEL 2 AE

October 2017
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

R=—Z— \Fh B =+-tH ASAT 27 SEPTEMBER 2018
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
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Hong Kong
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STOCK CODE
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INFORMATION AND ENQUIRIES
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CHAIRPERSON'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Champion Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”)
and the management of the Group, | would like to present
the 2018 annual report of the Group.

2018 has been a pivotal year for the Group and the global
economy. Despite the clouds over many industries that
arose from the enormous uncertainties of Sino-US trade
friction, | am still delighted to report to all the shareholders
that, due to the tireless efforts of the Group’s management
team, the Group's business has made noticeable progress
on a number of fronts, including the opening up of the
petroleum products trading business; the promotion of
smart communication solutions to various sectors from
which positive response has been received; and the
launching of the solar power renewable energy system
which will soon be connected to the power grid in Kowloon
and New Territories, resulting in the Group's eligibility to
secure on-grid electricity revenue. Moreover, uncertainties
arising from the cultural products inventories and the
available-for-sale investments acquired during years 2000 to
2003 have been removed.

2018 is a year to retire the old and launch the new. Thanks
to the efforts of all staff, the Group is able to shed the
burden of its outmoded mindset and has successfully
developed our business with promising prospects.

| would like to list out the achievements of the Company's
management team in greater detail in the following
paragraphs.

Qualified Audit Opinions

Through our continuous effort with our auditors, we
completed a special audit on the assets and liabilities as at
31 December 2017, the report for which was published on
30 April 2018. This special audit report confirms the removal
of all the uncertainties which had led to the qualified audit
opinion regarding our inventories of the cultural products
and available-for-sale investments in our 2017 annual
report. Since the opening balances brought forward from
1 July 2017 remain unchanged, the auditors are obligated
to partially retain their qualified opinion in their 2018
report in strict compliance with Hong Kong Standard on
Auditing which perhaps could be more easily understood by
accounting professionals. Such qualified opinion is expected
to be fully removed in the year 2019.
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CHAIRPERSON'S STATEMENT

Based on the experience gained in 2017 after due
consultation with the auditors, a professional party was
engaged to conduct scientific authentication work on
360 pieces of cultural products in order to scientifically
determine beyond any doubt the nature and substance of
the cultural products.

Development of the Trading Segment

In view of escalating trade friction between the United
States and China in recent months, costs of material and
goods imported by manufacturers in China are bound to
increase. In formulating our business strategies to meet
such challenges, | am pleased to report that, after months
of hard work through our new business network, we have
successfully embarked onto the business of gasoil trading.

Expansion of our Technology Business

With the joint efforts of the management of Multitone
Electronics PLC, our U.K. subsidiary and our Multitone
Asia team, we have successfully established a foothold in
Mainland China and Hong Kong markets, which represents
a major breakthrough for the Group. The well-developed
smart security telecommunication technology of Multitone
is recognized by a number of security companies, whose
scope of service covers large-scale exhibitions, smart care
homes for the elderly, and other smart city oriented target
customers.

In the meantime, after months of research on the
technology application and in-depth study in Kowloon,
New Territories and Hong Kong Island, we are pleased to
announce that we will be actively marketing our solar power
systems which are capable of accommodating different
types of houses and structures, and connecting them to the
China Light and Power (“CLP Power”)’s grid, enabling the
Group to share with our customers the earnings derivable
from the Renewable Energy Feed-in Tariff (“FiT") Scheme.
Similar business model and technology in renewable
energy will also be applied towards the same scheme as
implemented by HK Electric with effect from 1 January
2019.

ER-_T-tFHNER KBEZBENEERER
B H B EE K360 L EmETTHI R E
FXLERNMERAEERHMERTE B8
Bkt

BEEBHERE

EIRERERRNESERIR P EERS
OO KRS & LR - 6 E R I
BB EBERBEE  RARARE  LBZEA
RENAREBRS RMUEMGBEATHESE
%o

RITEBHNER

#EMultitone Electronics PLC (FfIey BB E 2~
Al) EMultitone EMBER I EEE BFB LT
BMERNEPRALREESHAATSE  S248%
EMEBEARZEE - MultitoneM S 2B FTRELE
BERZRAFMABR  ZELZRAFREHE RS
AHREIRR BEEEREEMEEHMERA
BEEEPRHEXLRRE -

F—E - B A R EMERN RS RRAE
SR TAE BAAURAST M BT EERHE
EXGREEERE  ZEZRTEARTRALNE
ERREY WA SEERINPESN([FEED])
W/ ARABUEATFAZABEELERLEER
BRI D REERE - BONBEERR A M
s AEERNEEINSE _—_T—-AF—A—H
BT RET S
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT

Appreciation e

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere AANEREREFENEPL  HED EBBHEER
gratitude to our customers, suppliers, business partners and RETHIRHM BHAMMSENZF -BE XA
the shareholders for their continuous support. At the same EREARHSAEEMBEE I EE N MBI
time, | would give special thanks to all the employees of ¥R MMEE BRI R EUS B BE B PI#GE — 1
the Group for their devotion and achievements under the MMM N EBERREE BREBZ T ERAR
current challenging business environment. As always, we RAEE RS KA -

are committed to exploring new business opportunities,

diversifying our business and creating higher benefits and

profits for our shareholders.

Ms. WONG Man Winny E

Chairperson Bzt

Hong Kong BE

27 September 2018 ZE-N\FNA=Z+tH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Revenue

Champion Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) reported a
revenue for the year under review of approximately HK$143
million compared with approximately HK$195 million of the
previous year, a decrease of approximately 26.6 percent.
This was mainly due to the temporary delay in the trading
activities of cultural products during the year pending for the
results of scientific authentication of the cultural products.

Loss attributable to Owners of the Company

The loss for the year under review is approximately
HK$4,476 million (2017: approximately HK$4,804 million).
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
is approximately HK$3,812 million (2017: approximately
HK$4,188 million). The loss was mainly due to the drop
in revenue, the further impairment losses recognised on
the inventories and the fair value loss recognised on the
investment properties during the year. Loss per share is
HK$9.29 (2017: HK$13.23).

Distribution Costs

The Group's distribution costs for the year were mainly
incurred by the principal subsidiary in United Kingdom -
Multitone Electronics PLC (“Multitone”), which recorded
distribution costs for the year under review of approximately
HK$28 million compared with approximately HK$27 million
of the previous year.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses for the year increased
by approximately 29.5 percent to approximately HK$118
million from approximately HK$91 million of previous year.
The increase is mainly attributable to the increase in audit
fee and legal and professional fees.

Amortisation and Depreciation

Amortisation and depreciation costs for the year
decreased to approximately HK$9 million, compared with
approximately HK$27 million of previous year, due to
significant decrease in amortisation on development costs
for systems and networks as the development costs for
systems and networks were fully impaired during the year
ended 30 June 2017

YB3
W

REBEFE BENEEEBERAR ([EXAT])
FEMBAR (RBIEEBHEBSKENA
143,000,000/ 7t M & 4 49 /195,000,000
T RERH A 4266% BT BEREANFEANLR
EEETXCEREERY USXLERTZE
FH

RRTHEE AEIEEE

ClEFE 2 EEY AB4,476,000,0008 L (==
—-t£4 1 494,804,000,000/8 7T )  REEARD G HE
BAELEES AE3,812,000,0008T (ZT—+
4 1 494,188,000,0008 ) - BEFENKREFA
Wa2z T REEMERZE— D RAEBE L]
BEMERRZ AT EERE - SlREERI.29%
TL(ZT—+F:13.238 L) °

palki= DN
FRAREBZDEAAETEREAERABEIEHER
] Multitone Electronics PLC ([ Multitone J) -
HARBEFESS D HEKA%28,000,0008 T
mEF#)4527000,0008 7T °

— R RITHEIX
— % R AT R S R & F 4991,000,0005% 7T i A0 4)

29.5%E F AN #)118,000,0008 T - ZIEMEZ A
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FRI# /270000008 EREAREBEZZ
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DR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS (continued)

Impairment Loss and Fair Value Loss

Based on the result of comprehensive scientific
authentication, the Group recognised an impairment loss
on inventories of approximately HK$4,223 million for the
year ended 30 June 2018. In addition, a fair value loss
on investment properties acquired in current year of
approximately HK$178 million was recognised in strict
compliance with HKAS 8 which prevents the Group from
recognizing the development potential of certain investment
properties. Details of which are set out in the “Review of
Operations” section below.

Finance Costs

Finance costs for the year increased to approximately
HK$51 million from approximately HK$12 million of the
previous year, which was due to the increase in borrowings
and promissory note payable during the year.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION OF THE COMPANY

As stated in pages 94 to 104 of this report, the auditors of
the Company (the “Auditors”) have issued a disclaimer of
opinion on the Group's consolidated statements of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2018
since (i) the impairment of available-for-sale investments
("AFS Investments”) and (i) the impairment of inventories
of cultural products for the year ended 30 June 2017
formed the opening balances of the respective elements
of the current year's consolidated financial statements, any
adjustments that might have been found to be necessary in
respect of these two items would have a significant effect
in respect of impairment loss on the AFS Investments and
inventories of cultural products, and the other elements
making up the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows
and the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 and the prior
year(s).

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

As mentioned above and in the chairperson’s statement,
the disclaimer of opinion is solely related to the opening
balances of (i) the impairment of AFS Investments and (ii)
the impairment of inventories of cultural products which is a
consequential effect resulting from the disclaimer of opinion
on the Group's consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2017 The board of the Company wishes
to provide more information in relation to the above items
that result in the disclaimer of opinion from the Auditors.

(i)  Impairment of AFS Investments for the year ended
30 June 2017

Background

During the course of the audit in respect of the year
ended 30 June 2017, the Auditors sought to perform
alternative audit procedures to satisfy themselves
that the AFS Investments were fully impaired as at 30
June 2017. However, the scope of the alternative audit
procedures was limited as disclosed in the auditor’'s
report for the year ended 30 June 2017

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the management
had exhausted all means practically possible, including
the engagement of legal advisers and private
investigators, to locate and contact the disappeared
management of the investee companies and to try
to recover part of the costs of the investments. The
directors of the Company, after taking into account 1)
the findings by the investigators; 2) legal advice from
the legal adviser; 3) various options suggested by the
legal adviser, where the estimated costs to perform
further action to try to recover the investments are
expected to be significantly higher than the benefits,
have concluded that there are no other alternative
or further action that the Group could take. As a
result, the directors of the Company concluded and
confirmed that the investments were irrecoverable as
at 30 June 2018.

EBEARANTEERIER (®)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(i)

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Impairment of AFS Investments for the year ended
30 June 2017 (continued)

Reason for the audit qualification

However, as the figures in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2017 formed the
opening balances of the respective elements of the
current year's consolidated financial statements, the
Auditors consider that any adjustments that might
have been found to be necessary in respect of the
above would have a significant effect in respect
of impairment loss on the AFS Investments, and
the other elements making up the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity,
consolidated statement of cash flows and the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018 and the prior year(s).

As the disclaimer of opinion on the Company's loss,
changes in equity and cash flow for the year ended
30 June 2018 is related to the opening balances
and corresponding figures which is a consequential
effect resulting from the disclaimer of opinion on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements for
year ended 30 June 2017, the Board understands,
after discussion with the Auditors, the possible
consequential effect on the Group's consolidated
financial statements for year ending 30 June 2019,
resulting from the disclaimer opinion on the Group's
consolidated financial statements for year ended
30 June 2018, according to Hong Kong Standard on
Auditing 710 Comparative Information — Corresponding
Figures and Comparative Financial Statements, would
possibly be a modified opinion on the corresponding
figures (i.e. figures for year ended 30 June 2018) of
the Group's consolidated financial statements for year
ending 30 June 2019.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of AFS Investments for the year ended
30 June 2017 (continued)

Proposed plan to address the disclaimer of opinion
Given that the impairment of AFS Investments for
the year ended 30 June 2017 will not form the basis
of modified or qualified opinion for the year ending
30 June 2019 (other than a modified opinion on the
corresponding figures for the year ended 30 June
2018), the Board considers that no further action is
required to remove the disclaimer of opinion in this
regard.

View of audit committee

The audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee”) agreed with the audit qualification and
confirmed that it had critically reviewed and agreed
with the management’s position on the judgmental
areas concerning the above impairment assessment.

Impairment of inventories resulting from
downgrading and reclassifications of cultural
products by the management of the Group

Background

For the purposes of the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2018, as disclosed in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements, as a result of the
inconsistencies in the grading and classification of
cultural products performed by different experts as at
30 June 2017 and 2016, the current management of
the Group resolved to arrange another team of cultural
product and jewellery experts to conduct a detailed
inspection of the cultural products during the year
regarding their grading and classification in respect of
the year ended 30 June 2018. As disclosed in Note 21
to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
engaged the appraisal center to conduct a scientific
examination of 360 pieces of cultural products, so
as to better determine the nature and substance of
these cultural products. Based on their work, further
downgradings were identified. Accordingly, a further
impairment loss of HK$4,222,621,000 was recognised
for the year for the purpose of preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(ii)

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Impairment of inventories resulting from
downgrading and reclassifications of cultural
products by the management of the Group

(continued)

Background (continued)

Subsequent to the publication of the Audited
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Assets
and Liabilities as at 31 December 2017 and for
the purpose of the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 30 June 2018, the directors of the
Company unanimously decided to take the approach of
eliminating any lingering doubts on the nature of the
cultural products inventory so as to obtain a final and
uncontroversial conclusion for our inventory.

The directors of the Company are of the view that,
with their detailed exercise, the carrying amount
net of impairment recognised so far, reflected in
the consolidated statement of financial position, is
the best estimate of the recoverable amount of the
cultural products. We believe the matter of the scope
limitations referred to above no longer have possible
effect on the figure presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018.

Reason for the audit qualification

However, as the closing balance of the cultural
products as at 30 June 2017 is carried forward as the
opening balance for the current year, the Auditors
consider that any adjustments found to be necessary
to the closing balance as at 30 June 2017 may have
a significant effect on the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended 30 June 2018.

As such, the Auditors consider that the comparative
figures presented (i.e. the figures as at 30 June 2017)
in the statement of financial position as at 30 June
2018 may contain material misstatements and hence
may not be comparable with the figures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(ii)

Impairment of inventories resulting from
downgrading and reclassifications of cultural
products by the management of the Group

(continued)

Reason for the audit qualification (continued)

As the disclaimer of opinion on the Company's loss,
changes in equity and cash flow for the year ended
30 June 2018 is related to the opening balances
and corresponding figures which is a consequential
effect resulting from the disclaimer of opinion on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2017 the Board understands,
after discussion with the Auditors, the possible
consequential effect on the Group's consolidated
financial statements for year ending 30 June 2019,
resulting from the disclaimer opinion on the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2018, according to Hong Kong Standard on
Auditing 710 Comparative Information — Corresponding
Figures and Comparative Financial Statements, would
possibly be a modified opinion on the corresponding
figures (i.e. figures for the year ended 30 June 2018)
of the Group's consolidated financial statements for
year ending 30 June 2019.

Proposed plan to address the disclaimer of opinion
Given that the impairment of inventories resulting
from downgrading and reclassifications of cultural
products will not form the basis of modified or
qualified opinion for the year ending 30 June 2019
(other than a modified opinion on the corresponding
figures for the year ended 30 June 2018), the Board
considers that no further action is required to remove
the disclaimer of opinion in this regard.

View of audit committee
The Audit Committee agreed with the audit
qualification and confirmed that it had critically
reviewed and agreed with the management'’s position
on the judgmental areas concerning the above
impairment assessment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
System Products

For our system products sector, our UK arm manifests the
major sources of income of our Group in that sector. When
our management together with the chief executive officer
and technical director of Multitone visited China recently
to conduct an in-depth business study and to introduce the
background and products of Multitone, several customers
showed strong interest in doing business with us. More
details of that development are provided in the “Outlook”
section. So far, during the year under review, business and
contribution from system products have remained steady
and stable.

Cultural Products

Included in inventories of the Group as at 30 June
2018 were cultural products, including precious stones
and artifacts, of HK$12,763,000 (as at 30 June 2017:
HK$4,235,385,000) which were held for trading and resale
in the ordinary course of business.

Since November 2017 all such cultural products, totalling
368 pieces, have been kept in a warehouse run by
a worldwide security solution company, which is an
independent third party to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)
Cultural Products (continued)

For the purpose of the audited condensed consolidated
statement of assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2017 (the “Audited Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Assets and Liabilities”) which was
announced by the Company on 30 April 2018, a team
of cultural product/jewellery experts (the “Current
Experts”) organised by the B X¥){z B+ L» “China
Cultural Heritage Information and Consulting Center” (the
“Consulting Center”) and led by Ms. YANG Zhen Hua (#5&
# ), who is a renowned expert in the field of jewellery and
stones, was engaged to perform an inspection on all 368
pieces of the cultural products owned by the Group. Upon
completion of their Stage 1 field work, they directed us to
arrange for scientific examination with the GEM Appraisal
Center of Peking University (It Rt KB HZEFF L) (the
“Appraisal Center”) of selected representative samples
plus certain items on which doubts were cast by them.
According to the latest opinions from the Current Experts,
further downgradings and reclassifications were required
to be made on the cultural products as compared to those
as at 30 June 2017 Based on the findings concerning the
grading and classification of the cultural products, another
valuer 3t R B ZEEBEFT{E AR 27, who was arranged by
the Consulting Center, reassessed the market values of the
inventories as at 31 December 2017. As a result of the final
authentication report and evaluation report, the Company
had determined that their net realisable values were way
below their costs and the shortfall resulted in impairment
loss of approximately HK$4,221 million for the six months
ended 31 December 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)
Cultural Products (continued)

Subsequent to the publication of the Audited Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities and for
the purpose of the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2018, the Directors unanimously decided
to take the approach of eliminating any lingering doubts on
the nature of the cultural products inventory so as to obtain
a final and uncontroversial conclusion for our inventory of
cultural products.

As disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements of this report, the Company engaged the
Appraisal Center to conduct a scientific examination of
360 pieces of cultural products, so that their nature and
substance can be established, following which grading and
classification of the cultural products can be confirmed.
Based on their findings concerning the grading and
classification of the cultural products, the Appraisal Center
issued their final report, t R AZEERTEHEBERA
A) has reassessed the market values of all 368 pieces of
cultural products as at 30 June 2018. The result of the final
authentication report and evaluation report indicate that
there is no material change in their net realisable values
between 31 December 2017 and 30 June 2018. Impairment
loss of approximately HK$4,223 million is recognised for the
year ended 30 June 2018.

In view of the disappointing drop in the value of the cultural
products, we will restructure a suitable plan to develop the
line of business on the cultural products and to proceed
along a more practicable approach in trading new items and
selling the cultural products that we have.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)
AFS Investments

As at 30 June 2018, regarding the AFS Investments related
to four unlisted equity securities invested previously
which were fully impaired in the year of 2017 the factors
supporting the directors’ decision remain unchanged,
such as, a) the findings by the private investigators; b) the
legal advice from the legal adviser; c) the various options
suggested by the legal advisers, where the estimated
cost to perform the actions would significantly exceed the
benefit; and d) there is no other alternative or possible
further action that the Company could reasonably take,
the Directors concluded that reversal of the impairment
loss is not necessary and zero carrying amount of the AFS
Investments as at 30 June 2018 is appropriate.

Securities Investments

In order to maximize the return of the funds raised from
our previous fund raising activities, the Group has invested
in some Hong Kong listed securities, the details and
information of those investment are as follows:

The Group has focused on certain short-term securities
trading through the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiary, namely Champnet Limited.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group has
recorded fair value gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“Financial Assets at FVTPL")
of approximately HK$15 million (2017: HK$Nil) which is
attributable to unrealised gain of approximately HK$1 million
and realised gain of approximately HK$14 million.

As at 30 June 2018, the fair value of the investments
classified as "Financial Assets at FVTPL" amounted to
approximately HK$111 million (2017: Nil). These investment
portfolios comprised 12 (2017: Nil) equity securities listed
in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) of which 4 (2017: Nil) equity securities are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and the
remaining 8 (2017: Nil) equity securities are listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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BEEEN®R DT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Securities Investments (continued)

The composition of the Group's financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss is given below:

FSE A ()

#HHRE

)
/

m

AEERQAFEES ARSI SREEMAKIT

Percentage Percentage
Number of Unrealised of total of total
shares held  Percentage of Fair value Dividend held-for- assets of
by the Group  shareholdings Investment gain/(loss) income for Fair value trading the Group
at 30 Jun 2018 at 30 Jun 2018 cost for the year the year  at 30 Jun 2018 investments  at 30 Jun 2018
3] 3 )
RZB-NF  RZB-NF FRRER RZB-NF R-B-NF
B ABEtRAZ ATEE ABEZTEZ  BEEERE  AA=tAEZ
Company Name/Stock Code RRAEE/RORE FERAHE REBAL RERK  WE/ (BB  FRRIEKA ATEE BEAM BEBEAESML
Notes HKS HKS HKS HKS
i3 V23 Az BT Az
Financial assets at fair value BAVREABEZ
through profit or loss tREE
Wai Chun Mining Industry
Group Company Limited REREEEERAA
(Stock code: 660) (AR - 660) 1 264,230,000 1.6% 20,158,400 (2,719,220) S 17439,180 15.7% 3.1%
Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited EARRERERAA
(Stock code: 8089) (B3 : 8089) 2 9,864,000 4.8% 10,235,052 6,829,668 - 17,064,720 15.4% 3.1%
Vinco Financial Group Limited BRtBEMERAR)
(Stock code: 8340) (REH -8340) 3 16,050,000 2.5% 13,083,330 (9,312,900) 159,672 3,771,750 3.4% 0.7%
Sun Hing Printing Holdings Limited HRDBZRERAA
(Stock code: 1975) (AR 1975) 4 11,920,000 2.5% 12,816,880 (1,492,880) & 11,324,000 10.2% 2.0%
Value Convergence Holdings Limited ERERERAR
(Stock code: 821) (RERH:821) 5 2,360,000 0.3% 4,306,400 (1,144,000) S 3,162,400 2.9% 0.6%
China Fortune Financial Group Ltd. THEEEREMERAR
(Stock code: 290) (R :290) 6 40,000,000 0.6% 6,560,000 (1,760,000) S 4,800,000 4.3% 0.9%
Worldgate Global Logistics Ltd ERMRERAA
(Stock code: 8292) (AR - 8292) 7 5,500,000 0.7% 7465,600 (1,965,600) S 5,500,000 5.0% 1.0%
Royal Catering Group
Holdings Co. Ltd. SEEHEERRARLE
(Stock code: 8300) (A3 - 8300) 8 114,000,000 43% 14,787500 (195,500) & 14,592,000 13.2% 2.6%
Gain Plus Holdings Ltd. BRERERAA
(Stock code: 8522) (RS 8522) 9 1,500,000 0.4% 1,470,000 - - 1,470,000 13% 0.3%
Lumina Group Ltd. LEHEABRAR
(Stock code: 8470) (RHKE - 8470) 10 496,000 0.1% 758,880 (282,720) S 476,160 0.4% 0.1%
China Eco-Farming Ltd FEEEERERAA
(Stock code: 8166) (AR - 8166) n 34,000,000 0.5% 2,754,000 204,000 - 2,958,000 21% 0.5%
Sheng Ye Capital Limited BXERERAA
(Stock code: 8469) (B3 - 8469) 2 3,926,000 0.5% 15,062,830 13,168,780 - 28,227940 255% 5.1%
109,458,872 1,329,628 159,672 110,786,150 100.0% 20.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Securities Investments (continued)

1.

660 Wai Chun Mining Industry Group Co. Ltd.

Wai Chun Mining Industry Group Company Limited
(“Wai Chun Mining"”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Wai Chun Mining Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of modified starch and other biochemical products
and general trading including, the trading of athletic
and athletic-style leisure footwear, working shoes,
safety shoes, golf shoes and other functional shoes,
and trading of electronic parts and components and
electrical appliances.

Wai Chun Mining Group has completed and will
continue to pursue strategic acquisitions that can
enable them to capture new business opportunities
in the PRC market and to strengthen the revenue and
profit fundamentals.

According to Wai Chun Mining's interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2018, the Wai Chun
Mining Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$243 million and total comprehensive expenses of
approximately HK$6 million.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group
acquired 304,230,000 shares in Wai Chun Mining
in which 40,000,000 shares were disposed with a
realised loss of HK$376,000 and the Group recorded
an unrealised loss of HK$2,719,000 in respect of such
investment.
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BEEEN®R DT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Securities Investments (continued)

2.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

8089 Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited

Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited (“Chinese
Strategic”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Chinese Strategic Group”) were principally
engaged in properties investments, securities trading,
loan financing and trading business.

On 18 April 2018, Chinese Strategic Group entered
into a strategic cooperation framework agreement
with Shenzhen Jinbo Investment Holdings Group Co.
Ltd.* ORYI @ EHREZEREBEGR QT ) ("Shenzhen
Jinbo Investment”), pursuant to which Chinese
Strategic Group, where conditions permit, will acquire
not more than 95% equity interest in Shenzhen
Jinbo Investment. Chinese Strategic Group intends
to pursue comprehensive cooperation with Shenzhen
Jinbo Investment in smart phone products, cultural
industry, healthcare industry and new energy
business. By leveraging on the rich resources of
Shenzhen Jinbo Investment in the abovementioned
businesses and its ability to integrate such
resources, Chinese Strategic Group and Shenzhen
Jinbo Investment would jointly explore business
opportunities in certain aspects taking advantage
of the superior resources in the crossborder capital
market.

According to Chinese Strategic's interim report for the
six months ended 30 June 2018, Chinese Strategic
recorded revenue of approximately HK$19 million
and total comprehensive expenses of approximately
HK$83 million.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group
acquired 9,864,000 shares in Chinese Strategic
and the Group recorded an unrealised gain of
HK$6,830,000 in respect of such investment.

There was no disposal of the shares in Chinese
Strategic during the year ended 30 June 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Securities Investments (continued)

3.

8340 Vinco Financial Group Limited

Vinco Financial Group Limited (“Vinco Financial”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Vinco
Group”) were principally engaged in the provision of
corporate finance advisory services in Hong Kong.

According to Vinco Financial’s interim report for the
six months ended 30 June 2018, the Vinco Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$13 million and
total comprehensive income of approximately HK$4
million.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group
acquired 24,260,000 shares in Vinco Financial in which
8,210,000 shares were disposed with a realised loss
of HK$1,338,000 during the year ended 30 June
2018. As at 30 June 2018, the Group held 16,050,000
shares in Vinco Financial and the Group recorded an
unrealised loss of HK$9,313,000 in respect of such
investment during the year ended 30 June 2018.

To maintain its competitiveness in the market, the
Vinco Group will continue to focus on the general
corporate finance advisory services as well as initial
public offerings related projects in Hong Kong.
Meanwhile the Vinco Group will also continue to
seek for business opportunities in other financial
related services as to generate greater value for its
shareholders.
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4.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

1975 Sun Hing Printing Holdings Limited

Sun Hing Printing Holdings Limited (“Sun Hing")
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Sun Hing Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sale of printing products.

Sun Hing Group will acquire four printing presses,
relocate to the new factory in the second half of
2018, which will help to expand the overall production
capacity, and upgrade its enterprise resources
planning system. The proceeds from the share offer of
the Sun Hing's shares will provide sufficient financial
resources to the enhancement of its production
capacity with minimal financial cost on the future
prospect of the Sun Hing Group.

According to Sun Hing's interim report for the six
months ended 31 December 2017 the Sun Hing Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$151 million and
total comprehensive income of approximately HK$6
million.

With the increase of the categories of value-added
information technology related services, Sun Hing
Group is able to enhance the existing customer loyalty,
differentiate themselves from traditional printing
factories and drive revenue growth in the future. The
application of value-added information technology
is the direction for the development of future print
products. With the Sun Hing Group's experienced
management team and reputation in the market
and the introduction of the value-added information
technology, it will further facilitate Sun Hing Group to
expand its business market and increase its market
share, which will lay a solid foundation for future
profitability, thus we believe the positive impact on the
future prospect of the Sun Hing Group.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group
acquired 11,920,000 shares in Sun Hing and the
Group recorded an unrealised loss of HK$1,493,000 in
respect of such investment.

There was no disposal of shares in Sun Hing during
the year ended 30 June 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Securities Investments (continued)

5.

821 Value Convergence Holdings Limited

Value Convergence Holdings Limited (“Value
Convergence”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Value Convergence Group”)
are principally engaged in the provision of financial
services and proprietary trading.

On 8 March 2018, Value Convergence Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with CVP
Financial Group Limited (“CVP Financial”) as vendor
pursuant to which Value Convergence Group intends
to acquire and CVP Financial intends to sell 18%
of the issued share capital of Hackett Enterprises
Limited (the “Target Company”) at a consideration
of HK$160,000,000. The Target Company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
loan financing and financial consultancy services in the
PRC and the provision of money lending services in
Hong Kong. The transaction was completed on 8 June
2018.

Looking ahead, the Value Convergence Group with
the launch of the China-Hong Bond Connect, a new
mutual market access scheme that allow investors
from the PRC and overseas to trade in each other's
bond markets through connection between the
related PRC and Hong Kong financial market in the
foreseeable future and bring positive impact towards
the principal business of Value Convergence Group,
to enlarge its revenue base through fostering its core
businesses and tapping into new emerging markets
with expanded business initiatives.

The increased quota of the Stock Connects also
widens the gate for capital flow from both Mainland
China and international. This is especially important
amid MSCI Inc's decision to add around 230 China-
listed shares to its emerging market index starting
June 2018, which is expected to attract strong
foreign capital to the Mainland stock market. Value
Convergence Group will benefit from the anticipated
increase in the Northbound trading volume in the long
run.
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5.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

821 Value Convergence Holdings Limited (continued)

According to Value Convergence's interim report
for the six months ended 30 June 2018, the
Value Convergence Group recorded revenue of
approximately HK$18 million and total comprehensive
expenses of approximately HK$320 million.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group
acquired 3,160,000 shares in Value Convergence in
which 800,000 shares were disposed with a realised
gain of HK$122,000 and the Group recorded an
unrealised loss of HK$1,144,000 in respect of such
investment.

290 China Fortune Financial Group Limited

China Fortune Financial Group Limited (“China
Fortune”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “China Fortune Group”) were principally
engaged in securities and proprietary trading and
insurance brokerage, margin financing, provision
of corporate finance services and money lending
services.

China Fortune Group made great efforts to develop
the investment banking business by appropriately
adjusting its priorities and seizing a rare historic
opportunity in the Hong Kong market based on sober
weighing of the market conditions. As at 29 June
2018, China Fortune Group had submitted five IPO
applications to the Stock Exchange as sole sponsor,
while China Fortune Group had a strong pipeline of
multiple high-quality sponsoring and underwriting
projects.

According to China Fortune's annual report for the
year ended 31 March 2018, China Fortune Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$94 million and
total comprehensive expense of approximately HK$54
million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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6.

290 China Fortune Financial Group Limited
(continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group
acquired 40,000,000 shares in China Fortune and the
Group recorded an unrealised loss of HK$1,760,000 in
respect of such investment.

There was no disposal of the shares in China Fortune
during the year ended 30 June 2018.

8292 Worldgate Global Logistics Ltd

Worldgate Global Logistics Ltd (“"Worldgate”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Worldgate Group”) were principally engaged in
provision of comprehensive international freight
services, transportation services as well as
warehousing services to customers worldwide.

Worldgate Group aims to strengthen its position as
an integrated logistics solution service provider in
Malaysia and intends to further expand its business in
major gateways of Malaysia and expand the scope of
services to cover cross border trucking, haulage and
rail freight.

According to Worldgate's interim report for the
six months ended 30 June 2018, Worldgate Group
recorded revenue of approximately Malaysian Ringgit
(“RM") 32 million and total comprehensive expense of
approximately RM 4 million.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group
acquired 5,500,000 shares in Worldgate and the
Group recorded an unrealised loss of HK$1,966,000 in
respect of such investment.

There was no disposal of the shares in Worldgate
during the year ended 30 June 2018.
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8.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

8300 Royal Catering Group Holdings Company
Limited

Royal Catering Group Holdings Company Limited
("Royal Catering”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Royal Catering Group”) were
principally engaged in the provision of casual dining
food catering services in Hong Kong. As at 30 June
2018, Royal Catering Group were operating three
restaurants under its self-owned brands, including
“Taiwan Beef Noodle (B4 A%) ", "Chinese
Kitchen (FF BB &) " and “Macao Harbour (i 35 /%
JBF9&EE) " and one takeaway kiosk under the brand
“Coffee Express” at the Hong Kong International
Airport and have also franchised their brands “Taiwan
Beef Noodle (& &4 W#) " and “Chinese Kitchen (
B EfE) " for the operation of a restaurant at Canton
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui.

Royal Catering Group have obtained the franchising
rights in Hong Kong of three famous catering brands,
including “Du Hsiao Yueh Restaurant (E/NA) "
“Flamingo Bloom” and “Hanlin Tea Room/Hut ( 8 #R %S
£5/#2) " and they have been strategically looking for
opportunities to introduce popular restaurant brands
to both the Hong Kong International Airport and the
urban area of Hong Kong through franchising or other
cooperative arrangements. Further, they plan to pursue
a growth strategy by opening restaurants in the
coming two years in first-tier cities such as Guangzhou
and Shanghai in the PRC.

According to Royal Catering’s first quarterly report
for the three months ended 30 June 2018, Royal
Catering Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$24 million and total comprehensive expense of
approximately HK$2 million.
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8.

8300 Royal Catering Group Holdings Company
Limited (continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group
acquired 162,000,000 shares in Royal Catering in
which 48,000,000 shares were disposed with a
realised loss of HK$22,000 and the Group recorded
an unrealised loss of HK$196,000 in respect of such
investment.

8522 Gain Plus Holdings Limited

Gain Plus Holdings Limited (“Gain Plus”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Gain Plus
Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of
building construction services and repair, maintenance,
addition and alteration services.

Gain Plus successfully listed its shares on GEM of the
Stock Exchange on 13 February 2018 and Gain Plus
Group will continue to strengthen the market position
in the industry and expand the market share and
further strengthen their manpower by utilising the net
proceeds from the listing.

According to Gain Plus’s first quarterly report for the
three months ended 30 June 2018, Gain Plus Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$109 million and
total comprehensive income of approximately HK$4
million.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group
acquired 1,500,000 shares in Gain Plus and the Group
did not record an unrealised gain or loss in respect of
such investment.

There was no disposal of the shares in Gain Plus
during the year ended 30 June 2018.
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1.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

8470 Lumina Group Limited

Lumina Group Limited (“"Lumina”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Lumina”) are
principally engaged in the provision of fire safety

services in Hong Kong.

Lumina has successfully listed its shares on GEM of
the Stock Exchange on 25 October 2017 and Lumina
Group has been actively exploring new business
opportunities by keeping track of any new projects
through existing and new network, including the
projects of fire safety systems and plumbing and
drainage systems.

According to Lumina’s first quarterly report for the
three months ended 30 June 2018, Lumina Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$24 million and
total comprehensive income of approximately HK$4
million.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group
acquired 496,000 shares in Lumina and the Group
recorded an unrealised loss of HK$283,000 in respect
of such investment.

There was no disposal of the shares in Lumina during
the year ended 30 June 2018.

8166 China Eco-Farming Limited

China Eco-Farming Limited (“China Eco-Farming”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“China Eco-Farming Group") are principally engaged
in the business of trading of grocery food products,
trading of consumables and agricultural products,
property investment, money lending, one-stop value
chain services and provision of financial services.
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71.

12.

8166 China Eco-Farming Limited (continued)

According to China Eco-Farming's interim report
for the six months ended 30 June 2018, China Eco-
Farming Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$36 million and total comprehensive expense of
approximately HK$15 million.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group
acquired 34,000,000 shares in China Eco-Farming and
the Group recorded an unrealised gain of HK$204,000
in respect of such investment.

There was no disposal of the shares in China Eco-
Farming during the year ended 30 June 2018.

8469 Sheng Ye Capital Limited

Sheng Ye Capital Limited (“Sheng Ye"”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Sheng
Ye Group”) are mainly engaged in the provision of
factoring services, including the provision of financing
services (secured by accounts receivable) to factoring
customers and the accounts receivable management
services.

Sheng Ye Group will continue to develop its online
factoring platform and enhance its risk management.
With its advanced online factoring platform “Sheng
Yi Tong” (or B% %) and through a professional risk
management mechanism, Sheng Ye Group is able
to standardise its financial products and customise
solutions and offers customers with integrated
factoring services, accounts receivable financing,
accounts receivable management services and
credit evaluation, among others, helping them to
secure funding at different stages of their business
development.
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12. 8469 Sheng Ye Capital Limited (continued)

According to Sheng Ye's interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2018, the Sheng Ye Group
recorded revenue of approximately RMB109 million
and total comprehensive income of approximately
RMB71 million.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group
acquired 11,776,000 shares in Sheng Ye of which
7,850,000 shares were disposed with a realised gain
of HK$16,452,000. As at 30 June 2018, the Group held
3,926,000 shares in Sheng Ye and the Group recorded
an unrealised gain of HK$13,169,000 in respect of
such investment during the year ended 30 June 2018.

Dongguan Hotel Project

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19
July 2017, regarding the disclosable transaction in relation
to the acquisition of the 51% equity interest of a Hong
Kong company that indirectly owns a hotel in Dongguan
through a PRC subsidiary (the “Acquisition”), the Directors
considered the Acquisition was in line with the Group's
business diversification strategy. In addition, as disclosed in
the Audited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Assets
and Liabilities which was announced on 30 April 2018, we
noted that the market condition in Dongguan had changed,
with the demand for hotel rooms in those areas, as
expected, continued to remain gloomy, and this aspect was
considered when this project was scrutinised. However,
by virtue of the sub-contracting agreements, the Company
can on one hand benefit from the steady, guaranteed
income, while it may, on the other hand, take the initiative
to terminate the agreements with the hotel operator as and
when we consider appropriate.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2018

e
BERE

12. 8469B¥EFEHRA 7 (&)

BEREHEE-T-—N\FAA=THIEA
BAAZHHRE BRESEHFSUREHAR
109,000,000t R ZE MR BEH AR
71,000,0007T °

REBEE-Z—-NE~AA=Z+HLEE &
EEE BB E 211,776,000 % H - T E
it & & $17850,0000% f& 15 - X5 B & IR Ik
716,452,000 L - K= — NFNA=1
A NEEE A& 3¥3,926,0000% 8% A
EERZRERBE_ZE—-N\EXA=1H
IEFE S ARE IR INE13,169,000/8 7T °

REBEERA

BMARR BB -_T—EFLATARZRM
e REAERKRE-—REEAR (BB —H
B E A REEER —RREEE) 251%MHE
(WBERDZATRERS -EZRR WESE
THHEAREEEBZ TR — e o R =
E-NFUA=Z+THLAMOEERBRAGAEE
RABERAEE  #fIBIRZENTERALE
B FNES ZZRENEERREFRDAK
HoEEHARBRCEEBLSE A AR D
B ARB— T HERSEEZREBRA M
S EHE A REFIR ARG EZ R A HREUE i
BIEEEELIEZE RS-



BEEESN®RIM

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)
Dongguan Hotel Project (continued)

If the sub-contracting agreements are terminated, we may
redevelop the subject properties (together with the vacant
and unused portions of land adjacent thereto) afresh into,
proposedly, a brand new residential commercial complex
project, whereby unlocking the true and inherent value of
the land.

Therefore, we considered that there was a hidden value in
this project which the Company would be able to benefit
from it in the foreseeable future.

To adhere strictly to the relevant accounting standard
regardless of the commercial value, the valuation of the
investment property regarding the land use right (i.e.
interest in a leasehold land with the remained contractual
life from the end of expiry of the lease term with the
tenant to 2043), which was performed by an independent
firm of professional valuers, Stirling Appraisals Limited, by
the adoption of the adjusted market comparison approach
by a) making reference to comparable sales of bare-land
with lease term of 40 years; b) adjusted for the term factor
using the valuation technique to estimate value of bare-
land with lease term of 10 years as at 2033; and c) take into
account the time value of money at discount rate of 6%
from 2033 back to 30 June 2018, indicated that the value
approximated to HK$4.3 million (RMB3.6 million). Therefore,
an impairment loss amounted to HK$178 million was
recognised for the year ended 30 June 2018.

Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone”)

Revenue for Kantone and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Kantone Group”) was approximately HK$137 million,
as compared with approximately HK$141 million of
the previous year. Loss for the year was approximately
HK$1,644 million, as compared with the loss for the fiscal
year 2017 of approximately HK$1,757 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)
Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone”) (continued)

The Kantone Group recorded a slight drop in revenue
of HK$4 million. Throughout the period under review,
the Kantone Group was able to maintain its momentum
in the European market within the healthcare and
emergency services sectors. For maintaining our products’
competitiveness, the Kantone Group has continued to
focus on optimizing its development resources to provide
customers with critical messaging solutions in the niche
markets. In addition, the Group’s management is focusing
on developing a foothold in China and Hong Kong market.

In order to keep pace with the challenging business
environment, the Group would continue to enhance its
products and marketing plans with the aim of improving
sales and the overall return.

OUTLOOK

The business objectives of the Group are to develop its
business and achieve sustainable growth of its business.
The Group aims to achieve such objectives by pursuing the
following growth-oriented strategies: (i) broadening the
customer base of the systems sales, lease and licensing
business of the Group; (ii) improving the trading business
of the Group; (iii) restructuring its property portfolio and
tapping into the PRC property sector; and (iv) further
expansion of its business in the technology sector by
developing the renewable energy field in Hong Kong. The
followings are the proposed strategic pattern of the Group
oriented with the above strategy:

We had a good start in tapping in two sectors during the
fourth quarter of this fiscal year, namely (i) trading and (ii)
exploring the China and Hong Kong market of the system
products from Multitone. Other than broadening and
exploring these two core businesses, we also grasped
the opportunity to develop new businesses which are
beneficial to the Group in Hong Kong. We will definitely be
more cautious of the recent rapidly changing business and
geopolitical environment around the globe, in particular, the
uncertainties created by the Sino-US trade war.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK (continued)
Broadening the Customer Base

The Group will continue exploring opportunities for the
systems sales, lease and licensing segment and to broaden
the geographic base of customers, especially to the PRC
market.

Through a substantial subsidiary in Europe which specialized
in the design, manufacturing and supply of integrated
wireless communication systems and solutions for sale and
lease, the Group will continue to invest in new products
and market development, capitalizing on its position as the
market leader in critical messaging. In order to bring in
the advanced systems and products applicable to critical
messaging and smart cities, the Group has been working
on establishing its own base as well as cooperative
platforms in the PRC to bring in its systems and products
from Europe. The Group will continue to adapt and adopt
emerging technologies as well as developing its own
innovative products.

Meanwhile, the Group has been identifying other
telecommunication and internet technologies which would
benefit the Group's roadmap in Asia and the existing
business in Europe with a view to enlarging the Group's
coverage in the telecommunication and internet industry.

Recently, the chief executive officer and the technical
director of Multitone visited several potential customers
and business partners in China — this roadshow gave us
an opportunity not only to introduce our background and
products, but also to get a much better understanding of
the requirement and needs of the customers in China.
Shortly after they returned from China, good news for
further business alignment with one of the customers was
received, they were not only prepared to buy our products,
but also suggested going forward to form a long term
partnership with them to promote and sell our products in
China, especially the auction-related exhibition and elderly
care-related businesses. This promising development
happened to fit in with the business strategies pattern
of our Group, which we will keep working with our
management team in UK for the best business model.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK (continued)
Improving the Trading Business of the Group

The investments in China-Indochina Peninsula Economic
Corridor by China will inject vitality into the region. The
construction of China-Laos Railway and China-Thailand
Railway will promote the economic growth of Vietnam,
Laos, Cambodia, Thailand and Myanmar, thus driving the
increase in oil demand in the region. Qil supply in Asia
is expected to be insufficient for the consumption of
all countries in the region, which will lead in turn to the
increase in oil prices, offering thus a prosperous prospect
for the market price of oil products.

The structure of the Asian oil market has experienced
significant changes this year. The formal listing and trading
of oil futures on Shanghai Futures Exchange on 26 March
2018 marked a milestone for China to dominate the Asian oil
market. The trading volumes of Shanghai crude oil futures
has exceeded those of Dubai crude oil futures market and
are next only to those of New York and London, ranking third
in the world.

On the other hand, China and India have surpassed Japan
on the list of the world's petroleum importing countries.
China and India import 9 million and 4.5 million barrels of
petroleum per day, respectively, while those of Japan are
only 3.5 million. This represents the decreasing influence of
Japan on the crude oil market. Japan once consumed 10%
of the petroleum demands in the world and firmly adhered
to long-term contract transactions. Currently, as China and
India are leading the Asian oil market, the oil trade will
place more emphasis on cost and flexibility in delivery, with
a higher percentage of spot oils. This will also be a major
characteristic of the Asian oil and oil product markets.

As the price of West Texas Intermediate crude oil reached
US$72.76/barrel in June, the highest price since 2014, the
rise of oil price seems to be inevitable. This is mainly due
to the decline in the crude oil inventories in the world,
including America. The oil production of Venezuela has
reduced significantly, and its daily production may decline
to less than 1 million barrels in 2019, while the crisis in Iran
and Libya also lead to concerns about the short supply of
oil, thus triggering a new oil crisis. Therefore, oil prices are
set to rise in 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK (continued)

Improving the Trading Business of the Group
(continued)

In addition, Iran proposes to put to an end to the US
dollar’'s dominance over oil trade, and make RMB the hard
currency in Asia. If Iran’s proposal becomes true, additional
uncertainties will arise in the Asian oil market.

Leveraging on the strong growth momentum of the ASEAN
countries’ economy, the oil product business of the
Company in China-Indochina Peninsula is expected to take
advantage of the rapid growth of the ASEAN countries’
economy to achieve high growth, thus generating profits for
the Company and bringing good news to the shareholders.

Restructuring its Property Portfolio and Tapping
into the PRC Property Sector

The Group has engaged specialists to study the ways to
restructure its property portfolio in Hong Kong and the
PRC with a view to enhancing their value and the Group's
income including modifying their usage in a legitimate way.
Following the completion of the acquisition of 51% equity
interests of Golden Field Property Limited on 19 July 2017,
the Group will diversify and further expand its business
portfolio into the PRC property sector. The management
is studying ways to have the site redeveloped into a
commercial and residential complex which is becoming
common and popular in line with the Big Bay Development
scheme promoted by China.

Renewable Energy Sector

Developing renewable energy is the long-term goal of
an advanced society. In support of the Government's
environmental policy to address climate change, CLP
Power is introducing a Renewable Energy Feed-in Tariff
(FiT) Scheme and Renewable Energy Certificate (RECs)
to encourage low-carbon living and develop RE under the
company's new Scheme of Control Agreement. CLP Power
has been providing consultancy and technical help to those
who are interested in adopting RE in the community,
including a dedicated hotline, grid connection support
service and a streamlined application process. About 300
RE systems are now connected to CLP Power’s grid. The
FiT Scheme is applicable to electricity produced by solar
power systems with a generating capacity of up to 1T MW.
CLP Power will purchase the electricity produced by an
approved RE system once it is successfully connected to
the company’s power grid. A smart meter will be installed
to record the amount of electricity generated by the RE
system.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK (continued)

The Company viewed this as a great business opportunity
with steady profits to the Company. Recently, we have
secured a suitable supplier of solar panels who shares
the same vision of our management that now is the right
moment to penetrate Hong Kong market. In September
2018, we received the approval from CLP Power to start
a FiT scheme for a warehouse in New Territories as a test
run. This test run will provide us with useful information for
business planning, such as precise figures of the installation
cost and time, and the effectiveness of the solar power. We
have identified some areas in the New Territories, but full
scale operation would have to wait until the test run results
are obtained.

CAPITAL REORGANISATION

In September 2017, the Board proposed to implement the
capital reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”),
details of which were set out in the circular of the
Company dated 25 September 2017 (the “Circular”) and
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements in this
report. The shareholders of the Company approved the
Capital Reorganisation at the special general meeting of
the Company held on 18 October 2017 and the Capital
Reorganisation became effective on 26 October 2017 For
details, please refer to the Circular and the announcements
of the Company dated 14 September, 20 September, 10
October, 18 October and 25 October 2017.

ISSUE OF PROMISSORY NOTE

On 19 July 2017, the Company issued promissory note with
principal amount of HK$120,000,000. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 19 July
2017 and note 30 to the consolidated financial statements in
this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Financial Position and Gearing

The Group's financial position remained positive.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had approximately HK$113
million (2017: approximately HK$122 million) liquid
assets made up of deposits, bank balances and cash.
Current assets were approximately HK$304 million (2017:
approximately HK$4,423 million) and current liabilities
amounted to approximately HK$129 million (2017:
approximately HK$294 million). With net current assets
of approximately HK$176 million (2017: approximately
HK$4,130 million), the Group maintained a high level of
financial liquidity. The gearing ratio of the Group, which
calculation was based on the Group's total borrowings
of approximately HK$339.7 million (2017: approximately
HK$203.6 million) and equity attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$48 million (2017:
approximately HK$3,565 million), was 7.1 (2017: 0.057).
The high gearing ratio was largely a result of the significant
reduction in the equity attributable to owners of the
Company resulting from the recognition of the impairment
loss on inventories and the fair value loss on investment
properties. In consideration of the rights issue of the
Company which was completed on 18 July 2018, the
gearing ratio is expected to decrease.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group's total borrowings comprised
bank loan of approximately HK$Nil (2017: approximately
HK$3.6 million), other borrowing of approximately
HK$280 million (2017: HK$200 million), margin loans of
approximately HK$2.7 million (2017: HK$Nil) and promissory
note payable of approximately HK$57.0 million (2017:
HKS$Nil), approximately HK$54.0 million was repayable
within one year and approximately HK$285.7 million
would be repayable in the second year (2017: all was
repayable within one year). Finance costs for the year
were approximately HK$50.6 million (2017: approximately
HK$12.0 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

(continued)

Fund Raising Activities

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group completed
a series of fund raising exercises to strengthen its financial
position and raised total gross proceeds of approximately
HK$198.3 million, with the net proceeds therefrom having
been applied as follows:

HERIUERMBER (4

HE_T-\FRAZTHLFE AEETK—
FIBMER M - AR BN - BEAEHIAL
#849198,300,0007% 7T - E 15 RIS F M A& a0
T~

Date of Fund raising Net proceeds Intended use of
announcement activity raised proceeds Actual use of proceeds
EEZ
AEBH REED RENERE FENERERE FEREERAR
26 July 2017 Placing of new Approximately As general working (i) Approximately HK$36.1 million has been utilized for
—E—+tF ordinary shares HK$129.7 million capital of the redemption of a promissory note;
tAZ+RA under general  #)129,700,000% 7T  Group and for #36,100,000 TE BRER AR RE

mandate
RE—RER
&ML AR

development of the
existing and future
projects of the
Group

RIERREY —REE
BeRERAREL
BERKKIER
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(ii)

(iii)

Approximately HK$63.6 million has been utilized as general
working capital of the Group as follows:
#63,600,0008 TE U T IR BIEAREN —REEES

Use of proceeds Amount

FERERRE k2]
(HK$'000)
(F&7)

Audit fee 2,785

ENER

Directors' fee and salary 3,848

ESHeRES

General operating expenses 18,697

—REERX

Legal and professional fee 7443

EREREXER

Payment of interest on loans 19,824

BRENME
Rental fee, management fee &

government rates 3,438
HeER EEBAKEM
Staff salary 7515
8I%¢
Total: 63,550
fEt:

Approximately HK$30.0 million has been utilised for
investment in Hong Kong listed securities for medium to
long time periods (Note).

#930,000,0008 TEBR R RABTE L MEHRE (HiZ) -

Note: In April 2018, due to the change in market condition
and the Group's business strategies, the Group
changed its intention to hold the investment from
medium to long term investment to short term
investment for trading purposes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

(continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

HERIUERMBER (4

E&TE (&)

Date of Fund raising Net proceeds Intended use of
announcement activity raised proceeds Actual use of proceeds
ERZ
DFEH RETH FEREFH FERERTERAR FEREERAR
15 December 2017  Placing of new Approximately As general working Approximately HK$25 million was utilized for repayment of loan
e o3 ordinary shares HK$63.6 million capital of the due to Guangdong Finance Limited, HK$12.7 million was utilized
+-A+EA under general #163,600,000/% 7T Group and for for repayment of loan due to a previous substantial shareholder,

mandate
BE—KEE
B&E L BAR

development of

the existing and

future projects

of the Group and

reduction of short-

term debts
BEAEEZ-REE

BeRERASEZ

BERARER A

REIRERES

HK$1.9 million was utilized for repayment of interest on loans,
HK$14.5 million was utilised as general working capital of the
Group and the remaining amount of HK$9.5 million (which is kept
as bank deposits in Hong Kong) will be used for development of the
existing and future projects of the Group and reduction of short-
term debts.

#)25,000,0008 TEARNBEENEREEARARZEN
12,700,000/ 7.2 AR EE AT+ ZMRR 2 F 7+ 1,900,000 T E AR
BEEMFS  14,500,0008 TEREAEE —REBESRBE
9,500,000 7T (R ERFERTHFHR) BANERAKERE RAK
EAARAIREBER -

Set out below is a further breakdown of the use of the HK$14.5
million as general working capital of the Group:
TXHEAREAEE—REEEE/014,500,000/8 TH#E —HHM

Use of proceeds Amount

RERERE k2
(HK$'000)
(F#7)

Audit fee 440

ERER

Directors’ fee and salary 1,245

EE G E 5

General operating expenses 1,414

—REERX

Legal and professional fee 775

FEREEER

Rental, management fee & government rates 3,055

e ERERREN

Staff salary 7542

BI¥¢

Total: 14,471

Mt
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

(continued)
Treasury Policy

The Group is committed to manage its financial resources
prudently and to maintain a positive liquid financial position
with reasonable gearing. The Group finances its operation
and business development by a combination of internally
generated resources, capital market instruments and
banking facilities.

All the borrowings were used by subsidiaries of the
Company in the form of fixed loan, margin loans and
promissory notes. As all the Group's borrowings were
denominated in their local currencies, the currency risk
exposure associated with them was insignificant.

The Group does not engage in any speculative derivatives
or structured product transactions, interest rate or foreign
exchange speculative activities. It is the Group's policy to
manage foreign exchange risk through matching foreign
exchange income with expense and, where exposure
to foreign exchange is anticipated, appropriate hedging
instruments will be used.

Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2018, the Group did not have any capital
commitments (2017: HK$1 million).

Charges

As at 30 June 2018, the margin loan of the Group of
approximately HK$2.7 million was secured by the Group's
listed equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
with an aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$81.6
million and the other borrowing of the Group of HK$280
million was secured by personal guarantee provided by Mr.
Cheng Yang (a previous Director who resigned on 15 August
2017) and Ms. Wong Man Winny (an executive Director
and chairperson of the Board) and all the 128,137,958
shares of Kantone owned by the Company, representing
approximately 64.94% of the issued share capital of
Kantone. Mr. Cheng Yang ceased to be the guarantor with
effect from 5 July 2018. Besides, certain property, plant
and equipment of the Group with the aggregate carrying
amounts of approximately HK$10.9 million have been
pledged as securities for the defined benefit retirement
scheme of certain subsidiaries operated in UK.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any

charges on assets as at 30 June 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

(continued)
Contingent liabilities

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2017: Nil).

Significant investments held, material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, and future plans
for material investments or capital assets

On 19 July 2017 Honest City Enterprises Limited (the
“Purchaser”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Wealth Track Asia Limited (the “Vendor”),
Mr. Yeung Chi Hang and Golden Field Property Limited
(the “Target Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
collectively, the “Target Group”) entered into the sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which, the Purchaser
has conditionally agreed to acquire the 5,100,000 ordinary
shares in the Target Company (the “Sale Shares”) and the
Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell the Sale Shares at
the consideration which shall be satisfied by payment of
HK$30,000,000 and the issue of the promissory note in the
total principal sum of HK$120,000,000 by the Company to
the Vendor. Upon completion, the Target Group will become
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company and
accordingly, the financial information of the Target Group
will be consolidated into the accounts of the Group. Further
details of are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 19 July 2017

Save for the acquisition as disclosed above and in note 39
to the consolidated financial statements in this report and
the disposal of subsidiaries as disclosed in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements in this report respectively,
there were no significant investments held, no material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures during the year ended 30 June 2018.

There is no plan for other material investments or additions
of capital assets as at the date of this report.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. WONG Man Winny, aged 44, has been an executive
Director and the Chairperson of the Board since October
2017. She is currently an executive director and the
Chairperson of the board of directors of Kantone. Ms.
Wong served as the licensed representative of Business
Securities Limited from 2003 to 2004. She has over 10
years experience in corporate management and investment.
Ms. Wong is the sole director of Worldwide Peace Limited,
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company which
falls to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. LIU Ka Lim, aged 62, has been an executive Director
and an authorised representative of the Company since
October 2016. He has over 30 years of professional
experience in the field of finance and accounting. He is a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is also a member of the
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. Mr. Liu is
currently an executive director of Kantone and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. During March 2004 to
August 2006, Mr. Liu was the Chairperson of Galileo Capital
Group Limited (now known as Sun International Group
Limited), a company listed on the GEM Board of the Stock
Exchange. During October 2003 to March 2006, Mr. Liu was
the Chairperson of Wonderful World Holdings Limited (now
known as Good Resources Holdings Limited), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. During
January 2011 to June 2013, Mr. Liu was a non-executive
director of United Pacific Industries Limited (now known as
Superactive Group Company Limited), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica, aged 38, has been a non-
executive Director since July 2017 Ms. To is currently a
Barrister-at-Law. Ms. To holds a postgraduate certificate
in laws from University of Hong Kong and a graduate
diploma in English and Hong Kong law from Manchester
Metropolitan University. Ms. To was admitted as a barrister
of the High Court of HKSAR in 2009. Ms. To has about 9
years of experience in the legal field. Ms. To is currently
a non-executive director of Kantone and a director of
Multitone.

Mr. CHAN Sung Wai, aged 70, has been a non-executive
Director since November 2017 Mr. Chan has extensive
experience in the trading, real estate and shipping
industries. He also has extensive experience in financial and
media business. He has been working for a number of years
in major media companies in Hong Kong, and responsible
for covering, editing and writing commentaries. Mr. Chan
has also been a chief editor of the petroleum magazine
and has profound knowledge in the oil and media industry
in Asia. Mr. Chan was an executive director of Grand Field
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 115) during the period
from November 2007 to June 2008, Energy International
Investments Holdings Limited (stock code: 353) during the
period from November 2008 to April 2011, Asia Resources
Holdings Limited (stock code: 899) for the period from
October 2008 to September 2012 and Karce International
Holdings Company Limited (now known as Starlight Culture
Entertainment Group Limited) (stock code: 1159) during the
period from April 2009 to June 2014, all of which are listed
on Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was the deputy
Chairman of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (stock code:
899) for the period from January 2009 to September 2012.
He was also an independent non-executive director of Pearl
Oriental Oil Limited (stock code: 632) for the period from
December 2017 to June 2018.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LEUNG Man Fai, aged 54, has been an independent
non-executive Director since June 2017. Mr. Leung has
extensive experience in accounting and finance. Mr. Leung
is currently an independent non-executive director of
Kantone. Mr. Leung served as a financial controller and
company secretary of a private company during 2003 to
2006. From 1996 to 2003, he served various roles including
financial controller, company secretary and finance manager
in several listed companies within the ITC Corporation
Limited (now known as PT International Development
Corporation Limited) (stock code: 372), the shares of which
are listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He also
worked as a senior accountant during 1992 to 1996 in
Hopewell Holdings Limited (stock code: 54), the shares
of which are listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Leung had also been an independent non-executive
director of China Aluminum Cans Holdings Limited (stock
code: 6898), the shares of which are listed on Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, during the period from June 2013 to
June 2016. Currently, Mr. Leung is the chief financial officer
and company secretary of Da Ming International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1090), the shares of which are listed
on Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Leung received
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. CHAN Yik Hei, aged 28, has been an independent non-
executive Director since June 2017 Mr. Chan graduated
from Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
2011 with a bachelor's degree in Electronic & Computer
Engineering. Mr. Chan is a young inventor and entrepreneur
in Hong Kong. In 2004, he won the Second Award in
Engineering Category in the 55th Intel International Science
and Engineering Fair in the United States of America for his
invention of a smart security robot. An asteroid no. 20780
was named after him. In 2006, Mr. Chan’s autobiography
Chan Yik Hei, The Young Man Who Grabbed The Star* (i
E VFR S %H)was published, and became one of the
bestsellers on the Hong Kong Book Fair. He was also the
torchbearer of the 54th Olympic torch relay in Hong Kong
and a member of the management committee of The Church
of Christ in China Tam Lee Lai Fun Memorial Secondary
School. In 2016, he was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star
by the HKSAR Government. Mr. Chan is one of the founding
shareholders of Bull.B Technology Limited, which provides
(i) online platform and development services; and (ii)
mobile application development services, including FinTech
platform development and educational apps.

Mr. WONG Yuk Man Edmand, aged 62, has been an
independent non-executive Director since March 2018.
During January 2004 to August 2006, Mr. Wong was an
independent non-executive director of Sun International
Group Limited (formerly known as Galileo Capital Group
Limited) (stock code: 8029), the shares of which are traded
on the GEM board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of
British Columbia. Formerly a foreign correspondent, he
has held various key communications roles in government
agencies, the Hong Kong Jockey Club, a major international
charity, and tertiary academic institutions. He is currently
responsible for public relations and communications at an
educational institution.

*  For identification purpose only
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Wai, aged 49, has been the company secretary
of the Company since October 2016, and he is also the
chief financial officer and an authorised representative
of the Company. Mr. Chan has 26 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. Mr. Chan holds
a master degree in Professional Accounting awarded by
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
an associate of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Mr. Chan is currently the chief financial
officer, company secretary and an authorised representative
of Kantone and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen Alan GENTRY, aged 62, is the Head of
International Business at Kantone and the Chief Executive
of Multitone, with responsibilities for formulating the
overall policy and development strategy for the Group's
international operations. He is also a director of several
of the Group's subsidiaries. He joined the Group in 1988
as financial accountant of the UK operations, and has
considerable experience working for the Group's various
European and American operations. He has been the Chief
Executive of Multitone since 2003 and is a member of the
Institute of Directors.

Mr. Frank ROTTHOFF, aged 55, is the Managing Director
of German operations at Kantone. He joined the Group in
2008 and has extensive experience in sales and marketing
management in the electronics industry. His earlier career
covered international sales of industrial machinery and
process technology before entering the semiconductor
sector in 1989. He was responsible for the sales and
marketing of a leading European distributor of electronic
components before joining the Group.

Mr. Terry John MILLER, aged 79, has been a consultant
of the Group since March 2017 Previously, he held
the position of Deputy Chief Executive at Hong Kong
Telecommunications Limited, and was the Regional Director,
Asia/Pacific, of Cable & Wireless PLC. He is a fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and is the former president of the Hong Kong Institute of
the International Association of Financial Executives.
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The Directors would like to present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in trading of goods
including telecommunication equipment and licensing
(including sales of systems products, software licensing
and customisation and provision of services and leasing
of systems products, including smart communication
solutions), cultural products and securities investments.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business objectives of the Group are to develop its
business so as to achieve sustainable growth. The Group
aims to achieve such objectives by pursuing the following

growth-oriented strategies: (i) broadening the customer
base of the systems sales, lease and licensing business
of the Group; (ii) improving the trading business of the
Group; (iii) restructuring its property portfolio and tapping

into the PRC property sector; and (iv) further expansion
of its business in the technology sector by developing the
renewable energy field in Hong Kong.

A review of the businesses of the Group during the year
based on the financial indicators and a discussion on the
Group's future business development are provided in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this report. Particulars of important events affecting the
Company that have occurred since the end of the financial
year ended 30 June 2018 are set out in the section headed
"Events after the Reporting Period” in this report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group's financial condition, results of operations,
businesses and prospects may be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties. The followings are the key risks and
uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be other
risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown below
which are not known to the Group or which may not be
material now but could turn out to be material in the future.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Business Risk

The Group conducts business globally and faces business
risks including reputation risks, investment and acquisition
risks, taxation risk and corporate responsibility and
sustainability risks. The Board meets regularly and reviews
the investment and expansion strategies, business plan,
financial results, and key performance indicators of the
Group to ensure that the business risks are controlled and
managed, and potential risks can be identified.

Market Risk

Loss of market share is a market risk encountered by the
Group. The financial position of the Group may be adversely
affected if it fails to respond to market changes resulting to
loss of business to opponents. The Group has professional
sales and client management teams and is committed
to ensure that the existing clients and business will be
retained through competitive quality services and pricing
policy.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. Responsibility for managing operational
risks basically rests with every function at divisional and
departmental levels. The Group recognises that operational
risks cannot be eliminated completely and that it may not
always be cost effective to do so.

Key functions in the Group are guided by their operating
procedures, limits of authority and reporting framework. The
Group will identify and assess key operational exposures
from time to time and report such risk issues to senior
management as early as possible so that appropriate risk
response can be taken.

Financial Risk

The financial risk management of the Group are set out in
note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Legal Risk

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits
or adverse judgments may disrupt or otherwise negatively
affect the operations or financial conditions of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group puts great emphasis in environmental protection
and energy conservation to enhance the capacity of
sustainable development and undertake relative social
responsibility. Through the establishment of an ever-
improving management system, energy conservation and
environment protection were strongly promoted, leading to
the remarkable achievement of environmental management.

Pursuant to Rule 13.91 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”),
the Company will publish an Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") Report within three months after the
publication of this annual report in compliance with the
provision set out in the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 27
to the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELATED LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations, in particular, those
have a significant impact on the Group. Save as otherwise
disclosed and as far as the Board and management are
aware, the Group has complied with all related laws
and regulations in all material aspects which may have
significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group during the year under review.
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RELATIONSHIP OF STAKEHOLDERS

The Company believes that employees, customers
and business partners are the key to have continuous
sustainable development. The Company is committed
to be people-oriented and build up good relationship
with its employees. The Group provides on-the-job
training and development opportunities to enhance its
employees’ career progression. Through different trainings,
staff's professional knowledge in corporate operations,
occupational and management skills are enhanced. The
Group also values the health and well-being of its staff.
In order to provide employees with health coverage, its
employees are entitled to medical insurance with body
check benefits. The Group also works together with its
business partners to provide high quality products and
services to achieve the goal of sustainable development and
contribution to the society.

There was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its distributors and/or customers during the year
under review.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on pages 105 to 106 and
in the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2018 (2017:
nil). Capital will be reserved for the expansion of the
Group's business and to capture investment opportunities
arising in the future. There is no arrangement that a
shareholder of the Company has waived or agreed to waive
any dividend.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

On 26 July 2017, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Get Nice Securities Limited (“Get Nice")
and Head & Shoulders Securities Limited (the “Placing
Agents”), and pursuant to which the Placing Agents have
agreed to place, on a best effort basis, up to an aggregate
of 1,266,356,000 placing shares to the placees at a placing
price of HK$0.105 per placing share, represented a discount
of approximately 19.23% to the closing price of HK$0.1300
per share of the Company as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on the date of the placing agreement, (the “Placing 1”).
The Company considered that it was in the interests of
the Company to raise capital from the equity market in
order to enhance the capital base of the Company. With
the fulfillment of the condition, the Placing | has been
completed and a total of 1,266,356,000 placing shares
at the placing price of HK$0.105 per placing share were
placed to not fewer than six placees on 10 August 2017 To
the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the
Directors having made all reasonable enquiries, the placees
and (where relevant, their ultimate beneficial owners) are
independent of and not connected or acting in concert (as
defined in the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers
(the “Takeovers Code”)) with any connected person of the
Company or its subsidiaries. The Company received net
proceeds of approximately HK$129.7 million, representing
a net price of approximately HK$0.1024 per placing share,
from the Placing | after deducting placing commission and
other fees and expenses. The details of the actual use of
proceeds are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion And Analysis” on pages 9 to 43 in this annual
report.
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SHARES ISSUED (continued)

On 15 December 2017 the Company entered into another
placing agreement with Get Nice, the placing agent, and
pursuant to which Get Nice has agreed to place, on a
best effort basis, up to 75,980,000 placing shares to the
placees at a placing price of HK$0.860 per placing share,
represented a discount of approximately 11.34% to the
closing price of HK$0.970 per share of the Company as
qguoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the placing
agreement, (the “Placing I1"). The Company considered
that it was in the interests of the Company to raise capital
from the equity market in order to enhance the capital base
of the Company. With the fulfillment of the condition, the
Placing Il has been completed and a total of 75,980,000
placing shares at the placing price of HK$0.860 per placing
share were placed to not fewer than six placees on 3
January 2018. To the best of the knowledge, information and
belief of the Directors having made all reasonable enquires,
the placees and (where relevant, their ultimate beneficial
owners) are independent of and not connected or acting
in concert (as defined in the Takeovers Code) with any
connected person of the Company or its subsidiaries. The
Company received net proceeds of approximately HK$63.6
million, representing a net price of approximately HK$0.836
per placing share, from the Placing Il after deducting placing
commission and other fees and expenses. The details of the
actual use of proceeds are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion And Analysis” on pages 9 to 43 in
this annual report.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year under review are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 109 and note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY

Details of the distributable reserve of the Company as
at 30 June 2018 are set out in note 41 to the financial
statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
274.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Company during the
year ended 30 June 2018 amounted to HK$10,000 (2017:
HKS$Nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group during
the year are set out in notes 15 to 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

JOINT VENTURE

Particulars of the Group's joint venture as at 30 June
2018 are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Ms. WONG Man Winny (Chairperson)
(appointed on 19 October 2017)
Mr. LIU Ka Lim
Mr. CHENG Yang (Chairperson) (resigned on 15 August 2017)

Ms. LEI Lei (resigned on 7 July 2017)
Mr. LIN Xiang (resigned on 7 July 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica (appointed on 7 July 2017)
Mr. CHAN Sung Wai (appointed on 22 November 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Man Fai

Mr. CHAN Yik Hei

Mr. WONG Yuk Man Edmand (appointed on 8 March 2018)
Mr. ZHANG Jingzhi (retired on 28 December 2017)

Mr. DONG Limin (resigned on 11 July 2017)

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”), one-third of the Directors for
the time being, (or if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation so that each Director shall be
subject to retirement at least once every three years.

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, any
Director appointed by the Board at any time either to fill a
casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election at that meeting.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation) as at
the date of this report.
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON
DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1)
OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes
in information of the Directors are set out below:

(@) The director emolument for Ms. To Yin Fong Cecilica,
a non-executive Director, in her capacity as a non-
executive director of the Company and Kantone was
renewed to HK$40,000 per month respectively with
effect from 1 March 2018.

(b)  Mr. CHAN Sung Wai, a non-executive Director, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Pearl Oriental Qil Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange) with effect from
December 2017 until June 2018.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in the
Directors’ information required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Each of the Company and its subsidiary, Kantone, has a
share option scheme under which eligible persons, including
directors of the Company, Kantone or any of their respective
subsidiaries, may be granted options to subscribe for shares
of the Company and Kantone respectively.

Details of the share option schemes of the Company and
Kantone are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

No share option has been granted since the adoption of the
share option schemes of the Company and Kantone.

Other than the share option schemes described in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time
during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries, holding
companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 June 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying share and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “"SFO"))
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code") as set forth
under Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

EECZRSFEERAR

S

RZZE-NFRA=Z+TB REEHLHPEKH
(IBERAEKRD ) FEI26REARBATHE
B2 EMAAE  HBE LR A E107E £
METABEFETESFXZNEETR ([BRETF
B AARRRBMZMAITELHZBN EFR
RRAREBITHABEARR A E E M H 8 EE
(EEREBFRHBGOIEXVER) 2 B HER
DREFTHEBEZERRRBWT:

Approximate

percentage*
of the issued
Name of Director Capacity Number of shares share capital
HERTREAZ

Espg 546 K& E BAB D>
Ms. Wong Man Winny Interest of controlled corporation 41,802,500 (L)Mete 1 (iz1) 9.17%

Bz T REHEERR

Interest of controlled corporation 20,901,250 (L)Note 2 (1i2) 4.58%

XEGEEER
Notes:

1. These 41,802,500 shares are held by Worldwide Peace
Limited. Ms. Wong Man Winny, an executive Director, owns
the entire issued share capital of Worldwide Peace Limited.
Therefore, Ms. Wong Man Winny is deemed to be interested
in the shares held by Worldwide Peace Limited under the
SFO.

2. Pursuant to the irrevocable undertaking letters dated 30 May
2018 given by each of Ms. Wong Man Winny and Worldwide
Peace Limited, each of Ms. Wong Man Winny and Worldwide
Peace Limited has irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken
to the Company and the underwriters, among other things,
to accept the aggregate of 20,901,250 rights shares to be
provisionally allotted to Worldwide Peace Limited pursuant to
the terms of the rights issue.

3. The letter “L" denotes the Director’'s long position in the
shares of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

* The percentage represents the number of shares involved
divided by the number of the Company's issued shares as at
30 June 2018.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in
Part XV of the SFO) as at 30 June 2018 as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party
Transactions” below, no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, its subsidiaries, holding company
and any of their subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is interested in any business apart
from the Group’s business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party
Transactions” below, no contract of significance has been
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and the controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Group did not conduct any
non-exempt connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group had entered
into certain transactions with parties which were regarded
as "Related Parties” under the applicable accounting
principles. Details of those related party transactions are
set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
The transactions which are considered as connected
transactions under the Listing Rules are further disclosed in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

As at 30 June 2018, the following person (other than the
interests of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
disclosed in the paragraph headed "“Directors’ interests
and short positions in securities” above) had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

REBEFERN AEELERE ETRAE4AE
ETEMNTERE AEXFHAFEWERS

BEEALRS

REEZT-NFAA=ZTHLEFEARN KREHHR
REERGAENRERBEAL] Z AL
ETRG -ZEBEALIRGHABHNGEE UK
RT3 - Z X HGIRE ETRAUERASHEER
2 BRRE MR 38T E — P E -

\LN

FTERR

RZZE-N\FRA=ZTH BREEFLAEGRDIE
BBHHREARRATREFZELMARLE T
AL (EXTESZBRRERAR] —BRTKE
RRABEZHITHRE 2 BRI RAR B Z K
D REEEOTREAERIRA

Approximate

percentage*
Number of of the issued
Name Capacity shares share capital
HEBRITREAZ
78 514 BRoEE WMABED*
Worldwide Peace Limited Beneficial owner 41,802,500 (L) 9.17%
EFBRAA EmEBA
Beneficial owner 20,901,250 (L)Mete 1 (fiz1) 4.58%
EnEAA
Poon Tak Chun Paul Beneficial owner 36,075,000 (L) 791 %
EEE EmEBA
Get Nice Securities Limited Underwriter 124,225,420 (L)Mote 2and 3) (KE2R3) 27.25%

RUBEHFARA BHA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER (continued) FERRK (@)
Approximate
percentage*
Number of of the issued
Name Capacity shares share capital
HERTREAZ
g =27 BRoEAE BABED
Get Nice Incorporated Interest of controlled corporation 124,225,420 (L)Nete 2and 3) (ffit2k3) 27.25%
REEEE R
Get Nice Financial Group Limited Interest of controlled corporation 124,225,420 (L)Nete 2and 3 (Hit2k23) 27.25%
REESEBRE R
Get Nice Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 124,225,420 (L)WNote 2and 3) (Kii22%3) 27.25%
REEEE R
Head & Shoulders Underwriter 82,816,946 (L)Mote 2and 4) (Hit2k4) 18.17%
Securities Limited BIHE
e ELFBRAT
Master Gold Limited Interest of controlled corporation 82,816,946 (L)Mote 2and 4) (fizi25k4) 18.17%
REESEB R E R
Trinity Union Limited Interest of controlled corporation 82,816,946 (L)MNete 2and 4) (Hiz2x4) 18.17%
REEGEE R R
Head & Shoulders Financial Interest of controlled corporation 82,816,946 (L)Mote 2and 4) (fizi25k4) 18.17%
Group (Holdings) Limited REEGEZENER
Endless Source Limited Interest of controlled corporation 82,816,946 (L)MNete 2and 4) (Hiz2x4) 18.17%
REEGEE R R
Choi Chiu Fai Stanley Interest of controlled corporation 82,816,946 (L)Mote 2and 4) (fizi25k4) 18.17%
EEAE REESEB R E R
Cheung Fung Kuen Maggie Interest of controlled corporation 82,816,946 (L)MNete 2and 4) (Hiz2x4) 18.17%

RELE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER (continued)

Notes:

1. Pursuant to the irrevocable undertaking letters dated 30 May
2018 given by each of Ms. Wong Man Winny and Worldwide
Peace Limited, each of Ms. Wong Man Winny and Worldwide
Peace Limited has irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken
to the Company and the underwriters, among other things,
to accept the aggregate of 20,901,250 rights shares to be
provisionally allotted to Worldwide Peace Limited pursuant to
the terms of the rights issue.

2. Pursuant to the underwriting agreement dated 30 May 2018
entered into between the Company, Get Nice Securities
Limited and Head & Shoulders Securities Limited (as the
underwriters) in relation to the rights issue, 124,225,420
underwritten shares shall be underwritten by Get Nice
Securities Limited and 82,816,946 underwritten shares shall
be underwritten by Head & Shoulders Securities Limited.

3. Get Nice Securities Limited is wholly owned by Get Nice
Incorporated, which is in turn wholly owned by Get Nice
Financial Group Limited, which is in turn owned as to 72.99%
by Get Nice Holdings Limited.

4. Head & Shoulders Securities Limited is wholly owned by
Master Gold Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by Trinity
Union Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by Head &
Shoulders Financial Group (Holdings) Limited, which is in
turn wholly owned by Endless Source Limited, which is in
turn owned as to 50% by Choi Chiu Fai Stanley and 50% by
Cheung Fung Kuen Maggie. Cheung Fung Kuen Maggie is the
spouse of Choi Chiu Fai Stanley.

5. The letter “L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in the
shares of the Company.

* The percentage represents the number of shares of the
Company involved divided by the number of the Company’s
issued shares as at 30 June 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2018, according to
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO, there was no person who
had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2018

FERER (&)

Brat -

1. REESZEIREFERAGDSEMBELAHA
ZE- N\FRAZTAZTAREAG G B8
ZETREFERARNSEHEMARRREHEE AT
BUH R EEEARE (AT EE) BERREBRHR 21K
FEERETEFHRAR.ZE 20,901,250/ #t
ARAR 5 °

2. WRERAR BT ELFBERARMBEEEFLFBRA
Al (EABHEEIR-_E—\ERA=+tHTIE
BAEHKR M B 124,225,420 B # R 1D FE M
HEITEHFBR AR M82,816,9460% £ 85X 15
EEBAEHFERQAIEHE-

3. 47 E %5 B R A Al HGet Nice Incorporated®

&¥EA - MGet Nice Incorporatedf|f Get Nice
Financial Group Limited® & # & * Get Nice
Financial Group LimitedB!|# Get Nice Holdings
Limited#572.99% °

4. %4 & 5 AR QA AMaster Gold Limited® &

%A > MMaster Gold Limited8| g Trinity Union
Limited®&# & * M Trinity Union Limitedfi Head
& Shoulders Financial Group (Holdings) Limited
2% %AB  MHead & Shoulders Financial Group
(Holdings) Limitedfl/# Endless Source Limited
2> &¥EH - MEndless Source Limited8l| 1 £ EA1E
HHES0% R KB REIBHEAS0 % - RBEIBA
ZEAE )AL S o

5. FHILIXRTBRRRARBBRDTEIFE -

* B BT R A AK R FR 17 BB B AL AR
—E-NENAZTHNEETTHA R -

BEXHEEEN RZZ-N\FXA=1TH &
AR BZAREEZ L BERPIFE336 15 R1TF 2
AECH HEALRARR Z RO AN F
BAREBEREF R EHEIIBEXVEFE25M37 78 2 15
XAMARBRE 2 EMBHEIAER



CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company and its subsidiaries had no outstanding
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights as
at 30 June 2018.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed the Company's listed securities during the year
ended 30 June 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of
their holding of the Company’s securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group sells its products to customers, some of
whom act as its distributors, and purchases materials and
components from suppliers, some of whom act as its
merchandisers.

For the year ended 30 June 2018, sales to the Group's five
largest customers, on individual entity basis, accounted
for approximately 19.3% of the total revenue for the year
and sales to the largest customer, on individual entity
basis, included therein amounted to approximately 4.5%.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers, on
individual entity basis, accounted for approximately 70.9%
of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier, on individual entity basis, included therein
amounted to approximately 25.7%.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholders, which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital,
had any interest in the share capital of the five largest
customers or suppliers of the Company.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2018, the Group employed about 220
staff around the globe. Staff costs for the year ended
30 June 2018 were approximately HK$94 million (2017:
approximately HK$99 million).

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is
determined with reference to market terms and the
performance, qualifications and experience of the individual
employee.

Emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of the
Company after considering factors such as the Company's
operating results, individual performance, salaries paid
by comparable companies, and time commitment and
responsibilities of the position.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees. Details of the
scheme are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of
this report, there is sufficient public float of not less than
25% of the Company's issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which may incur or sustain
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty,
in their respective offices or trusts, provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any Directors.
Such permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the
Directors was in force during the year and remained in force
as of the date of this report.

The Group has taken out a directors’ liability insurance to
cover Directors’ liabilities to third parties. During the year
ended 30 June 2018, no claims were made against the
Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed in this
report, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing Shares, or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares, were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the remuneration paid by the Group to the
Directors of the Company and senior management of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2018 are set out in note
10 to the financial statements.
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EVENTS AFTERTHE REPORTING PERIOD

On 18 July 2018, the Company completed a rights issue
on the basis of one rights share for every two existing
shares held on the record date at a subscription price of
HK$0.40 per rights share (the “Rights Issue”). A total
number of 227,943,616 rights shares were issued with
net proceeds of approximately HK$86.7 million (equivalent
to a net price of approximately HK$0.38 per rights share)
which will be used (i) as to approximately HK$50 million for
repayment of loan due to Guangdong Finance Limited under
a facility agreement entered into between the Company

and Guangdong Finance Limited; (ii) as to approximately
HK$15 million for investment on internet communication
projects of the Group; and (iii) as to approximately

HK$21.7 million for administrative expenses and operation
expenses, including without limitation salaries and office
rental expenses, and payment of interest of borrowings.
For details, please refer to the prospectus of the Company
dated 25 June 2018 and the announcements of the
Company dated 30 May 2018, 12 June 2018 and 17 July
2018 in relation to the Rights Issue.

Details of events after the reporting period are set out in
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no significant event affecting the
Group occurred subsequent to 30 June 2018.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as auditor of the
Company on 16 August 2016. On 17 August 2016, the
Company appointed Moore Stephens CPA Limited as auditor
for the year ended 30 June 2016. On 28 December 2017,
Moore Stephens CPA Limited was reappointed as auditor of
the Company for the year ended 30 June 2018.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Moore
Stephens CPA Limited as auditor of the Company for the
year ending 30 June 2019.

By order of the Board

Ms. WONG MAN WINNY
CHAIRPERSON

Hong Kong
27 September 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The Board and the senior management of the Company
are committed to establishing good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The maintenance of high
standard of business ethics and corporate governance
practices has always been one of the Group's goals. The
Company believes that good corporate governance provides
a framework that is essential for effective management,
successful business growth and a healthy corporate culture,
thereby leading to the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, sound internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders. By
applying rigorous corporate governance practices, the Group
believes that its accountability and transparency will be
improved thereby instilling confidence to shareholders and
the public. The Company has been conducting its business
according to the principles of the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules during the year ended 30 June 2018.

Throughout the financial year ended 30 June 2018, the
Group has complied with the code provisions in the CG
Code save for the deviation of code provisions A.4.1 and
E.1.2 of the CG Code, details of which will be explained
in the relevant paragraphs in this report. The Board will
review its corporate governance practice annually and
make necessary changes if necessary. Meetings were held
throughout the year under review and where appropriate,
circulars and other guidance notes were issued to Directors
and senior management of the Group to ensure that they
were aware of issues regarding corporate governance
practices.
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THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group's business, strategic
decisions and performances and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. In practice, the Board takes
responsibility for decision making in all major matters of
the Company including the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, the setting of objectives, annual budgets and
overall strategies, the entering into material transactions,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial
and operational matters. The day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Company are delegated
to the senior executives and the management. Their
responsibilities include the implementation of decisions
made by the Board, the co-ordination and direction of day-
to-day operation and management of the Company in
accordance with the management strategies and plans
approved by the Board. The Board receives full support
from senior executives to discharge its responsibility.
Prior approval has to be obtained from the Board before
entering into any significant transactions. The statement of
the auditors of the Company in relation to their reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 94 to
104 of this report.

Composition

The composition of the Board during the year and up to the
date of this report was as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. WONG Man Winny (Chairperson)
(appointed on 19 October 2017)
Mr. LIU Ka Lim
Mr. CHENG Yang (Chairperson) (resigned on 15 August 2017)

Ms. LEI Lei (resigned on 7 July 2017)
Mr. LIN Xiang (resigned on 7 July 2017)
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THE BOARD (continued)
Composition (continued)
Non-executive Directors

Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica (appointed on 7 July 2017)
Mr. CHAN Sung Wai (appointed on 22 November 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Man Fai

Mr. CHAN Yik Hei

Mr. WONG Yuk Man Edmand (appointed on 8 March 2018)
Mr. ZHANG Jingzhi (retired on 28 December 2017)

Mr. DONG Limin (resigned on 11 July 2017)

One of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate accounting and financial management expertise.
The number of independent non-executive Directors is more
than one-third of the Board. Biographical details of the other
Directors are set out in the paragraph headed “Directors
and senior management profile” on pages 44 to 48 of this
report.

The presence of three independent non-executive Directors
is considered by the Board to be a reasonable balance
between executive and non-executive Directors. The
Board is of the opinion that such balance can provide
adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and of the Group. The independent non-
executive Directors provide to the Group with a wide
range of expertise and experience so that independent
judgement can be exercised effectively. They have also
participated in Board meetings and general meetings,
dealt with potential conflicts of interest, served on audit
committee, human resources and remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Company and scrutinized
the Group's performance and reporting. Through their active
participation, the management process of the Company can
be critically reviewed and controlled.
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THE BOARD (continued)
Composition (continued)

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their
field of expertise, and have exhibited high standards of
personal and professional ethics and integrity. All Directors
have given sufficient time and attention to the Company's
affairs. The Board believes that the ratio between executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors is
reasonable and adequate to perform check and balance
function over the Board in the decision-making process.

The Board is responsible for the appointment of new
Director and nomination for re-election by shareholders at
the annual general meeting of the Company. Under the Bye-
laws, the Board may from time to time appoint a Director
either to fill a vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any
new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office until the next
annual general meeting after his/her appointment and shall
then be eligible for re-election at such meeting.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

The role of Chairman is being performed by Ms. Wong
Man Winny, who is also being an executive Director, and
she is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
development of the Group and the effective functioning and
leadership of the Board.

The Company has no such title as the Chief Executive
Officer and therefore the daily operation and management
of the Company has been monitored by the executive
Directors as well as the senior management.

The Board is of the view that although there is no Chief
Executive Officer, the balance of power and authority is
ensured by the operation of the Board, which comprises
experienced individuals and who meet from time to time to
look after the operations of the Company.
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INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and each of them has declared fulfilment of all the
guidelines for assessing independence in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Company
considers that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as
such in all corporate communications containing the names
of the Directors. In addition, there is no material relationship
between Board members.

DEVIATION FROM THE CG CODE

Throughout the year ended 30 June 2018, the Company has
complied with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, save and except the following deviations:

(@)  Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all
non-executive Directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. Whilst the non-
executive Directors are not appointed for a specific
term, the term of office for non-executive Directors
is subject to retirement from office by rotation and
is eligible for re-election in accordance with the
provisions of the Bye-laws. At each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being, (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation so that each
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once
every three years. As such, the Company considers
that such provision is sufficient to meet the underlying
objectives of CG Code.

(b)  Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the
chairman of the Board should attend the annual
general meeting. Due to other unexpected events, Ms.
Wong Man Winny, the chairperson of the Board, was
out of town and was unable to attend the 2017 annual
general meeting held on 28 December 2017.
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NON-COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 3.10(1)
AND 3.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules,
every board of directors of a listed issuer must include
at least three independent non-executive directors and
the audit committee must comprise a minimum of three
members. Following the retirement of Mr. Zhang Jingzhi as
an independent non-executive Director and a member of
the audit committee of the Company with effect from 28
December 2017 the number of independent non-executive
Directors fell below the minimum number of three as
required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, and the
number of members of the audit committee of the Company
fell below the minimum number prescribed under Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules. Following of the appointment of Mr.
Wong Yuk Man Edmand as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of the audit committee of the
Company with effect from 8 March 2018, the Company has
been in compliance with the relevant requirements under
the Listing Rules.

BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
MEETINGS

The Board regularly meets in person or through other
electronic means of communication at least four times
every year to determine the overall strategic direction,
objectives and to approve interim results, annual results or
other significant matters. Draft notice and agenda for regular
meetings are provided to all Directors for comments and
inclusion of any matters for deliberation at the meetings.
Apart from holding regular meetings, senior management
from time to time provides to the Directors information on
activities and development of the business of the Group.
The company secretary assists the Chairman in preparing
agenda for the meetings and ensures that all applicable
rules and regulations in connection with the meetings
are observed and complied with. Except for ad hoc Board
meetings to deal with urgent issues, the agenda and Board
papers are then sent to all Directors at least 3 days prior
to the meeting. The company secretary also takes detailed
minutes, keeps records of matters discussed and decision
resolved at the meetings.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS' ESEERRRERE @)
MEETINGS (continued)
Directors’ attendances in the general meetings and the REEARTIRRIRASERESE BEXZET .
meetings of the Board, audit committee, human resources ANERRFNEZEE S REZEEURKEZE
and remuneration committee, nomination committee and EEHILESHEBERAINGAT
investment committee held during the year are set out
below:
Human
Resources and
Audit Remuneration Nomination Investment Annual Special
Committee Committee Committee Committee General General
Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/
Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible
Name of Directors to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend
BHE/
BitiE/ BiE/ RERLEZ BitiE/ Bitik/ BitiR/ BitE/
RERLEZ RERUEZ ANERR AEREEZ AREREREZ RERUEZ REREEZ
Esng ESeen FNZEEEE FMWZES9EE REZEE9E REZEEEE REBEAE RREHAE

Executive Directors

YiTES

Ms. WONG Man Winny (Chairperson)

(appointed on 19 October 2017) 8/12 - - - - 01 -
ERRL(2E)

(RZZ—tETATNBEZH)
Mr. LIU Ka Lim 1919 - - - 5/5 mn n
BRELE

Mr. CHENG Yang (Chairperson)

(resigned on 15 August 2017) 33 = - - - _ _
BREE(LE)

(RZE—+ENATLEEE)

Ms. LEI Lei
(resigned on 7 July 2017) 0/0 = = . - _ _
BERL (RS- CFLALARH)

Mr. LIN Xiang

(resigned on 7 July 2017) 0/0 = = . - _ _
HEERE (RIS tELAEHET)
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS' EEEEERREARE @
MEETINGS (continued)
Human
Resources and
Audit Remuneration Nomination Investment Annual Special
Committee Committee Committee Committee General General
Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/
Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible
Name of Directors to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend
Bk
BiliE/ BitE/ RERLEZ BitE/ BitiE/ BiliE/ BiE/
RERERZ SERNEZ ANERR GERLEZ REREEZ SERNEEZ SEBUEZ
B=pg EZ88E BNZEEEE FMZESEE REZE99E REZEEEE REBEAE RREHAE
Non-Executive Directors
F9TES
Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica
(appointed on 7 July 2017) 16/19 - - - - mn n
AL (RZF—tEL AL BEZRE)
Mr. CHAN Sung Wai
(appointed on 22 November 2017) 10/10 - - - - mn -
REExE
(RZE—tE+-A-T-REZf)
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIFHTES
Mr. LEUNG Man Fai 17119 313 4/4 313 5/5 mn n
PNEEE
Mr. CHAN Yik Hei 14119 313 4/4 313 - 0/1 0/
RHHRE
Mr. WONG Yuk Man Edmand
(appointed on 8 March 2018) 3/3 n 0/0 0/0 - - -
EENAE (RZE-NEZANBEZE)
Mr. ZHANG Jingzhi
(retired on 28 December 2017) 112 1" 13 0/2 - 01 01
R KA
(R-B—+E+-A-+NBERE)
Mr. DONG Limin
(resigned on 11 July 2017) 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 - - -

ENRAE(R-F—LFLAT-REE)
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
MEETINGS (continued)

During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss
and formulate the overall strategies of the Group, monitor
financial performances, review the annual and interim
results, and make decisions on significant matters. The
execution of daily operational matters is delegated to the
senior executives of the Group.

The company secretary records the proceedings of each
Board meeting in detail by keeping minutes, including
the record of all decisions resolved by the Board together
with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if
any). Draft Board minutes are circulated to all Directors
for comment and approval as soon as practicable after
the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection at any
reasonable time upon request by any Director.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information
at all times and they may make further enquiries if it is
necessary to do so.

They also have unrestricted access to the advice and
services of the company secretary, who is held responsible
for providing Directors with Board papers and other related
materials. The company secretary also ensures that proper
Board procedures are followed and that all applicable laws
and regulations are complied with. If the Directors consider
necessary and appropriate, they may retain the service of
independent professional advisers at the Group's expense.

In case where a conflict of interest arises involving a
substantial shareholder or a Director, such matter will be
resolved in a physical meeting instead of passing written
resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors with no
conflict of interest will be present at meetings to deal with
such conflict issues.

EEEERRRERE #H)

REZGZEHGHET EFHIRHEAERZ
ERERE ERUBERR FHRFERTHER
RREREEFHAK ARLEEHELERTA
SERRITHRABRIT

RAWERBEST SR IEEEFEFAZE
FLE BRELBEFEMIRZIABARE UKk
iRz BT EERREZREER (1F) - &
FEQRCHINBREREEERER  RIEATT
ZIERTERBEXTE2RES UHKRERLTER
REY - EAEFGAEEA S IEEHEEREMA
BEHae

PREFHUECARDREABRTER Ok
EREBEY TR E—SER-

BEMATZREEME XA WE 2B R RRE -
ARAMNEEENEFRUESEXH R EMARH
M- ARWETRREBEREEIERF UK
BT UERZRRER WEERREFENE
B REUERBUEEERREHRE ERAH
REBEAS -

H—2EZRRIESFEAENEER  EREESK
RBSEHLER MIPBBEERFERAR L
BENGEERZBIFATEESSHEERIUR
BREEHRER-
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
MEETINGS (continued)

The Board committees, including the audit committee,
the human resources and remuneration committee, the
nomination committee and the investment committee, have
all adopted the applicable practices and procedures used in
Board meetings.

The annual general meeting and other special general
meetings of the Company are the primary forum for
communication with its shareholders and for shareholders’
participation. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the
general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings on their behalves if they are unable to attend.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Company held
its annual general meeting on 28 December 2017 and its
special general meeting on 18 October 2017 Details of
major items discussed in that general meetings are set out
in the circulars of the Company dated 24 November 2017
and 25 September 2017 respectively.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors, must keep abreast
of their collective responsibilities as Directors and of
the business of the Group. As such, the Group provides
a comprehensive and formal introduction to each newly
appointed Director upon his/her appointment. Briefings and
orientations are provided so as to ensure that new Directors
are familiar with the role of the Board, their legal and other
duties as a Director as well as the business and governance
practices of the Group. Such programmes are tailor made
for each Director taking into account their background and
expertise.
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TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS BEEEIIRIE #)

(continued)

The Company is committed to arranging and funding RARBAOREBES R ESEXRERHAE

suitable training to all Directors for their continuous MBI TREREEACE - REE_F—\F~A
professional development. During the year ended 30 June STHLEFEAREBEARSHMSIL  2BEEE
2018 and up to the date of this report, all Directors engaged BRESENAKTDHBEANL2EBEFTERRE
in business activities in their respective fields as continuous WmERIY FIE MR RRE WREGEBEEAE
professional development to develop and refresh their FREMEYENEESSHELER  BE2H 2
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contributions BHImT

to the Board remain informed and relevant, and they
participated in the following training:

Type of Training (Note)

Name of Directors =g EANERI (Fri)

Executive Directors iTES

Ms. WONG Man Winny (Chairperson) BEROL(LE) A B
(appointed on 19 October 2017) (RZE—tE+ATNBEZRA)

Mr. LIU Ka Lim BRRAE A B

Mr. CHENG Yang (Chairperson) BHAE(EE) A'B
(resigned on 15 August 2017) (R=Z—tFENA+EBEE)

Ms. LEI Lei (resigned on 7 July 2017) FERLT (RZZ—tELALBEE) A B

Mr. LIN Xiang (resigned on 7 July 2017) WEEE(RZZ—tF AL BEE) A B

Non-executive Directors FHTES

Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica (appointed on 7 July 2017) HFEFZL (RZE—+tF+ AL BEZE) A B

Mr. CHAN Sung Wai (appointed on 22 November 2017) BEEEE (RZE—+E+—A-+-AEZH) A B

Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES

Mr. LEUNG Man Fai RNELE A B

Mr. CHAN Yik Hei B55%E A B

Mr. WONG Yuk Man Edmand (appointed on 8 March 2018) HENEE (RZT—-N\F=A\BEZF) A'B

Mr. ZHANG Jingzhi (retired on 28 December 2017) RHZEE (RZE—tF+ZAZ+NRRMAE) A, B

Mr. DONG Limin (resigned on 11 July 2017) ENRAE (RZE—tFLA+—HEML) A B

Note: Htat

A: Attending seminars, briefing sessions, conference and/or A: EREFASE NG Kk AwmiE-

forums.
B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the B: MEARCER, /I REKSHFEZRE BT
economy and/or general business etc. REFER -
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TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

(continued)

Each Director will, upon his/her first appointment and
thereafter on a yearly basis, disclose to the Group the
number and nature of offices held by such Director in
public companies and organizations and other significant
commitments.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The human resources and remuneration committee was
established with specific written terms of reference which
was revised and adopted on 19 March 2012. As at 30 June
2018, the human resources and remuneration committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Leung Man Fai (Chairperson), Mr. Chan Yik Hei
and Mr. Wong Yuk Man Edmand.

The human resources and remuneration committee
is responsible for, among other things, making
recommendations to the Board regarding the overall
remuneration policy, remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Group, share option scheme, bonus
structure, provident fund and other compensation- related
issues. This committee consults with the Chairperson
and/or other Board members on its proposals and
recommendations and has access to professional advice,
if necessary. The human resources and remuneration
committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge
and perform its duties.

The specific terms of reference of the human resources and
remuneration committee is posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year under review, the human resources and
remuneration committee held four meetings to review and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of all Directors and senior management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established with specific
written terms of reference which was revised and adopted
on 23 September 2014. As at 30 June 2018, the nomination
committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Leung Man Fai (Chairperson), Mr.
Chan Yik Hei and Mr. Wong Yuk Man Edmand.

The main duties of the nomination committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
annually, making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become members of the Board, selecting individuals
nominated for directorships, assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairperson and other executive
director. The nomination committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge and perform its duties.

The specific terms of reference of the nomination committee
is posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The nomination committee meets at least once a
year.

During the year under review, the nomination committee
held three meetings to review the composition and diversity
of the Board, assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and consider the appointments of
Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with specific
written terms of reference which was revised and adopted
on 1 January 2016. The main duties of the audit committee
include, among other things, the following:

(a) to review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
Company's staff responsible for the accounting and
financial reporting function or external auditor before
submission to the Board.

(b) to review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditor.

(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures.

The audit committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge and perform its duties.

Other duties of the audit committee are set out in its specific
terms of reference which is posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. The audit committee shall
meet at least twice a year.

As at 30 June 2018, the audit committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung
Man Fai (chairperson), Mr. Chan Yik Hei and Mr. Wong Yuk
Man Edmand. No member of the audit committee is a
former partner of the existing audit firm of the Company
within one year on the date of his ceasing to be a partner
or had any financial interest in the auditing firm. The
audit committee has reviewed the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
internal controls and financial reporting matters with the
management team of the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year under review, the audit committee held
three meetings to review, among other things, the
Company’s audited condensed consolidated statement of
assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2017 interim report
for the six months ended 31 December 2017 and annual
report for the year ended 30 June 2017 The audit committee
has also reviewed the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, report on the Company's internal control and
risk management review and processes as well as the re-
appointment of the external auditor. There is no material
uncertainty relating to events and conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. There is no disagreement between the
Board and the audit committee regarding the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The accounts for the year were audited by Moore Stephens
CPA Limited, whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The audit committee
has recommended to the Board that Moore Stephens CPA
Limited be nominated for re-appointment as the auditor of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The company secretary keeps full minutes of all audit
committee meetings. In line with practices consistent
with Board meetings and other committee meetings, draft
and final version of audit committee meeting minutes
are circulated to all members of the audit committee for
comments, approval and record as soon as practicable after
each meeting.
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The investment committee was established with specific
written terms of reference which was adopted on 15
August 2017. As at 30 June 2018, the investment committee
consists of one executive Director, namely, Mr. Liu Ka Lim
(Chairperson), one independent non-executive Director,
namely, Mr. Leung Man Fai and two executive staff of the
Company. The investment committee is responsible for,
among other things, to review investment performance
and to advise the Company on their investment of cash,
cash equivalents, financial assets, margin deposits, cash
collateral taking account of the necessary constraints on
the deployment of the various sources and purposes of the
funds to enhance the Company’s investment returns.

The specific terms of reference of the investment committee
is posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The investment committee meets at least twice a
year.

During the year under review, the investment committee
held five meetings to consider and review the securities
investments of the Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting out
the approach to achieve diversity within the Board. The
Company considered diversity of board members can be
achieved through consideration of a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continued)

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversified perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be made upon the merits of the
selected candidates and their contribution to the Board. The
Board considered the measurable objectives, including but
not limited to skills, knowledge, professional experience and
cultural and educational background, and agreed that these
measurable objectives were achieved for the diversity of the
Board which contributed to the corporate strategy and the
business development of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the current Board
composition under diversified perspectives is set out as

follows:
z 7
3
(o
@
S
9 6 Independent Fgrzn’ge
8, Non-executive
s Director
. BUIENTES
it
i
m
4
Non-executive
3 Directors
HITEE
2
1
0
Designation Gender
= 4 51
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2018, the fee for the Company's
external auditor for audit services was approximately
HK$7,179,000 (2017: HK$4,347,000) and that for non-
audit services mainly relating to taxation matters was
approximately HK$59,000 (2017: HK$214,000 mainly relating
to taxation matters). The increase in fees for audit services
was due to the preparation of the audited condensed
consolidated statement of assets and liabilities of the Group
as at 31 December 2017 which was not requested by the
Board during the year ended 30 June 2017.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Specific enquiries have been made with all
Directors, who have confirmed that, during the year ended
30 June 2018, each of them has complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group. The auditor is responsible to form an
independent opinion on the audited financial statements
and report the same to the shareholders of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions including but not limited to developing
and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance, reviewing and monitoring training
and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, reviewing and monitoring the
Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, and reviewing the Company's
compliance with the code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for decisions in relation to the
overall strategic development of the Group's business. All
Directors have formal letters of appointment setting out
key terms and conditions of their appointment. Due to the
diversity and volume of the Group's business, responsibility
in relation to the daily operations and execution of the
strategic business plans are delegated to the management
of the Group.

All committees, namely the audit committee, the human
resources and remuneration committee, the nomination
committee and the investment committee, have
specific terms of reference setting out the authorities
and responsibilities of the respective committee. All
committees are required by their terms of reference to
report to the Board in relation to their decisions, findings or
recommendations, and in certain specific situations, to seek
the Board's approval before taking any actions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board will review, on a yearly basis, all delegations
by the Board to different committees to ensure that such
delegations are appropriate and continue to be beneficial to
the Company as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

Insurance cover has been taken out for Directors’ and
Officers’ Liability to provide adequate cover, as determined
by the Board, in respect of the current Board members and
senior management of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level
of transparency and employs a policy of open and timely
disclosure of relevant information to its shareholders. The
commitment to fair disclosure and comprehensive and
transparent reporting of the Company’'s activities can be
reflected in various aspects.

To maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders, the
annual and special general meeting provides an opportunity
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS (continued)

Mr. Liu Ka Lim, an executive Director, Ms. To Yin Fong,
Cecilica and Mr. Chan Sung Wai, both are non-executive
Directors attended the annual general meeting in 2017 (the
“2017 Annual General Meeting”) so as to ensure that
shareholders’ views were communicated to the Board.
A separate resolution was proposed by the Chairperson
in respect of each separate issue at the annual general
meeting.

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are
reviewed from time to time to ensure that the Company
conforms to the best corporate governance practices. The
circular in relation to the arrangement of annual general
meeting will be circulated to all shareholders at least twenty
one clear days prior to the holding of the annual general
meeting, in which it sets out the details of each resolution
proposed and other relevant information. At the 2017 Annual
General Meeting, all resolutions were put to vote by poll.
Tricor Secretaries Limited, the Company's Hong Kong
branch share registrar and transfer office, was engaged
as scrutineer to ensure votes were properly counted. The
rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding
a poll on resolutions at general meeting are contained in
the Bye-laws. An explanation of the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll is provided to the shareholders at
the commencement of the meeting. The Chairperson
and other directors would respond to queries raised by
the shareholders regarding the voting procedures. The
poll results are published in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, shareholder(s) holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

If within twenty one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the relevant
provisions in the Companies Act of Bermuda.
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SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS (continued)

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the
Company, a shareholder should lodge a written notice
of his/her/its proposal (the “Proposal”) with his/her/its
detailed contact information at Unit 3412, 34th Floor, China
Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, No.168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. The identity of the
shareholder will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar and transfer office. Upon confirmation
by the branch share registrar and transfer office that the
request is made by a shareholder and that if the request is
proper, the Board will include the Proposal in the agenda
for the general meeting. The notice period to be given to all
the shareholders for consideration of the Proposal raised
by the shareholder concerned at the general meeting varies
according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 20 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in an annual general meeting;

(2)  Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of a special resolution in a
special general meeting;

(3)  Notice of not less than 14 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in a special general meeting other
than by way of a special resolution of the Company.

The Company also communicates to its shareholders
through its annual and interim reports. The Directors,
company secretary or other appropriate members of senior
management also respond promptly to inquiries from
shareholders and investors.

Shareholders may at any time serve their enquiries to the
Board in writing for the attention of company secretary at
Unit 3412, 34th Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, No. 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS'
MEETINGS

Under Bermuda law, in addition to the right to requisition
a special general meeting, any number of shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth (1/20) of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of
the requisition a right to vote at the general meeting; or
not less than one hundred (100) shareholders, shall (unless
otherwise resolved by the Company) at their own expense
have the right by written requisition:

(a)  to require notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the next
annual general meeting to be given to shareholders;
and/or

(b) to request for circulation to shareholders any
statement of not more than one thousand (1000)
words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at
any general meeting.

A requisition referred to above must be signed by the
requisitionists in a single document or in separate copies
prepared for the purpose. A copy of the signed requisition,
accompanied by a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company's expenses, must be deposited at the Company's
registered office in Bermuda:

(@) in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a

resolution, not less than six (6) weeks before the
annual general meeting unless an annual general
meeting is called for a date six (6) weeks or less after
the copy has been deposited, in which case the copy
shall be deemed to have been properly deposited

though not deposited within the time required; and

(b) in the case of any other requisition, not less than one
(1) week before the general meeting.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

RRRAELRZEZZEF

ﬁfﬁﬁiiﬁvﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁ

BN

EXFREAPFETIREERBRAE

i&xZ%ﬁh%@&m%Wf+%Z*Umm
AR KA DR—B 00 B KRR B (B
FARARTHR)EBREEEAFR (BRAM

FEITAE)

(a) EBERARRBLHATEER2LENTERR
BFEAEG LR ZEHR%? R e

(o) ERARRSBEEEMRFARERMIEER

MEFERENAHR
ﬁﬁ%zgﬁimu$£ﬁ

A AR SA & P B8 36 20 4R B 7 R R
18— F (1000)F 2 fE AL -

I%Eﬁ NS AHEE
EREKEZEIR

@ﬁ*%éﬁi%%ﬁﬁ@ﬂ%iZmﬁbm
RERARABZBFETMMPRELR

(a)

(b)

il R ERFHIRBRBA 2 FR - BIRER
BFERGETAADRNOEZEE  FFIER

RBEXRERERBNARNOBERATH
HEMR RUEBRT &F \Ecﬁmbﬁ
NERZ  ZEAEHREREEBER &

fis] 23 FEfR] E At 5B K-
—(1)iBxE

ARBERAGR A DR



ERERBMSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to shareholders and
investors. The Company updates shareholders on its latest
business developments and financial performance through
its annual and interim reports and notices, announcements
and circulars. The Company's website (www.tricor.com.hk/
webservice/00092) provides a communication platform to
the public and the shareholders.

During the year under review, there had been no significant
change made to the Company's constitutional documents.

The Bye-laws is available on both the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management functions and internal control systems of the
Group and ensuring review of the effectiveness of these
systems has been conducted annually. Management is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring
such systems, while the Board oversees management in
performing its duties on an ongoing basis.

During the year, the Board has complied with the risk
management and internal control code provisions of the
CG Code by establishing and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and internal control system. Such review covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. Main features of the risk management
and internal control systems are described in the sections
below:
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Risk Management Framework

We adopt an integrated bottom-up and top-down risk
review process to enable comprehensive identification and
prioritization of all material risks throughout the Group,
escalation of material risks at the right managerial level,
effective risk dialogue among the management, and proper
oversight of risk mitigation efforts.

“Top-down”
Overseeing,
identification,
assessment and
mitigation of risk at
corporate level
[AEMT ]
RiEEER

BEE - EAl -

AT RS

“Bottom-up”
Identification,
assessment and
mitigation of risk
at business unit level
and across
functional areas
[BHT~mL]
RER B
[ESE:
SR - FHE
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BEARE $EARRE LREEE2EEER
REREZRRRRETARER TXEEER
b 2 HE

The Board EE 2
Has overall responsibility for the Group's risk management systems and
internal control systems;
BRAEASEZ AREREHERAIMETHE
Sets strategic objectives;
T E SR AR
Reviews the effectiveness of our risk management systems and internal
control systems;
F iz E IR E R A EBES R E 2 B
Monitors the nature and extent of risk exposure to our major risks; and
ERFTERBOMERMAZRABRIEE &
Provides direction on the importance of risk management culture.

pEREE Lz EBERMRMITEH-

Management & & [E
Designs, implements, and monitors risk management and internal control
systems; and
HIE BhkERERERERASETHE: &
Assesses our risk and mitigating measures Company-wide.

AR BT E 2 B SRR i

Audit Committee EXZE €
Supports the Board in monitoring risk exposure, design and effectiveness
of the underlying risk management and internal control systems.
XEEFSEERBAKIBE I A KRR E R E IR N A A0 B SIE 2 HE &K
g

Operational Level & EE @
Risk identification, assessment and mitigation performed across the
business; and
MERBE  AEITREERRE R
Risk management process and internal controls practiced across business
operations and functional areas.
HEBEERBEEEZEAREEEF RAMBEEIE-
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

The risk management framework adopted by the Group is
embedded in our strategy development, business planning
and day-to-day operations. The Group adopts a control
and risk self-assessment methodology and continuously
assess and manages its risk profile on a regular basis. Risks
that are relevant to the Group's business are identified,
assessed and ranked according to their likelihood and
consequence on the Group. Risk owners are required to
submit risk alerts with risk response promptly to the Board
and Audit Committee for ongoing review and monitoring.
Action plans were formulated and implemented during the
year to address the areas of concern effectively.

Internal Control System and Continuous
Improvement

The Company has in place an internal control system which
is based on the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (“COS0O") framework
for internal controls and has five components, namely
Control Environment; Risk Assessment; Control Activities;
Information and Communication; and Monitoring. In
developing our internal control system, we have taken into
consideration our organizational structure and the nature of
our business activities.

We have put in place a phased improvement plan and
progressed to future enhance our internal controls and
risk management system. The initial phase of the plan
focused on adopting a more risk-based (instead of process-
based) approach to risk identification and assessment. This
approach enriches our ability to analyze risks and respond
to opportunities as we pursue our strategic objectives.
Management reporting to the Audit Committee has also
been enhanced, including the presentation of special
reports on selected risk topics.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Internal Control System and Continuous
Improvement (continued)

In the current place, we aim to further integrate internal
controls and risk management into our business processes,
including in annual budgeting and planning. Instead of
treating the COSO framework as a framework-update
exercise, a holistic approach has been adopted by us,
taking into consideration the Company's circumstances,
including its ongoing internal controls and risk management
improvement plan as well as other strategic initiatives (e.g.
corporate social responsibility strategy and reporting). All
of these enhance our ultimate objective to make our risk
management system a “live” one that is practiced on a day-
to-day basis by operating units.

In order to enhance the Group's system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the
Group also adopts and implements an inside information
policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures
have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

o The access of information is restricted to a
limited number of employees on a need-to-know
basis. Employees who are in possession of inside
information are fully conversant with their obligations
to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the
Group enters into significant negotiations.

° The Executive Directors are the designated persons
who speak on behalf of the Company when
communicating with external parties such as the
media, analysts or investors.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLMWMWW)

Internal Audit

The Group has engaged an external professional consultant
to take the primary role to perform the Internal Audit (“IA")
function, and professional staff with relevant expertise of
the Group are designated to provide assistance in the IA
function. The IA function is independent of the Group's daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management
and internal control systems by conducting interviews,
walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness.

An |A plan has been approved by the Board. According
to the established plan, review of the risk management
and internal control systems is conducted annually and
the results are reported to the Board via Audit Committee
afterwards.

Review of Risk Management & Internal Controls
Effectiveness

For the year ended 30 June 2018, the Board, through its
review and the reviews made by IA function and Audit
Committee, considered that the risk management and
internal control system were effective and adequate. No
significant areas of concern that may affect the financial,
operational, compliance controls, and risk management
functions of the Group has been identified. During
the review, the Board also considered the resources,
qualification and experience of staff of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions,
and their training and budget were adequate. Such systems,
however, are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance
is significant in strengthening investor confidence and
attracting investment. The management will devote
considerable effort to strengthening and improving the
standards of the corporate governance of the Group. Any
views and suggestions from the shareholders to promote
and improve our transparency are also welcome.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION ONTHE LOSS,
CHANGES IN EQUITY AND CASH FLOWS

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of Champion Technology Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 105 to 273, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended 30 June 2018.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION ONTHE LOSS,
CHANGES IN EQUITY AND CASH FLOWS

(continued)

Because of the significance of the matters described in the
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion on the Loss, Changes in
Equity and Cash Flows section of our report, we have not
been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
provide a basis for an audit opinion on the loss, changes in
equity and cash flows for the year. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2018.

QUALIFIED OPINION ONTHE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2018, and the notes thereon.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the
matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion on
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position section
of our report, the consolidated statement of financial
position gives a true and fair view of the Group's affairs as
at 30 June 2018 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Except for the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion on the Loss, Changes in Equity and Cash Flows
section below, we have determined that there are no other
key audit matters to communicate in our report which relate
to our qualified opinion on the consolidated statement of
financial positon.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION ON
THE LOSS, CHANGES IN EQUITY AND CASH
FLOWS

(a)

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Impairment of available-for-sale
investments for the year ended 30 June
2017

As disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial
as at 30 June 2017, the Group had
available-for-sale investments (“AFS Investments”)

statements,

whose cost and accumulated impairment losses
brought forward from prior year amounted to
HK$518,480,000 and HK$100,184,000, respectively.
Additional impairment loss of HK$418,296,000 was
made by the Group for the year ended 30 June 2017.

During the course of our audit in respect of the year
ended 30 June 2017, we sought to perform alternative
audit procedures to satisfy ourselves that the AFS
Investments were fully impaired as at 30 June 2017
However, the scope of our alternative audit procedures
was limited as disclosed in the auditor’s report for the
year ended 30 June 2017

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the management
had been continuing to make its efforts to establish
contact with the investees. The management has
exhausted all means practically possible, including
the engagement of legal advisers and private
investigators, to locate and contact the disappeared
management of the investee companies and to try
to recover part of the costs of the investments. The
directors of the Company, after taking into account 1)
the findings by the investigators; 2) legal advice from
the legal advisers; 3) various options suggested by the
legal advisers, where the estimated costs to perform
further action to try to recover the investments are
expected to be significantly higher than the benefits,
concluded that there are no other alternative or further
action that the Group could take. As a result, the
directors of the Company concluded and confirmed
that the investments were irrecoverable as at 30 June
2018.
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-
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION ON
THE LOSS, CHANGES IN EQUITY AND CASH
FLOWS (continued)

(a)

Impairment of available-for-sale
investments for the year ended 30 June
2017 (continued)

In respect of the audit for the year ended 30 June
2017, we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion on whether the abovementioned
impairment loss of HK$418,296,000 should be
recognised. In respect of the audit for the current year,
we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion
on whether the abovementioned impairment loss of
HK$418,296,000 should be recognised for the vyear
ended 30 June 2017 or earlier in prior year(s) by the
Group. As a result, we were unable to determine
whether the amount of impairment loss recognised in
the prior years and nil impairment loss recognised for
the current year are free from material misstatements.
With various actions and efforts taken by management
and the legal advice from the Group's legal advisers,
we believe the matter of the scope limitations referred
to above no longer have possible effects on the figures
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2018.

However, as the figures in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2017 formed the
opening balances of the respective elements of the
current year's consolidated financial statements,
any adjustments that might have been found to be
necessary in respect of the above would have a
significant effect in respect of impairment loss on the
available-for-sale investments, and the other elements
making up the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity, consolidated
statement of cash flows and the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2018 and the prior year(s).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION ON
THE LOSS, CHANGES IN EQUITY AND CASH
FLOWS (continued)

(b)

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Impairment of inventories resulting from
downgradings and reclassifications of
cultural products

Included in the Group's inventories as at 30 June
2017 were cultural products whose aggregate carrying
amount was HK$4,235,385,000, net of accumulated
impairment loss of HK$4,275,921,000. An impairment
loss of HK$4,275,921,000 had been recognised by
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2017 For the
year ended 30 June 2018, a further impairment loss of
HK$4,222,621,000 has been recognised by the Group.
We did not express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017
as disclosed in the auditor’s report for the year ended
30 June 2017

For the purposes of the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2018, as disclosed in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements, as a result of the
inconsistencies in the grading and classification of
cultural products performed by different experts as at
30 June 2017 and 2016, the current management of
the Group resolved to arrange another team of cultural
product and jewellery experts (the “Current Experts”)
to conduct a detailed inspection of the cultural
products during the year regarding their grading and
classification in respect of the year ended 30 June
2018. As disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group engaged the Appraisal
Center to conduct a scientific examination of 360
pieces of cultural products, so as to better determine
their nature and substance of these cultural products.
Based on the work conducted by the Current Experts
and the Appraisal Center, further downgradings were
identified. Accordingly, a further impairment loss (as
mentioned above) of HK$4,222,621,000 has been
recognised for the year for the purpose of preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2018.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION ON
THE LOSS, CHANGES IN EQUITY AND CASH
FLOWS (continued)

(b)

Impairment of inventories resulting from
downgradings and reclassifications of
cultural products (continued)

Subsequent to the publication of the Audited
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Assets and
Liabilities and for the purpose of the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2018, the
directors of the Company unanimously decided to take
the approach of eliminating any lingering doubts on
the nature of the cultural products inventory so as to
obtain a final and uncontroversial conclusion for our
inventory.

The directors of the Company were of the view that,
with the detailed exercise performed by the Current
Experts and the Appraisal Center, the carrying amount
net of impairment recognised so far, reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position, was
the best estimate of the recoverable amount of the
cultural products. We believe the matter of the scope
limitations referred to above no longer have possible
effect on the figure presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018.

However, as the closing balance of the cultural
products as at 30 June 2017 is carried forward as the
opening balance for the current year, any adjustments
found to be necessary to the closing balance as at
30 June 2017 may have a significant effect on the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year ended 30 June 2018.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION ONTHE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

As described in the Disclaimer of Opinion on the Loss,
Changes in Equity and Cash Flows section of our report, the
matters of the scope limitations referred to available-for-sale
investments and inventories no longer have effect on the
figures presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2018.

However, the comparative figures presented in the
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018 may
contain material misstatements and hence may not be
comparable with the figures.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSA") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the financial highlights, corporate
information, chairperson’s statement, management
discussion and analysis, directors and senior management
profile, directors’ report, corporate governance report and
financial summary, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of other information, we
are required to report that fact. As described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion on the Loss, Changes in Equity and
Cash Flows and for Qualified Opinion on the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position sections above, we were
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about
the matters described above. Accordingly, we are unable
to conclude whether or not the other information in the
directors’ report is materially misstated with respect to this
matter.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FORTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:-

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FORTHE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS(wmmww

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors of the
Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

%ﬁﬁm?ﬁ%%ﬁ%é\ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁgﬁ’ﬂ
T

(%)

FHE BE/REEMRASHABENGEN
KAfER st et RABBREN S EE-

HEERAKELESHERNREHEL
EwmoBREMERMNERERE BEREAR
FERFENBENGENERTEEE M
ARRERY BERENKAKERIELE
RREB - WRESRAFEEATHEE N
AAEVEERHMMETRBERAELIR
FEMBHMRTPHBEBEE - REAREOK
BTR AESERERRIEREER -
EWiEwme ENRBENRE QB LEAEREG
MERRE AW RREFEKERNATEE

B BEEETRERERLE-

HESAMBREANBEIER I HBR
NE BREEE URGEEHBERREDH
BERMEBRSRER-

B EEREABRBIEKLINYBERE
BiER HEENEREE UEBHESHK
BREXBR -EFRAEKEERNTA
EENAT - BEERERBEAAE2HEE
(=)

THERZESBAT (AR BE)FENEZ

CEHRRE BEAEREREER BEEE

FEZ AR BB H A AR 2 ) B0 R ] 2 RBREA

—E-N\FEH BEMREEBFRAF

103



104

B % B AR S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FORTHE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion on the Loss, Changes in Equity and
Cash Flows section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion on the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 30
June 2018.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Sai Kit
Practising Certificate Number: P05544

Hong Kong, 27 September 2018
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SeRaRHMZARE R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE-_ZT—-NFANA=+HIFE FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
b &t FET FET
(Restated)
(E3])
Revenue U 2% 6 142,754 194,544
Cost of sales il (67,011) (133,336)
Gross profit EF 75,743 61,208
Other income, gains and losses Ha A - s R EsiE 7 12,321 5,181
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE M B AR Z W 11 1,465 6,097
Distribution costs Sal =1 N (27,692) (27,332)
General and administrative expenses — & M1TE X H (117,806) (90,951)
Impairment losses recognised RIFEERRBEERE
for inventories 21 (4,222,621) (4,275,921)
Impairment losses recognised for EMERERREEE
other receivables 22 (8,751) -
Impairment losses recognised for RS R ABRFE K ANTER
development costs for systems ZBEBE
and networks 17 - (49,199)
Impairment losses recognised for AL EREFTER
available-for-sale investments 2R EEE 18 - (418,296)
Fair value gain on financial assets at R AT EEFABZZEMEE
fair value through profit or loss NFEEKE 15,077 =
Fair value gain on investment RBEFEMKEREDE
properties acquired in prior year 2 RN EEKE 16 27,366 907
Fair value loss on investment RAFEMBEREDE
properties acquired in current year ZRAYEEEE 16 (178,259) =
Research and development i IE R AR A H
costs expensed (2,712) (3,089)
Finance costs B RS RS 8 (50,634) (11,984)
Share of result of a joint venture BlE—REeEREZEE (7) (4)
Loss before taxation BR B0 AT &5 18 9 (4,476,510) (4,803,383)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiRe, () 12 790 (613)
Loss for the year EEEBE (4,475,720) (4,803,996)
ZE-N\FFR BEMNREBAER QA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BHE-_ZT—N\F~A=1HI%&E FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
b &t FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Other comprehensive income/ Hir2muzE  (XH) :
(expense):
Items that will not be reclassified to BT E@EFHHEEERZ
profit or loss: EA :
Remeasurement of defined BEHETEBARAKE
benefits pension plans 31(b) 36,450 (208)
Surplus arising from transfer of mYE - BELERERBER
property, plant and equipment to KEWMEEE 2 Bt
investment properties 15 73,221 -
Item that may be reclassified HE#AEFNHIPEEERZ
subsequently to profit or loss: EA:
Exchange difference arising on RN B E R E £
translation of foreign operations ZIEHE%E 8,155 188
Other comprehensive income/ rEEHMEERE  (XH)
e S (20
Total comprehensive expense AEEZEXHAE
for the year (4,357,894) (4,804,016)
Loss for the year attributable to: EBhEAFEEREE:
Owners of the Company KAEER A (3,811,905) (4,188,139)
Non-controlling interests FEFEAR IR SR A 2 (663,815) (615,857)
(4,475,720) (4,803,996)
Total comprehensive expense EhAEEEEXHAE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company VNN F SN (3,711,174) (4,188,152)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R AR R = (646,720) (615,864)
(4,357,894) (4,804,016)
Loss per share — Basic and diluted BREE-ERRLHEE 14 HK$(9.29)7% 7t HK$(13.23)8 7
The notes on pages 112 to 273 form part of these FEN2R273EFEH 2 MFRILEZREVBRERZ

consolidated financial statements.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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REMBRR K
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZ=ZZ—/\FXHA=+H AT 30 JUNE 2018

At 30 June At 1 July
RAA=1EH RtA—8
2018 2017 2016
“E-N\E T+ F ZE-RE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ir3 FAT FET FEL
(Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (E3))
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mm% -BERRE 5 34,087 38,987 41,942
Investment properties REME 6 167,834 54,094 53,187
Development costs for systems ZHERBERABRA
and networks 17 - - 66,901
Available-for-sale investments HEEERE 18 - = 418,296
Interest in a joint venture R-EaEtEzER 79 452 459 463
Finance lease receivable EURBERERE 20 46,117 = =
248,490 93,540 580,789
Current assets nBEE
Inventories BB 21 32,949 4,254,744 8,555,151
Finance lease receivable EURBERERE 20 4,488 = =
Trade and other receivables BB S REMER 22 43,523 46,718 36,814
Financial assets at fair value through BATEEHABEZ
profit or loss SREE 23 110,786 - -
Cash and cash equivalents RehReSE 24 112,534 121,971 131,426
304,280 4,423,433 8,723,391
Current liabilities RBRE
Trade and other payables EREZREMERR 25 44,654 75,416 76,996
Contract liabilities AHEE 26 21,034 = =
Warranty provision RERE 27 1,236 1,073 1,055
Customers’ deposits XPiEe 3,483 3,483 3,483
Amount due to a director ER—2ESHE 28 4,180 9,975 =
Interest bearing bank and other HEBRITREMREE
borrowings — amount due -R—FRIH
within one year 29 52,728 203,636 194,677
Promissory note payable R ELRE 30 1,279 = =
128,594 293,583 276,211
Net current assets RBEEFE 175,686 4,129,850 8,447,180
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRDER 424,176 4,223,390 9,027,969
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mEMBERR K
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R=Z— \F7XA=+H AT 30 JUNE 2018

At 30 June At 1 July
RAA=1H ntA—H
2018 2017 2016
gL T+ F ZE-RE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FAT FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (25)
Non-current liabilities FREBER
Interest bearing bank and other HERAREMEE
borrowings — amount due —-R—FEIH
after one year 29 230,000 - 3,677
Promissory note payable ERELEE 30 55,714 - -
Retirement benefit obligations RIRE T 311b) 27,774 60,727 57821
Deferred tax liabilities ELHEER 32 9,496 9,573 9,365
___Sz2wm 70300  ____ 70.863
Net assets BEEFRE 101,192 4,153,090 8,957,106
Capital and reserves BAR#E
Share capital A& 33(b) 45,589 633,179 633,179
Reserves f#H 33(c) 2,645 2,931,886 7120,038
Equity attributable to owners ARRHEAELER
of the Company 48,234 3,565,065 7753,217
Non-controlling interests FERBRRER 52,958 588,025 1,203,889
Total equity ExeE 101,192 4,153,090 8,957,106

The consolidated financial statements on pages 105 to 273 FI05E273EFMB AV BHREREHESTERN

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of ZE-N\FAAZ Tt REETE AT
directors on 27 September 2018 and are signed on its behalf NEFRKRESE:
by:
WONG MAN WINNY LIU KA LIM
Y BER
Chairperson Director
*E EE

The notes on pages 112 to 273 form part of these FEN2R273EFMEH 2 MFRILEFEVBRERZ
consolidated financial statements. HRKE D -
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RERTERZ X
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE-_ZT—-NFANA=+HIFE FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALAREARE
Retained
Capital Property profits/ Non-
Share Share  redemption General Capital Merger  valuation  Translation (accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) Total interests equity
g% REEF/ F2R B
RE  RGEE  KERE  -REE  EABE  GHBE DRMERE  EXEE  (RiHER) &% RKREE  BE4E

HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
A A & T T TEr TEr TEr FEr A A &
(note 33 (note 33 [note 33 (note 33 fnote 33 fnote 33 (note 33
(el lfil) o)) clfiv) (e} (clfui) felivi)
(His33 (His33 (W33 (Hi (Hitz (it (Hits
o) i) (i) (cliv)) c) c/)) (civiy)

At 1 July 2016 RZE-AEtR-B 633,179 2,096,276* 50*  1,366,003* 125,036* 8,358* S 5603 3,478,594 7713,099 1,203,889 8,916,988
Prior year adjustments (note 3)  BEFERE (W33) - - - - - - - - 40,118 40,18 - 40,18
As restated FE] 633,179 2,096,276* 50" 1,366,003* 125,036* 8,358* - 5603  3518712F 7753217 1,203,889 8,957,106
Loss for the year RERER = = = = = = = - (488139 (4188139 (615,857  (4,803996)
Remeasurement of defined benefits 87 BigHI& Ml
pension plans - - - - - - - - (135) (135) (73) (208)
Exchange difference arising RENEHREH
on translation of foreign EEZERZE
operations - - - - - - - 122 - 122 66 188
Total comprehensive expense FEERARLEE
for the year - - - - - - S 122 4,188,274)  (4,188,152) 615,864)  (4,804,016)
At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017
(Restated)
633179 2,096,276* 50*  1,366,003* 125,036* 8,358* - 5,725* (669,562)* 3,565,065 588,025 4,153,090
Loss for the year RERER - - S S s S - - (3811905 (381,905 (663815)  (4475720)
Remeasurement of defined benefits & B2 BiEFIE il
pension plans - - - - - - - - 23,669 23,669 12,781 36,450
Surplus arising from transfer of 9% HERZEEA
property, plant and equipment RENZELRY
10 investment properties - - - - - - 7322 - - B - 322
Exchange difference arising BN EBAEHN
on translation of foreign EEZENZE
operations - - - - - - - 3,840 - 3,840 4315 8,155
Total comprehensive expense TERRARHAR
for the year - - - - - - 73,2 3840 (3768236)  (3,711,175) (646,719)  (4,357894)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39) MEH B2 (K3#39) - - - - - - - = - - 111,652 111,652
Issuance of new ordinary shares  E{THEBRAX HAK
less transaction costs (note 33(b)l  (F&33(b)) 126,636 3672 - - - - - - - 130,308 - 130,308
Issuance of new share upon placing &R HEETH KA
of shares less transaction costs B ARA (H33(0))
(note 33(b)) 7598 56,438 - - - - - - - 64,036 - 64,036
Capital reduction (note 33(bl) BAHE (R3E33(0)) (721,824) - - - 721,824 - - - - - - -
(587590) 60,110 - - 721,824 - - - - 194,344 111,662 305,996
At 30 June 2018 R=F-NERAZTA 45,589 2,156,386* 50*  1,366,003* 846,860* 8,358% 13,221* 9565*  (4,457798)* 48,234 52,958 101,192
e These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * N EREEPEREGEVBRARZEAREN
of approximately HK$2,645,000 (2017: HK$2,931,886,000) in 2,645,000/ 7L (= ZF — £ :2,931,886,000/%
the consolidated statement of financial position. TL) ©

The notes on pages 112 to 273 form part of these FEN2R273EMEH 2 MFRILEFEVBRERZ
consolidated financial statements. HRKE D -
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GEATRE K

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-_Z—-\FA=THLFE FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LtF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B it FET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Cash flows from operating activities B £ HER
Loss before taxation BB AT ES 18 (4,476,510) (4,803,383)
Adjustments for: T
Amortisation of development costs R R A BB AN 2
for systems and networks 9 - 17,702
Depreciation of property, plant ME - -BMEESEBEINE
and equipment 9 9,411 9,577
Fair value gain on financial assets at 1R AFEBET ABRZ
fair value through profit or loss SREEAFEERSE (15,077) =
Loss on disposal of property, LEVME BERLEZ
plant and equipment BB 59 =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE W E ARz W 71 (1,465) (6,097)
Fair value gain on investment RBEFEMBEREMEL
properties acquired in prior year NTFEEKE 16 (27,366) (907)
Fair value loss on investment RAFEMBEBRENEZ
properties acquired in current year NEEEEE 16 178,259 =
Gain on early redemption of RAEREN AL ER 2 K&
promissory note payable 30 (3,444) -
Impairment losses recognised RIFERRZBEBSE
for inventories 21 4,222,621 4,275,921
Impairment losses recognised for BREG AN RFTER
development costs for systems 2 BEEE
and networks 17 - 49,199
Impairment losses recognised for AT SR E TR
available-for-sale investments ZREEE 18 - 418,296
Impairment losses recognised MW E MR RATHER 2
for other receivables AEEE 8,751 -
Bad debts written off for MtH R E 5BRTER
trade receivables 9 411 -
Finance costs L 3D 8 50,634 11,984
Interest income B WA 7 (2,176) (180)
Share of result of a joint venture Eh—HEEERECEE 7 4
(55,885) (27,884)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FaZ (#m,wH (336) 24,486
Decrease in finance lease receivable JEWFIE T & K E 2 /4 3,420 =
Increase in trade and FEUWE 5 & H M BR5K 2 3E i
other receivables (45,173) (10,520)
Increase in financial assets BAFEBEFTABRZZ
at fair value through profit or loss EREE 2N (95,709) =
Increase in trade and other payables B8 5 & H b BRF 21E N 6,679 9,978
Increase in contract liabilities EHBaE LM 21,034 =
Increase/(decrease) in REBE M (D)
warranty provision 136 (26)
Net cash used in operating activities EE ¥ EFAE RS FHE (165,834) (3,966)

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



GERERD X

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BHE_Z-N\FXA=+HIFE FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
b &t FET FHET
(Restated)
(E7))
Cash flows from investing activities REFEH 2 HE R
Additions to property, plant NEYWHE BEREZE
and equipment 15 (9,115) (7.182)
Additions to investment properties REREME 16 (3,607) =
Payment for the purchase of BB B QA
acquisition of assets and liabilities BEWNHBEERAGBZAR
through acquisition of subsidiaries 39 (29,746) -
Interest received 2 A B 2,176 180
Net cash outflow from disposal HENB AR
of subsidiaries MR FE 11 (1,127) (2,536)
Proceeds from disposal of property, {HEWE  HEKLKEFTE
plant and equipment Z5RIA - 112
Net cash used in investing RETEHMEZRSTE
activities (41,419) (9,426)
Cash flows from financing activities BEFE 2 HE R
Loan from a director KE—REEEXK 24(b) 4,780 9,975
Repayment to a director BE—REFNA 24(b) (600) =
Repayment of promissory BRENANRR
note payable 30 (35,950) -
Repayment of other payables EEEMHEMERR 24(b) (6,155) =
Repayment of bank and other EERTRHEMEE
borrowings 24(b) (21,099) (331,559)
New borrowings raised MEEZREE 24(b) 100,098 337,000
Proceeds from issuance of shares BITRD FTB 2 BB 24(b) 194,344 =
Interest paid B F B 24(b) (40,456) (11,984)
Net cash generated from METHME
financing activities ZEE&FE 194,962 3,432
Net decrease in cash RekReFRI2BDFRE
and cash equivalents (12,291) (9,960)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNHRERREEHE
beginning of the year 121,971 131,426
Effect on foreign exchange EREe) s &
rate changes 2,854 505
Cash and cash equivalents atend H#RERBEELEH
of the year 24 112,534 121,971

The notes on pages 112 to 273 form part of these

consolidated financial statements.

F12E273EMEA 2 MERLSTHEAMBRERZ
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GREUBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

GENERAL

Champion Technology Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was originally incorporated in the
Cayman Islands but subsequently re-domiciled to
Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the Corporate Information section of the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements have been
presented in Hong Kong dollar (“"HK$"), which is
also the Company's functional currency. All values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries and a joint
venture are set out in notes 42 and 19 respectively.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Champion Technology Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “"Group”)
has applied, for the first time in the current year, the
following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"):

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 7

Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax
HKAS 12 Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRS 12 HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

These new standards and interpretations do not have
significant impact to the Group. However, additional
disclosure has been included in note 24 to satisfy
the new disclosure requirements introduced by the
amendments to HKAS 7 which require entities to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
Comparative information is not included in accordance
with the transitional provisions set out in the
amendments.

The Group has also elected to early adopt the
following standards issued by HKICPA for the current
year:

GEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

BRI R] RAEMEF] BB I R
HER (EFBMBREER])

#

~

ZEFAEARREEAEESEEANY
R MEATESAEMBRBEUAFS
EEGREUSETRET A ANNBEER
BB ERBERRREVBRRERE
REATERESHMEENABEHOR
BEHN BREREREENEYRIRSE
BoRBZEERTAHABE LG LB
HALLBREH

AEBRAFERDERRERAT B G
Bh & AR AR Ay LA T R -

Effective for annual
reporting periods
beginning on or after
RTIBEHERS
LERBZEE
REBBER

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

BTG W ER B9 ERITA

HKFRS 9 Amendments
BBV BREELFENR
1BET A

HKFRS 15
BBV BRELERE155% BEREHO R
HKFRS 15 Amendments
with Customers
RV B E LR E155
BETA

The Group has also elected to apply the modified
retrospective approach which means that the
cumulative impact of the adoption will be recognised
in retained profits as of 1 July 2017 and that prior
period comparatives will not be restated. The effects
of the adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 are set out
in note 3.

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
BEEBHENRIETEG

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Clarification to HKFRS 15 Revenue Contracts

BEVMBHREENERELANREZEF

1 January 2018
—E-NF—-H—H

1 January 2019
—E2—-NFE—A—H

1 January 2018
—E-N\F—H—H

1 January 2018

—T-/\F#—A—H

AEETRE R BRAGLETHERE K
MO EHFEER -_T—tHFLA—BER
BadhimR M-SRk esrTE
o RMBER B RELRFBOR R EF LY
BIMEERE1RNZ B NS -

—E-N\FEH BEMREEBFRAF
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GREUBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretation
that have been issued but are not yet effective.

|

<

1:\\

37T R AT AES] B B B
NGEF e EE

\

W%

Tt

FEBVERPEAUTERMGEMNREX
2R RARIERT R B R A R e g o

Effective for annual
reporting periods
beginning on or after

RTSBEHMERR
LBz FE
BEHEEXR

HKAS 28 and HKFRS 10
amendments

ER G ERE285 K
ENEL g E SR
FE105RIEFT A

HKAS 40 Amendments
BB ERIEI0R BT

HKFRS 2 Amendments

BEMBREENL2RIEFT A

Amendments to HKFRSs
BAVBREEIBETA

Amendments to HKFRSs
BEAVIBREEIBETA

HK (IFRIC) —
Interpretation 22

BB (ERFBRERE
ZE®)-B2EHE225%

HKFRS 16
BEBMBREEAE 165

HK(IFRIC) —
Interpretation 23

B (ERMBRERE
ZEg) REE23%

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

KREEEEBMERNTRAERE
ZEMNEEHETEE

Transfer of Investment Property

HRREME

Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions
LR AEBNRR S 20 BEREE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
“E-MFEER T -RFES
2 S i L R R U

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
T -hFE-T—LFEH
2 B B TS R Bl A E B

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

INEERZR 5 RIERRE

Leases

HeE

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

PSR IE 2 THEE 1

To be determined*

€ B8~

1 January 2018
—E-NF—HA—H

1 January 2018
—E-N\¥—H—H
1 January 2018

—2—-N\E—A—H

1 January 2019
—E-NAF—H—H

1 January 2018

—E-NF—H—H
1 January 2019
—E-hF—-H—H
1 January 2019

—E2—-NFE—A—H

The amendments were originally intended to be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017 The effective date has now been
deferred. Early application of the amendments
continues to be permitted.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the related impact of adopting the above new and
revised HKFRSs. So far, the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) have preliminary concluded that
the above new and revised HKFRSs will be adopted
at the respective effective dates and the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group except
for the following:

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

For lessees, HKFRS 16 introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more
than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of
low value. A lessee is required to recognise a right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. For lessors,
HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17 Accordingly, a
lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or financial leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently. The standard is
mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. Earlier application is permitted
for entities that apply HKFRS 15 at or before the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
the Group's operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$17,000,000 (note 37). The Group
estimates that none of these relate to payments for
short-term and low value leases which will continue
to be accounted for based on the current accounting
model. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify far low value or short term leases. Detailed
impact will be disclosed after a detailed analysis is
performed.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have a
material impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

GEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018
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fhet ZERERERSHEEEREZN
RAER WEEELRENSTERYERE K
EEEERAEEVEREELE 165 - 1§
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GREUBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the HKFRSs (which
include all the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the HKICPA
and accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss that are measured at fair value
and defined benefit retirement plan. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of HKAS 17 and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 30 June 2018. A subsidiary is
an entity, directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income
to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a
subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Changes in accounting policies

(a)

Early adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments

The Group has elected to early adopt HKFRS
9, from 1 July 2017. As permitted by the
transitional provisions of HKFRS 9, the Group has
elected not to restate comparative figures. Any
adjustments to the carrying amounts of financial
assets and liabilities at the date of transition are
recognised in the opening accumulated losses of
the current year.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has resulted in changes
in the accounting policies for classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities and impairment of financial assets.

The Group has also early adopted the
consequential amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures together with HKFRS
9. Changes include transition disclosures and
detailed qualitative and quantitative information
about the expected credit loss (“ECL")
calculations such as the assumptions and inputs
used are set out as below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(a) Early adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and the
transition approach are set out below:

(1) Classification and measurement of financial
instruments

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into
three principal classification categories:
measured at amortised cost, at fair value
through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") and at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"). These supersede
HKAS 39's categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets measured at FVTPL.
The classification of investments in debt
instruments under HKFRS 9 is based on the
business model under which the financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash
flow characteristics. Under HKFRS 9,
derivatives embedded in contracts where
the host is a financial asset in the scope
of the standard are not separated from the
host. Instead, the hybrid instrument as a
whole is classified as financial assets at
FVTPL.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESHEEX®

(continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued) SETBCREE (&)

(a) Early adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial (a) REFNEENEHEEREIREH
Instruments (continued) TEH(E
(i) Classification and measurement of financial (i) EMTAZDERIE (&
instruments (continued)
Under HKAS 39, unlisted equity BEEBGEHEREIN - IFF
investments that were not held for trading ERXSHELETRAKRED IR
were classified as available-for-sale financial ABRAHEESMERE  WEKA
assets and carried at cost less impairment. MBRBET R - RIBB BV BW
These unlisted equity investments are HEBEIN ZFIFLWRA
classified as financial assets at FVTPL BESBREATEEAE
under HKFRS 9, unless they are eligible for BZEMEE BRIFEFEGH
and designated at FVTOCI by the Group. As WHARERERRATER
at 1 July 2017 the Group did not designate AR EERE -RZT—+
these investments as financial assets at F+tA—RB AERWEEZE
FVTOCI. These unlisted equity investments REKETEAEAFEAEFAR
were fully impaired in prior year before meEEmlEcemEE-ZE
1 July 2017 therefore, no impact on the FETRABEREFR =T
unlisted equity investments upon early —tHF+EA-—RAZAEEZER
adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 July 2017 B-A - R=_FT—tFtA—
HIREENE BB HREER
FOREIELTRARE W R
oy
Set out below are disclosures relating to TXHEBERNE ST GRS %
the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 on Bl AER T E -
the Group.
T -NFFR BERNEEEERQA

121



122

e B3R M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(a) Early adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (continued)

(i)

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (continued)

The measurement categories and the
carrying amounts of financial assets in
accordance with HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 at
1 July 2017 are compared as follows:

= n_f_JBZ xR (&)
SHEERE (%)
(a) REFNEEBYBEHEEREIN ZH
IH(#&)

) ZETAZABERE (F)

RZZE—+tF+A—BRESR

Be TR FE395% BB
i i/ﬁﬁ'l%%ﬁﬂ’]imﬂﬁﬁufi
BRI REREELERNT

Original New
Original New carrying carrying
measurement measurement amount amount
category under category under under under
Financial assets HKAS 39 HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
ERMBRE EREEN BEARERS
BEBETEREIRTH ZHFEIRETH H39HETH  EREIRTH
SREE Rt 885 M EER FEREE HEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade and other receivables ~ Amortised cost Amortised cost 46,718 46,718
(Loans and receivables)
K E S REMER BEAAR (ERRERTUE)  BHEKRE
Cash and cash equivalents Amortised cost Amortised cost 121,971 121,971
(Loans and receivables)
BeRkBEe5H BEAAR (ERRERTUE)  BHEKRE
Unlisted equity investments  Available-for-sale investments  Financial assets at - S
FVTPL
FLETRARE AftHERE BRTFEEFARS
ZeREE
The measurement categories for all cHemBE L ERAMNER

financial liabilities remain the same. The
carrying amounts for all financial liabilities
at 1 July 2017 have not been impacted by
the initial application of HKFRS 9.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTTHE @
(continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued) SETBCREE (&)
(a) Early adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial (a) WREFWEBUHHEEREINREH
Instruments (continued) TAH(E)
(i)  Classification and measurement of financial (i) SHMTAZSERE (B

instruments (continued)

The Group did not designate or
de-designate any financial asset or financial
liability at FVTPL at 1 July 2017

(if)  Credit loss (i1)

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss”
model in HKAS 39 with the ECL model.
The ECL model requires an ongoing
assessment and measurement of credit
risk associated with a financial asset and
therefore recognises ECLs earlier than
under the "“incurred loss” accounting
model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to
the following items:

- financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables); and

- finance lease receivable.

AEBR-_ZE—tF+tA—H
WEEEXBOHEERATE
B ABEzENEMEES
TBAE

EEEE

EBY B R E LR FIRIAE
HEEFEEEADRREEES
EHIFEIFEW [CELBR]E
X - EEBRREAEZREE
e EEEREERSHAN
FERR FAHeREBasE
BIZE39SE M [EEL IR G5t
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(a) Early adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments(continued)

(ii)  Credit loss (continued)

As at 1 July 2017 the Group assessed the
impact of expected credit loss allowance
and concluded that the amount of expected
credit loss is not significant to the Group.
As a result, the Directors considered no
adjustment to the accumulated losses as at
1 July 2017 is necessary.

(iif)  Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting
from the early adoption of HKFRS 9 have
been applied retrospectively, except as
described below:

- Information relating to comparative
periods has not been restated.
Differences in the carrying amounts
of financial assets resulting from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised
in accumulated losses and reserves
as at 1 July 2017 Accordingly, the
information presented for 2017
continues to be reported under HKAS
39 and thus may not be comparable
with the current period.

- The following assessments have been
made on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed at 1 July
2017 (the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9 by the Group), in particular,
the determination of the business
model within which a financial asset
is held.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Early adoption of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with customers

The Group has elected to early adopt HKFRS
15, from 1 July 2017. HKFRS 15 establishes
a comprehensive framework for recognising
revenue and some costs from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18,
Revenue, which covered revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services, and
HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specified
the accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements which
aim to enable users of the financial statements
to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from contracts with customers.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative
effect transition method and has recognised
the cumulative effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1
July 2017. Therefore, comparative information has
not been restated and continues to be reported
under HKASs 11 and 18. As allowed by HKFRS
15, the Group has applied the new requirements
only to contracts that were not completed before
1 July 2017.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(b)

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Early adoption of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with customers (continued)

The revenue recognition of the principal activities

of the Group’s contracts with customers are as

follows:

(1)

(1)

(ifi)

(iv)

Sales of cultural products and leather
Revenue from sales of cultural products
and leather are determined by management
to be recognised at a point in time, (i.e.
when control of the cultural products and
leather is transferred to the customer).

Sales of systems and software licensing
income

Revenue from sales of systems and
software licensing income are determined
by management to recognise at a point
in time (i.e. when control of the systems
and software licensing is transferred to the
customer).

Installation service

Revenue from provision of installation
service is determined by management to
be recognised over time.

Maintenance service

Revenue from provision of maintenance
service is determined by management to
be recognised over time.

Detailed analysis and judgments applied in

relation to revenue recognition are set out in

note 4 to the consolidation financial statments.

The excess of cumulative billings to customer
over the cumulative revenue recognised in profit

or loss is recognised as contract liabilities. The

contract liability is recognised as revenue when
the Group satisfies its performance obligations.
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GEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Early adoption of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with customers (continued)

Reclassifications were made as at 1 July 2017 to
be consistent with the terminology used under
HKFRS 15:

. Receipts in advance from customers which
were previously recognised as trade and
other payables are reclassified to contract
liabilities.

The impact on the Group's financial position by
the early adoption of HKFRS 15 as compared to
HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 previously applied is as
follows:

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

3. FESTTHE @

FHEERD ()

(b) RBEFRNEEYBHEERE15HESF
BRI (&)
RZEBE—+tFtA—-BEEHSE
IATE & &8 B 15 5 2E AV 165% A A
WEFMARE:

. ERERRENE Z R HE MR
RZEREPREAENDER
aHBaE-

HENZAERNE LG ERF18
ShEAGHERENR AKED
FHERRAR R RAE R B RS
HERIFEMEZ R T EMT

As at 1 July 2017

R-Z—-tFtA-H

As previously  Reclassifications Results as
stated  under HKFRS 15 reported

ERMBREER

F15HRET 2
KA25 EFNE ER¥E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET

Consolidated statement of A EMRE (F):
financial position (extract):

Trade and other payables ERESREMRR 75,416 (21,188) 54,228
Contract liabilities aRaE - 21,188 21,188

—E-N\FEH BEMREEBFRAF
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEIHE#
(continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued) SETBCREE (&)
(b) Early adoption of HKFRS 15 Revenue from (b) RERNEEBYBEHEEREISTEEF

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Contracts with customers (continued)

The amount by each financial statements line
items affected in the current period and period
to date by the early adoption of HKFRS 15 as
compared to HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 previously
applied is as follows:

XN (&)

HHR 2 RANEE G E]ZE18
ERBEAEGHENENR AKEE
P BHRKRIAR AR RATRATE
MM EEAFEM I B
T

As at 30 June 2018
R-E-NEXRA=1+H

Results without

the early
adoption of  Reclassifications Results as
HKFRS 15  under HKFRS 15 reported
ARBERMNER BRUBREER
BREEER FHRETLZ
EALE A EFSE ER¥E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FET FET
Consolidated statement of A EMRE (F):
financial position (extract):
Trade and other payables ERE S REMRR 65,688 (21,034) 44,654
Contract liabilities BNERE - 21,034 21,034
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(b) Early adoption of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with customers (continued)

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

3. FESTTHE @

FETRREH (&)
(b) BERAEBHBEERYEI5HEF

XN (&)

Year ended 30 June 2018
BE_Z-\EXA=THLEE
Results without Effects of
the early the early
adoption of adoption of
HKFRS 15 HKFRS 15
AREEHEE REEMNER Results as
R EER MB®REER reported
N LA FI5R T E E3E
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
Consolidated statement of  RABEHRB X (HE)
cash flow (extract)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and BN E SR EMET 2
other payables CRd) /%M (9,728) 154 (9,574)
Decrease in BREREZAD
contract liabilities - (154) (154)

—E-N\FEH BEMREEBFRAF
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are set out
below.

The investments are initially stated at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL) for which transaction costs are
recognised directly in profit or loss. These investments
are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending
on their classification.

Policy applicable from 1 July 2017

Investments other than equity investments
Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method.

- fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) —recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is
held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss
of expected credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.
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GEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities (continued)

Policy applicable from 1 July 2017 (continued)

Investments other than equity investments (continued)

- fair value at profit or loss (FVTPL) — recycling
if the investment does not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in
profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity security is classified as
financial assets at FVTPL unless the equity investment
is not held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group makes an
irrevocable election to designate the investment as
financial assets at FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer's perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in
equity securities, irrespective of whether classified as
financial assets at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in
profit or loss as other income.
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities (continued)

Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2017

Investments in securities held for trading were
classified as financial assets measured at FVTPL. Any
attributable transaction costs were recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value was remeasured, with any resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Dated debt securities that the Group had the positive
ability and intention to hold to maturity were classified
as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities were stated at amortised cost.

Investments which did not fall into any of the above
categories were classified as available-for-sale financial
assets. For available-for-sale equity investments that
do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured,
they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting period
(see accounting policy on credit losses and impairment
of assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The
Group recognises revenue when it transfers control
over a product or service to a customer.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

(@)  The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs.

(b)  The Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced.

(¢) The Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternate use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If none of the above conditions are met, the Group
recognises revenue at the point in time at which the
performance obligation is satisfied.

When the Group satisfies a performance obligation by
delivering the promised goods or services, it creates a
contract based asset on the amount of consideration
earned by the performance. Where the amount of
consideration received from a customer exceeds the
amount of revenue recognised, this gives rise to a
contract liability.
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group recognises revenue from sales of goods
(including cultural products and leather and sales of
systems and related software licensing) are based
on the consideration specified in a contract with a
customer and the Group excludes amounts collected
on behalf of third parties. The Group satisfies a
performance obligation when it transfers control of
the cultural products, leather and systems and related
software licensing to a customer. Revenue from sales
of goods is recognised at the point in time.

The revenue from provision of installation and
maintenance services is recognised over time.

The revenue from provision of maintenance service is
recognised over time in accordance with the terms of
respective underlying agreements.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance
from assets under operating leases, is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the relevant lease term.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling) that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.

In the comparative period, revenue was recognised
when it was probable that the economic benefits
would flow to the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue from sale of cultural
products and sales of systems and related software
were recognised, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership had been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintained neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil

Buildings on freehold land 50 years

Over the shorter of the
remaining unexpired terms
of the relevant leases or 50
years

10% — 50%

Leasehold land and
buildings

Plant and machinery
and communications
networks

Furniture and fixtures 20% — 33'/:%

Motor vehicles 25%

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases, in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is released over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
classified and accounted for as investment properties
and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the property is

derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment (other than development costs
for systems and networks and financial
assets)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Development costs for systems and
networks

Development costs for systems and networks
projects including those paid to independent system
developers, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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GEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Development costs for systems and
networks (continued)

Development costs are recognised only if all of the
following have been demonstrated:

- the technical feasibility of completing the asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

- the intention to complete the asset and use or
sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the asset;

- how the asset will generate probable future
economic benefits. Among other things, the
entity can demonstrate the existence of a market
for the output of the asset or the asset itself or,
if it is to be used internally, the usefulness of the
asset;

- the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the asset during its development.

Development costs that do not fulfill the above
conditions are recognised as expenses in the period in
which it is incurred.

Amortisation is calculated based on straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, subject to a
maximum of three years.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Development costs for systems and
networks (continued)

Where the recoverable amount of development costs
for systems and networks has declined below their
carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to
reflect the decline in value. Where an impairment
loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

An item of development costs, including any deposits
and prepaid development costs for systems and
networks is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Research expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

Credit losses from financial instruments and
finance lease receivable

Policy applicable from 1 July 2017
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (ECLs) on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade

and other receivables); and

- finance lease receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
finance lease receivable (continued)

Policy applicable from 1 July 2017 (continued)
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference

between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls for receivables
are discounted using the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an approximation
thereof where the effect of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
finance lease receivable (continued)

Policy applicable from 1 July 2017 (continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)
Loss allowances for trade receivables and finance

leave receivable are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs on the basis that there are
no significant financing components. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments (including loan
commitments issued), the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial

recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
(ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
finance lease receivable (continued)

Policy applicable from 1 July 2017 (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
finance lease receivable (continued)

Policy applicable from 1 July 2017 (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case

interest income is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
finance lease receivable (continued)

Policy applicable from 1 July 2017 (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
finance lease receivable is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when
the Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.

Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2017

Prior to 1 July 2017 an “incurred loss” model was
used to measure impairment losses on financial assets
not classified as at financial assets at FVTPL (e.g.
trade and other receivables). Under the “incurred
loss” model, an impairment loss was recognised only
when there was objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment included:
- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
finance lease receivable (continued)

Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2017 (continued)
If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss was
determined and recognised as follows:

- For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost,
impairment loss was measured as the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate, where the effect of
discounting was material.

This assessment was made collectively where these
financial assets shared similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and had not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which were assessed for
impairment collectively were based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective Group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreased and the decrease could be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss was
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss was only recognised to the extent
that it did not result in the asset’'s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

When the recovery of a trade and other receivables
or other financial assets carried at amortised cost
was considered doubtful but not remote, associated
impairment losses were recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group was satisfied that recovery
was remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
was written off against the gross carrying amount
of those assets directly. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account
were reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
were recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, and
it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
measured at the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows (where the
effect is material).

Interest in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint venture
are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in joint venture
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the joint venture.
When the Group’'s share of losses of a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interest in that joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in
the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that joint venture.
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first-out method except for cost of cultural products,
which are assigned by using specific identification cost
method.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method.

Policy prior to 1 July 2017

In the comparative period, amounts received before
the related service was performed were presented
as "receipts in advance” under “trade and other
payables”. These balances have been reclassified on 1
July 2017 as shown in note 25.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed
for ECL.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy for borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
taxation” as reported in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable and deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the directors of the
Company that made strategic decisions during the
year.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
group entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(the translation reserve). Exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposal of.

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operate a self-
administered and funded pension scheme in the
United Kingdom. The scheme provides defined pension
benefits with reference to the final salary of the
members at retirement and their length of service. The
scheme is closed to new members since 1 January
2003.
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Retirement benefit scheme (continued)

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined
benefit retirement plans is calculated separately
for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their
service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine the present value and the fair
value of any plan assets is deducted. The calculation
is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method, when the calculation results
available in the form of any future refunds from the
plan or reductions in future contribution to the plan.

Service Cost and net interest expense/(income) on
the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognised
in profit or loss and allocated by function as part of
“administrative expense”. Current service cost is
measured as the increase in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee
service in current period. When the benefits of a
plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the
portion of the changed benefit related to past service
by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is
recognised as an expense in profit or loss at the earlier
of when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs
and when related restructuring cost or termination
benefit are recognised. Net interest expense/(income)
for the period is determined by applying the discount
rate used to measure the defined benefit liability/
(asset). The discount rate is the yield at the end of the
reporting period on high quality corporate bonds that
have maturity dates approximating the terms of the
Group's obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit
retirement plans are recognised in other
comprehensive income and reflected immediately
in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to
profit or loss. Remeasurements comprise actuarial
gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/(asset)) and any change in the effect of
the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related party

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent;

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group;
the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personal services to the
reporting entity or to the parent of the
reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Change in accounting policy in respect of
the Group’'s investment properties

As at 30 June 2017 the carrying amount of the
Group's property, plant and equipment, included
investment properties located in Hong Kong and the
People’'s Republic of China (the “"PRC”) with the
aggregate carrying amount of HK$3,483,000 which
the Directors considered the amount involved to be
immaterial and hence did not separately present them
as investment properties. As at 30 June 2017 the
Group's property, plant and equipment and investment
properties were accounted for using the cost model.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements
of the Group as at 30 June 2018, the Directors
have determined that the accounting policy for the
investment properties shall be changed from cost
model to fair value model as they believe that the
change would provide more relevant information.
As a result, the carrying amount of the investment
properties (based on their fair values) is material and
hence investment properties are presented separately
from property, plant and equipment. With the new
accounting policy, the Group's investment properties
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period with changes in fair value being recognised
in profit or loss. The change in accounting policy has
been applied retrospectively.

As at 1 July 2016 and 30 June 2017 the fair value of
the investment properties determined using market
comparable approach is based on valuation reports,
issued by Hilco Global Greater China Limited.
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(continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Change in accounting policy in respect of
the Group’s investment properties (continued)

Impact on the consolidated financial statements as at

REMBERRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

3. FESTTHE @

Mg

{

HR-_ZE—tFRXA=THZ

BREEEERENE S BHTES

RAEMBRE

30 June 2017 as follows: EECZEENT:
The Group
as previously Prior year The Group
reported adjustments as restated
AEBMZ BEFE AEEZ
BEEHK HE 55l
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET
Property, plant and equipment  #% B /E k& 42,470 (3,483) 38,987
Investment properties HEY = 54,094 54,094
Other non-current assets H3ERBEE 459 — 459
Non-current assets  Fm@m#EzE 0 42929 80,611 93,540
Currentassets ~ wBHEE 4423433 - 4423433
Current liabilites ~ #®B&/E (293583) _______ T (293,583
Deferred tax liabilities EEFTEEFE = (9,573) (9,573)
Other non-current liabilities HM3EnRsa®E (60,727) = (60,727)
Non-current liabilites ~ #¥m®&af® (60,727) | (9.673) __ (70,300)
Net assets EEFE 4,112,052 41,038 4,153,090
Accumlated losses 28 (710,600) 41,038 (669,562)
Share capital and A% 7S R H 48 4,822,652 = 4,822,652
other reserves

Total Equity R 4,112,052 41,038 4,153,090

—E-N\FEH

BEMREEBFRAF
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBX#®

(continued)

Change in accounting policy in respect of
the Group’s investment properties (continued)

(#8)

{

BREEEERENE S BHTES

Impact on the consolidated financial statements as at HRZZE-RNFLtA-AZREMBHRRE

1 July 2016 as follows: EZRENAT:
The Group

as previously Prior year The Group

reported adjustments as restated

EEEZ BEFE rEEZ

BEEHK T 55l

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEIT FHEIT FHET

Property, plant and equipment  #% B /E k& 45,646 (3,704) 41,942

Investment properties HEY = 53,187 53,187

Other non-current assets HitIERBEE 485,660 = 485,660

Non-current assets = FABEE 531,306 49,483 580,789

Currentassets == #"BHE 8723391 _ ________ T 872339

Current liabilites  w&&f®  (@27w21) T o)

Deferred tax liabilities EEREBEEE — (9,365) (9,365)

Other non-current liabilities HEMIERBEE (61,498) = (61,498)

Non-current liabilities  _ #®®&&® = 61498 _____ (9,365 ___ (70,863)

Net assets EEZRE 8,916,988 40,118 8,957,106

Retained profits R A 3,478,694 40,118 3,518,712

Share capital and PR Je B A 5,438,394 - 5,438,394

other reserves
Total Equity AR 8,916,988 40,118 8,957,106

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Change in accounting policy in respect of
the Group’'s investment properties (continued)

3. = n_f_JBZH‘— (%)

ABARERANEZ BHIRD

\ 7

Impact on the consolidated statement of profit or loss HEBEE_T—+tFAAAZTHLEFEZR
and other comprehensive income for the year ended ?Eﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁb%@ﬂ&ﬁﬁ%zéiZ%%ﬁﬂT-
30 June 2017:
The Group
as previously Prior year The Group
reported adjustments as restated
rEBZ BEAFE AEHE
BEE® T ZE7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
Revenue & 194,544 - 194,544
Cost of sales B R (133,336) - (133,336)
Gross profit ER 61,208 - 61,208
Other income, gains and A A -~ iz R EE
losses 5,181 - 5,181
Gain on disposal of o E B ARz W
subsidiaries 6,097 - 6,097
Distribution costs 7 85K AR (27.332) - (27,332)
General and administrative — R RITBIE
expenses (91,172) 221 (90,951)
Impairment losses recognised Ft1F & MR 2 (EE B
for inventories (4,275,921) - (4,275,921)
Impairment losses recognised  Ft R 4t & 4948 2 5 A&
for development costs for FrigR 2 B E 1B
systems and networks (49,199) - (49,199)
Impairment losses recognised 7] # & 1% & R
for available-for-sale BB E 1R
investments (418,296) - (418,296)
Research and development MEEFAERAST
costs expensed (3,089) - (3,089)
Fair value gain on investment RBAFEMKERE
properties acquired in prior Mz AN FEEKS
year - 907 907
Finance costs B 75 B AR (11,984) - (11,984)
Share of result of BE—HeBELECEE
a joint venture (4) - (4)
Loss before taxation BRBLATE R (4,804,511) 1,128 (4,803,383)
Income tax expense FriS &2 (405) (208 (613)
Lossfortheyear = ° FAwE (4.804.916) 920 _ _ (4,803,996)
ZE-N\FFR BEMNREBAER QA
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGIEX®@
(continued)

4

Change in accounting policy in respect of ERAEEREME 2 SFTHRE
the Group’'s investment properties (continued) (&)

Mg}

The Group
as previously Prior year The Group
reported adjustments as restated
rEEZ BEFE rEH
BELRK R ZE7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Other comprehensive Hth2mEE W
expense:
Item that will not be BreEfsEEiEas
reclassified to profit or loss: HH :
Remeasurement of defined EHETEEBA RS
benefits pension plans (208) - (208)
Item that may be reclassified HEAEFHEEEZR
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEH :
Exchange difference arising BINEIREFRESE
on translation of foreign ZEHZER
operations 188 - 188
Other comprehensive expense 4R H th & 2
_fortheyear o ______ 200 .- . (20)
Total comprehensive FRE2EXHERE
expense for the year (4,804,936) 920 (4,804,016)
Loss for the year attributable to: fE{5 EE A &8
Owners of the Company KRAEEB A (4,189,059) 920 (4,188,139)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR IR R = (615,857) - (615,857)
(4,804,916) 920 (4,803,996)
Total comprehensive expense [E{GFRNEE X HA%HE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE F =N (4,189,072) 920 (4,188,152)
Non-controlling interests FEIER AR R A = (615,864) - (615,864)
(4,804,936) 920 (4,804,016)
Loss per share—Basic and BREBE-ERNREHES
diluted (Restated) (£3) HK$(13.23)% 7T * - HK$(13.23)% T
J The weighted average number of ordinary shares for * ARFEEHEZE-_T—tFA=1+H
the purposes of calculating basic loss per share for IEFFEZERERNEBE 2 EBRME
the year ended 30 June 2017 has been retrospectively FHHEEPHARARRRERMNE 0 &
adjusted to reflect the share consolidation and rights HA% (FFzE14) ©

issue (note 14).
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

(a) Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting
policies

In the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies, management has made the
following accounting judgements:

Classification of inventories

The Group holds certain cultural products for
resale in the ordinary course of business.
Although the value of cultural products may
appreciate over time, it is the Group's intention
to hold such assets for trading. Accordingly,
those items of cultural products are classified as
inventories under current assets.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities arising from investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model,
the Group has reviewed its investment property
portfolios and concluded:

In respect of the Group's investment properties
located in Hong Kong, the management has
determined that these properties are not held
within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property
over time and consequently the presumption
in the amended HKAS 12 is not rebutted for
these properties. As a result, the Group has
not recognised deferred tax on changes in fair
value of the investment properties as the Group
is not subject to any income taxes on the fair
value changes of the investment properties on
disposal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(a)

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting
policies (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties
(continued)

In respect of the Group's investment properties
located in the PRC, the management has
determined that these properties are held
within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property
over time and consequently the presumption
in the amended HKAS 12 is rebutted for these
properties. As a result, the Group continues
to measure the deferred tax relating to these
properties using the tax rate that would apply as
a result of recovering their value through use.

Revenue recognition

Judgement is required in determining the timing
of satisfaction of performance obligation. The
Group derives revenue from sale of cultural
products, leather products, systems and related
software. The Group carefully evaluates the
terms and conditions stipulated in contract and/
or sale order with a customer and assesses
when the control of the goods has been
transferred to the customer. Also, the Group also
assessed whether the Group is acting as the
principal (i.e. whether the Group has the primary
responsibility for the sale of goods, bears the
risks of loss and obsolescence, and also has
full discretion over the goods. The Directors
have determined that the control is passed to
customer upon the goods are delivered to the
agreed destination. This is also the point in time
at which the right to consideration becomes
unconditional, only the passage of time is
required before payment is due.
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SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(a)

Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting
policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

The Directors assessed and concluded that the
sales of systems and installation are considered
to be only one single performance obligation
and to be recognised at a particular point in time
(i.,e. when control of the systems and software
is transferred to the customer). The systems
are standardised products and the Group
delivers products to customers after installation
of customised softwares in the systems. The
maintenance and installation work is carried
out in the Group's premises. The Group grants
customers the right to use the software and no
update or upgrade of the software is required
to be performed by the Group after sales.
Therefore, the sales of systems and software
and related installation are assessed to be not
distinct in the context of application of HKFRS
15 as what being delivered to the customer is a
combined product with customer specifications.
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(a)

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting
policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group sells large telecommunication
equipment and software that need to be installed
at customers’ premises. As management
considered that the hardware installation service
is a very simple procedure the equipment can
operate and function as normal way and the
customer can choose to install the equipment
by themselves or third party service provider.
The installation service and sales of equipment
are distinct in the context of the application of
HKFRS 15. Revenue from provision of installation
services is determined by management to
be recognised over time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs the installation service. The
Group recognises revenue in relation to the sales
of telecommunication equipment of a particular
point in time (i.e. when control is transferred to
the customers).

The Group signed contracts with customers
to provide maintenance over a period of time.
The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs the
maintenance service, therefore, revenue from
provision of maintenance service is recognised
over time.
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

Investment properties as at 30 June 2018 are
stated at fair value based on valuation reports,
issued by Stirling Appraisals Limited (2016
and 2017: Hilco Global Greater China Limited),
by using market comparable approach.

In determining the fair value, the valuer has
based on property valuation techniques which
involve certain estimates including comparable
sales in the relevant market and appropriate
discount rates.

In relying on the valuation reports, management
has exercised their judgement and is satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the
current market condition.

The carrying amount of investment properties
as at 30 June 2016, 2017 and 2018 were
HK$53,187,000, HK$54,094,000 and
HK$167,834,000 respectively. Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement, are stated in note 40.

Estimated impairment of development costs
for systems and networks

As at 30 June 2017 determining whether
development costs for systems and networks
are impaired requires an estimation of the
value in use on a project-by-project basis. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flow expected to arise
from the continuing use of the assets or since
successful launch of technology projects and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. The Group estimates its cash
flow projection covering a period up to five
years based on financial budgets approved by
management and a discount rate ranging from
10% to 25% per annum.
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b)

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Sources of estimation uncertainty

(continued)

Estimated impairment of development costs
for systems and networks (continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the
Directors have continuously studied the market
conditions of the information technology
industry with the intention to invest in leading
technologies with high earning potential.
However, other than those systems owned
and developed by Multitone Electronic Plc
(“Multitone”), the Directors had not been able
to establish whether the rest of the systems
owned by the Group were still able to generate
any revenue to the Group, especially after the
granting to independent third parties during
the year ended 30 June 2016 the non-exclusive
right to exploit and use the design of certain of
the Group's developed systems and networks.
Noting that minimal revenue was generated
from the system sales, software licensing and
services segment in Asia Pacific region during
the year, the Directors considered it prudent not
to project for any positive cash flow from those
systems in the foreseeable future. Therefore,
management decided not to make any further
investment into the existing development
projects in Asia Pacific region but will maintain
its investment in the European region as the
relevant technologies are still developing well
and the management of Multitone has kept
increasing its market share in different parts
of Europe. The Directors consider it is not a
discontinued operation during the year ended 30
June 2017 The development costs for systems
and networks were fully impaired for the year
ended 30 June 2017

As at 30 June 2018, the management of the
Group consider the zero recoverable amount
of the development costs for systems and
networks is appropriate and no reversal of
impairment is considered necessary.
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SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Estimated impairment of available-for-sale
investments

During the year ended 30 June 2017, only
uncertified and simple balance sheets and
statement of profit and loss were given to us
through our ex-senior management for which
the existing management has not been able to
verify their correctness, therefore due to the
reason that the management had not received
the necessary financial and other information of
these investments nor been able to establish
contacts with these investment entities and
based on the fact that no dividend income has
been received from the investments since 1
January 2016, the management considered that
the amount cannot be recovered. Hence, an
impairment loss of HK$418,296,000 was charged
to profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2017.

Impairment allowances on financial assets
(including trade and other receivables)

The measurement of impairment losses under
HKFRS 9 across all categories of financial assets
(including trade and other receivables) requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment
losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are
driven by a number of factors, changes in which
can result in different levels of allowances.

The Directors performed a detailed assessment
based on the historical default rate and
forward-looking analysis on the trade and other
debtors and finance lease debtor. As a result,
provision for impairment on other receivables of
HK$8,751,000 (2017: Nil) was recognised for the
year ended 30 June 2018.

For the year ended 30 June 2018, trade
receivables amounted to HK$411,000 (2017:
Nil) was written off due to the default by the
individual trade debtors.

No provision for finance lease receivable has
been made as the debtor is with high credit
rating and has no historical default record with
the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market price of similar products
and historical experience of distributing and

BEARAERMAESTIREE2ER

R (#)
(b) fAETFAEEMEZETERR (&)

FEZAZHEFEE

FEZAERFERATEFBIER
Z AT EERGR TR 2 RA R
ERXFAE - REHETDREBEEMUE
mZRITHE RS HEEEROEE
EmZBELRMEL TEERET
AMBEBEBREL - EBERETRE

selling products of similar nature. It could change BT ZEmE -
significantly as a result of market condition.
Management assesses the estimations at each
reporting date.
At 30 June 2018, the carrying amount of the RZFE—NFRA=Z+H X&EEF
Group's inventories was HK$32,949,000 (2017: 2 ERMEEA32,949,0008 T (=&
HK$4,254,744,000). —+ 4 :4,254,744,0008 7T) °
5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. £@TA
Categories of financial instruments SRt T EER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets TREE
At fair value through profit or loss ERFEBEFABRR 110,786 =
At amortised cost RHE A 154,952 =
Loans and receivables (including ERREWER (BEEFER
deposits, bank balances and cash) RITHEBRES) - 166,560
265,738 166,560
Financial liabilities TRBE
At amortised cost (including trade and HEHEAAN (BRENES R
other payables, amount due to a HMEREH BN —REFEER
director, interest bearing bank and B R BRI REMEE
other borrowings, promissory note EREEEE )
payable) 388,117 267,712
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
trade and other receivables, finance lease receivable,
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, interest bearing bank and other borrowings,
amount due to a director and promissory note
payable. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2018, the Group's maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to
trade receivables and finance lease receivable, the
management of the Group will only allow customers
with good credit history to pay on credit. In addition,
the management reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account future discounted cash
flows, to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk
on finance lease receivable as the finance lease
receivable amounting to HK$50,605,000 is due from
a single debtor. As at 30 June 2018, no provision for
expected credit loss on the finance lease receivable
has been made as this debtor is with high credit
rating and has no recent history of default, thus
the management of the Group does not expect any
significant loss from the non-performance by this
debtor.

Other than concentration of credit risk on finance
lease receivable, liquid funds which are deposited
with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group
does not have any other significant concentration of
credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a large number
of customers, spread across diverse industries and
geographical areas. Liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

To the extent that the interest flows are floating rate,

the undiscounted amount of interest payment is

estimated based on the interest rate at the end of the

reporting period.

REMBERRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

SR T B ®)
SR EERBUER (8)

g3

HBELEB (B

B HMEFEZNETIRERS PR
ZHEEERBRNEN RS-

Effective Within Total Carrying
interest  one year or Between Between undiscounted amount at
rates  on demand 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flows 30 June 2018
R=ZB-N§
1ERE ABHE  ANA=TH
BRAIE REA 1528 225% BER4AE ZBEE
% HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
=pi FET FEr FET FET FET
2018 “E-)N\%

Trade and other payables  EfTE 5 REMER - 44,216 S S 44,216 44,216
Amount due to a director B —REZHE - 4,180 - - 4,180 4,180

Interest bearing bank FERTREREER
and other borrowings 13.0 59,228 275,301 - 334,529 282,728
Promissory note payable ~ Eff & Z#& 15.9 1,279 69,787 - 71,066 56,993
108,903 345,088 - 453,991 388,117
Effective Within Total Carrying
interest  one year or Between Between  undiscounted amount at
rates on demand 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flows 30 June 2017
RZT—+&
1ER *ER  SA=TH
ERA & bl 1826 255 Ren4E ZEEfE
% HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
ARl FET FET FET FET FET

2017 ZE-tF

Trade and other payables  JE(FE 5 REM R - 54,101 S S 54,101 54,101
Amount due to a director BN —REEHE - 9,975 - - 9,975 9,975

Interest bearing bank SERTREMEE
and other borrowings 158 204,214 - - 204,214 203,636
268,290 - - 268,290 267712
—E-NEFEFER BEMKEEFERQA
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank deposits (2017: variable-
rate bank borrowings and bank deposits). As at 30
June 2017, the interest on bank loans was mainly
based on London Inter-bank Offered Rate.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to finance lease receivable, fixed rates other
borrowing and margin loans (2017: fixed rate other
borrowing).

As at 30 June 2018, the Group's fixed rates
borrowings and floating rate borrowing amounted
to HK$282,728,000 (2017: HK$200,000,000) and nil
(2017: HK$3,636,000) respectively. The Group does
not enter into any arrangement to hedge cash flow
interest rate risk. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need arises.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate deposit, bank balances and bank and other
borrowings at the end of reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming that the amount of
balances outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis
points (2017: 10 basis points) increase or decrease
represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2017: 10
basis points) higher or lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group's profit after tax for the
year ended 30 June 2018 would decrease or increase
by approximately HK$113,000 (2017: decrease or
increase by approximately HK$74,000).
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of
equity investments decrease as a result of changes in
the levels of equity indices and the values of individual
securities. The Group was exposed to equity price risk
arising from individual equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(note 23).

The Group's listed equity investments classified as
financial assets at FVTPL are listed on the Stock
Exchange and are valued at quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period.

The market equity index for the Stock Exchange, at
the close of business of the nearest trading day in
the year to the end of the reporting period, and its
respective highest and lowest points during the year
were as follows:
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30 June 2018 High/Low 1 July 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
AA=+H Ba/ RIE +tA—H
Hong Kong - EB-EEEY
Hang Seng Index 28,955  33,484/25,200 25,655

The Group manages its exposure by closely monitoring AEBBRTYERAETEZERATE
the price movements and the changes in market BEMNEREHEMASZHEREMZIHEA
conditions that may affect the value of these equity % o

investments.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. @I AR®)
Financial risk management objectives and HRREREEERBER (8)
policies (continued)
Equity price risk (continued) BRAEEE R (&
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to TRIREMEHMESHRIFTIE BRE
a reasonably possible change in the fair values of AFRRBEZEZERT REKREZ NF
the equity investments, with all other variables held BELRGEREEEHR 2 HRE  THIER
constant and before any impact on tax, based on their HEHRMEmETE-
carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.
Increase/
(decrease)
in profit Increase/
Carrying after tax (decrease)
amount of Increase/ and in other
financial (decrease) retained  components
investments in price profit of equity
BRELEFR Hir#ER
SRRE EiEm/ REEF ERED
FHE (R) #m/(Hd) &/ (HD)
HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$'000
FET Bk FET FET
2018 —Z-N\F
Equity securities EEELEMZ
listed in Hong Kong: RAES:
Held-fortrading FIEEE 110,786 32.87 36,415 -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. @I A #)
Financial risk management objectives and EREREEEERBER (£)
policies (continued)
Foreign currency risk S B
Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement INBRERIER B ARBMBEERARS
in foreign currency exchange rate which will affect the MZINEEREFER - NEEE TREKE
Group's financial results and its cash flows. Certain PERRIBITHEBR TN E - NEB W
trade receivables and bank balances of the Group are S RAMNEEFRT A - AEEMZ —BR
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group does not KB BEEINERA RS HEBEINER
engage in any foreign currency hedging instruments. B BETREE@MEIINERRE  BEREE
It is the Group's policy to manage foreign currency ZEHRT A
risk through matching foreign currency income with
expense, and where exposure to foreign exchange is
anticipated, appropriate hedging instruments will be
used.
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign RARZEMEBREFEUINEH BB
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities, BEEREBE SASEEEHINERR -
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign SEERUIINESECEBEEREE BE
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary RBEHBHZEAEBERNT:
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE a& BE =K
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET
Euro BT 22,068 - 14,415 -
Hong Kong dollar BT 591 - 1,800 =
Pound Sterling HEE 367 - 1,068 =
Macau Pataca pcshid 915 (121) 6,432 =
Renminbi AR 2,133 = = =
United States dollar ETT 5,144 - 819 -

—E-N\FEH BEMREEBFRAF
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group entities are mainly exposed to foreign
currency risk from Euro, Pound Sterling, Renminbi
and Macau Pataca. Under the pegged exchange rate
system, the financial exposure on exchange rate
fluctuation between Hong Kong dollar and United
States dollars is considered insignificant by the
Directors and therefore no sensitivity analysis has
been prepared.

The following table details the group entities’
sensitivity to a 5% (2017: 5%) increase and decrease
in Euro, Pound Sterling, Renminbi and Macau Pataca
against each group entity’'s functional currency. 5%
(2017: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’'s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for
a 5% (2017: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.
A positive number below indicates an increase in
profit before taxation where Euro and Pound Sterling
strengthens by 5% (2017: 5%) against each group
entity’s functional currency. For a 5% (2017: 5%)
weakening of Euro, Pound Sterling, Renminbi and
Macau Pataca against each group entity's functional
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the profit or loss.

EMmTHE#
BRESEERERBE

g (A

AEBERTIZAEZIINERBRKBBOT
W ARBFORPIE - EHBIE RS T
BEER /BT RETTE RN 2 B 5 R iR
i R 1t 3 S A B U E 0 AT -

TERFAMFASEZTEEE T BE- AR
MEBPMEREERERBINGEER ZER
EARTHA% (ZT—EF:5% ) ZHX
Fob5% (ZT—+F 5% ) HAEEEAI
MEEZEBABRSIINERBRSAMEAZ
GRELE HAREEEYHIINEERLE
AIREE B 2 FTME - MRE DT EBIEUINE
FTEZRENERIER  WEAINEE RS
5% (ZE—LF 5% ) )HEFHEZHEE
PR UTEEERMBRTREELSE
EEEY %Eﬁ%ﬂﬁs%(:"—ti%%)
RESHRBANER LA - MBUT - HeE - AR
MRRMEH S EE BRI EBRESY
(ZZ—tF:5%)  AeHBEZBERAR
BEZHEREE-

2018 2017

—E2-N\F —E—LtF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Euro BT 1,103 721
Pound Sterling O 18 53
Renminbi AR 107 =
Macau Pataca e 40 -

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.
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GEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised

cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

(a) Revenue

Revenue represents the amounts received and
receivable for goods sold and services provided

by the Group to external customers.

The revenue of the Group comprises the

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

$RTH %)

TREERTRMEBEZATEER

EERRBBEHERARNGAEVBRRINEZ
CREERABZREERAAFEEM
o

WHEARERAIREPHEEM
FAR RS 2 B W EURIR -

REHZBEBETIRIA:

following:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—iF
HK$°000 HK$000
Fi# T FHET
Revenue from contracts with EEBMBRELERIFE 155
customers within HEAZRPAHKE
the scope of HKFRS 15
Sales of cultural products HE XL Em - 53,000
Sales of systems including HE RG (RIEE TR E)
software licensing 86,547 92,737
Sales of leather HERE 5,890 =
Rendering of services RE IR 27,892 26,960
120,329 172,697
Leasing of system products = M&EXRMER 22428 21,847
142,754 194,544

—E-N\FEH

BEMREEBFRAF
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Segment information

The operating segments have been identified
on the basis of internal management reports
prepared in accordance with accounting
policies conforming to HKFRSs, which are
regularly reviewed by the executive directors
of the Company, for the purpose of allocating
resources to segments and assessing their
performance. Five (2017: four) operating and
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 “Operating
Segments” are identified as follows:

o Sales of cultural - includes income from trading of cultural
products products
o System sales - includes income from sales of systems

including software including software licensing and

licensing and provision of related services
services

o Leasing of system - includes income from leasing of
products system products

o Strategic - includes income from available-for-sale
investments investments and financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss
o QOther - include income from sales of leather

The accounting policies of the operating and
reportable segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in note
3(b). Segment results represent the loss before
taxation recognised by each reportable segment,
excluding interest income, finance costs, share
of result of a joint venture, unallocated income
and expenses such as central administration
costs and directors’ salaries, etc. This is the
measure reported to the executive directors
of the Company, the chief operating decision
makers, for the purpose of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6. WEkoDEER &)
INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Segment information (continued) (b) DEER (&)

Information regarding the above segments is FRALISBEERERUOT

reported below:

System sales

including
Sales of software Leasing
cultural licensing  of system Strategic
products and services products investments Other Consolidated
REHE
(BERHY
HEXL BHFER HEZG RE
ER %) ER BE& Hit ga
HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000
FET FET FET FEx FEx FET
Year ended 30 June 2018 HE-E-N\§
REZTHLEE
REVENUE 63
External and total revenue HNEE R BN
Recognised at a point in time ~ RE—BHER - 86,547 = S 5,890 92,437
Recognised over time BERsRER - 27,892 22,425 - - 50,317
- 114,439 22,425 - 5,890 142,754
RESULTS S
Segment result PEEE (4,228,726) 1,483 1,567 (1,817) 158 (4,227,335)
Gain on early redemption of ~ IRATEEERAK

promissory note payable SR M (W#30)

(note 30) 3,444
Interest income (note 7) FISWA (Bi7) 2,176
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &M B2 2 i

(note 11) (W) 1,465
Fair value gain on RBAFEEMKERE

investment properties mEZATEER

acquired in prior year (note 16)  (#1##16) 27,366
Fair value loss on investment ~ AEEREZZE

property acquired in Nz TEBEER

current year (note 16 (Hiit16) (178,259)
Finance costs fnote 8) BIRA (Hi28) (50,634)
Unallocated expenses, net RAERT 38 (54,726)
Share of result of a joint venture E(E—RAENE 7 ¥5 (7)
Loss before taxation BRAER (4,476,510)

ZE-N\FFR BEMNREBAER QA
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6.
INFORMATION (continued)

180

(b) Segment information (continued)

System sales

including
Sales of software Leasing
cultural licensing of system Strategic
products  and services products investments  Consolidated
REGHE
(BT
HEXL TR HERG R
Em AR%) Em RE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET FET
Year ended BE-Z—-tf%
30 June 2017 RA=THLEE
(Restated) (E5)
REVENUE 1§
External and HIMEE Rl =
total revenue 53,000 119,697 21,847 - 194,544
RESULTS E4
Segment result ECES (4,269,763) (81,984) 3,045 (428,054)  (4,776,756)
Interest income (note 7)  FIEWA (#1527) 180
Gain on disposal of EERBRR KR
subsidiaries (note 1) (#/£11) 6,097
Fair value gain on B E AT
investment properties =~ REMEZ
acquired in prior year ATFEEKE
(note 16) (Htit16) 907
Finance costs fnote 8)  BIIEAA (f1#28) (11,984)
Unallocated expenses, KA BT — 58
net (21,823)
Share of result of EE-—HEELEL
a joint venture Y (4)
Loss before taxation bR %1 B 5 1R (4,803,383

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6. WEKkDBEER (&)
|NFOR|V|AT|ON (continued)
(b) Segment information (continued) (b) DEER (#)

System sales

including
Sales of software Leasing
cultural licensing of system Strategic
products  and services products  investments Other  Consolidated
AEHE
(BE&H
HEXL BHER HERSE R
ER FR%) ER RE i ge
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FEx FEx FET TEx Tz FEx
Year ended 30 June 2018 BE-Z-N\F
ARBZTHLEE
Amounts included in the AR ESEEH
measure of segment BECEE:
profit or loss:
Amortisation and depreciation  # i R iTE = 7,159 1,390 6 856 9,411
Fair value gain on financial BATEEABSEL
assets at fair value PREEL
through profit or loss ATEENE - - - 15,077 - 15,077
Impairment losses recognised ~ 5iF SHARESR
for inventories 4,222,621 - - - - 4,222,621
Impairment losses recognised  #AERE fFEH#R
for other receivables REER - 5,835 - - 2,916 8,751
T -NFFR BERNEEEERQA
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Segment information (continued) (b) oFEER (&)
System sales
including
Sales of software Leasing
cultural licensing of system Strategic
products  and services products investments Other  Consolidated
REHE
(BERH
HEX RAFER HEZR i
E® ) Em RE it o)
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Year ended 30 June 2017 BE-Z-tF
(Restated) RAZTHLEE (EF)
Amounts included in the AR ESEEH
measure of segment BECEE:
profit or loss:
Amortisation and depreciation  # i R iTE = 25,945 1,334 = = 27279
Impairment losses recognised 5L lF SHBHESR
for inventories 4,275,921 - - - - 4,275,921
Impairment losses recognised 5t 25 R BEEEA K
for development costs for FERZHESR
systems and networks - 49,199 - - - 49,199
Impairment losses recognised SR/t HEREFBEAZ
for available-forsale REER
investments - - - 418,296 - 418,296

B 7 I 4 A B R 0 AL K R 3R AYAh E
MEBE2REERUEBOIBEE
REENER RUE27EEER -

No information about segment assets and
liabilities is presented as such information is not
regularly provided to the chief operating decision
maker for resource allocation and performance
assessment purposes.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6.
INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Geographical information

The following table provides an analysis of the
Group's revenue and non-current assets by
location of customers and by location of assets

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

Ko@ER @)

AEBDFIREF REEMEME D
ZWRRERBDEEDTHIINT
*x:

respectively:

Revenue Non-current assets (Note)
W 25 FERBEE (H:F)
Year ended 30 June As at 30 June
BEXRA=THLFE RARA=TH
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\Fg ZE—ttF ZEB-NF ZT—+LF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
The People’s Republic ~ F#E A RHEAME
of China (the “PRC"), (&) -
including Hong Kong BIEEE KRR
and Macau 6,011 53,690 218,200 61,726
Europe (mainly United BN (FZAEE K
Kingdom and Germany) &) 136,743 140,854 29,838 31,355
142,754 194,544 248,038 93,081

Note: Non-current assets exclude the Group's interest

in a joint venture.

Wit RRDEETBEAKER-—HE
BhR2iEn-

—E-N\FEH

BEMREEBFRAF
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (continued)

(d) Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding

WKk o BER (@)

(d FEEFZEH
B R B 4F S 16 N SR B 9 R 40 W A

years contributing over 10% of the total sales of 0% BPWZMT -
the Group are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer A BEPA - 30,000
Customer B ®PB - 23,000

Customer A and B contributed revenue from
sales of cultural products during the year ended

30 June 2017

No single customer contributed 10% or more to

the Group's revenue for the year ended 30 June

BE_Z—tHEXA=ZTHLFE"
EﬁA&BHf’EHﬁ%%B‘(%EmH&Zﬁ B

Bz—_Z—N\ExA= +E|ﬂ:¢r
WHEE-—XFEMAEEKZ10%K

2018. BA e

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES Hb A~ iz REE
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —ZT—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest income Bl A 2,176 180
Exchange gain, net b 5 W 5 58 369 1,126
Others (note) H b (faE) 9,776 3,875
12,321 5,181

Note:

As at 30 June 2018, included in others are gain on early
redemption of promissory note payable amounting to

HK$3,444,000 (2017: Nil).

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. EIEAA
2018 2017
—®-NF  —TtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interest on bank and other borrowings 17 R EMEE 2 F & 50,634 11,984
9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. KEiFIES
2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&ET
(Restated)
(&5])
Loss before taxation has been arrived BERFATEED NG
at after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (note 10(a)) EEME (Hit10(a)) 6,740 4,260
Staff costs excluding directors’ BERAN(TEEEEHE)
remuneration 84,019 88,446
Retirement benefit scheme RIKEFFT B H R
contributions other than directors (BEZERBRIN) 3,690 5,962
Total staff costs EE KA 1BEE 94,449 98,668

Amortisation of development costs for ZF# [ A8 4% B 3% A A 2 48 6%

systems and networks, included in (FrASHERANRN) (H:E17)

cost of sales (note 17) - 17,702
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERZEITE

equipment, included in general and (FFA—MRITHZHA)

administrative expenses (note 15) (Biat15) 9,411 9,677
Total amortisation and depreciation BiERITESSE 9,411 27279
Auditor’s remuneration BB S 7179 4,347
Cost of inventories recognised as ERERATH

expense ZHEEKA 67,007 112,061
Bad debt written off for 8 BN E 5 BR A 2 AR

trade receivables 41 -
Direct operating expenses relating to I EMEEB T AERLEH Y

investment properties 771 1
Minimum lease payments paid under ZBEEHED N2 HKIE

operating leases in respect of: HENRBEEE:

Rented premises HEWME 7,432 5,902

Motor vehicles E 2,517 2,834

—E-N\FEH BEMREEBFRAF 185
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION,
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors and chief executive’s
remuneration

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefit of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 30 June 2018

10. EEME HeFALRSREE

=

(a)

ESRITHRARZHME

RIEEE D AMEH E383(1NE R A A
(BBEEEFZER) BHIE28 HE
ZEEMENT

BE-_Z-NFEXA=tHLEE

Defined
contributions
and
Salaries Performance  retirement
and related benefit Total
other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments
REMK
ek RIERR REAKER EEHS
ik HEA BHzRs B L )
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
(note (i)
(Kiztin)
Executive directors HITES
Ms. Wong Man Winny ~ &8 %+t
(note (i), (iv) and (v)) (BEE0) - (R W)
- the Company . YN 2,484 - - 12 2,496
- Kantone -E® - - - - -
2,484 - - 12 2,496
Mr. Cheng Yang BHEE
(note (1) and (vi)) (Bt R i)
- the Company NS - 425 - 2 427
- Kantone -EB - - - - -
= 425 = 2 427

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2018



10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION,

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a)

Directors and chief executive’s

remuneration (continued)

REMBERRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

BN < (&)

10. EEME HeFALRSREE

(a) EBRITHAEZZME (4

Defined
contributions
and
Salaries Performance  retirement
and related benefit Total
other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments
REMK
FERk RIERRE RENKER EEZMe
ne Hittgdl BHz®E B L ot
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FAT FET FAT FET FET
(note (i)
(B1a(i)
Mr. Liu Ka Lim BERLE
(note (i) and (vir)) (BE6) R vii))
— the Company YN 2,600 - - 15 2,615
- Kantone i - - - - -
2,600 - - 15 2,615
Ms. Lei Lei FENL
(note (i) and (viif)) (B0 R (viii))
- the Company . VNG - 29 - - 29
- Kantone -E8 - - _ _ _
- 29 - - 29
Mr. Lin Xiang WHELE
(note (i) and (viii)) (BEE06) R (viii) )
- the Company N - 19 - - 19
- Kantone -E@ - - - - -
- 19 - - 19

—E-N\FEH
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, 10. EEME BEeFAIRSHNERE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST Ei#< &)

EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive’s (a) ESBSRTHAZZHNE (&)
remuneration (continued)

Defined
contributions
and
Salaries Performance  retirement
and related benefit Total
other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments
REMK
FERk RIERRE RENKER EEZMe
ne Hittgdl BHz®E B L ot

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FET FET TET FET

(note (i)
(Hiszii)

Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. To Yin Fong Cecilica ##& &+

(note (i), (iv) and (ix)) (H3E0) (V) R

(ix))

- the Company . YN 277 - - - 277
- Kantone -E8 277 - - - 277
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, e N R N
Mr. Chan Sung Wai BREELE

(note (iv) and (x)) (B v) R (x)
-the Company _  -ARA . 29 -t ot 219
Independent non- BYFYTES

executive directors
Mr. Zhang Jingzhi Rz Ak

(note (xi)) (Hiitix))
-the Company  ~ARE ..
Mr. Dong Limin ENREE

(note (xii)) (Hiz (i)
- the Company . YN 5 - - - 5
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION,
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a)

Directors and chief executive’s

remuneration (continued)

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

10. EEME BEeFAIRSHNERE
BN < (&)

(a) EBRITHAEZZME (4

Defined
contributions
and
Salaries Performance  retirement
and related benefit Total
other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments
REMK
FeR RIEXRE REKEA EEZMe
ne Hittgdl BHz®E B L ot

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FET FET TET FET

(note (1))
(Hiazdi)
Mr. Leung Man Fai 2NBEE
(note (xiif)) (W& (i)
“the Company  ~ARA L R 120
Mr. Chan Yik Hei BHELE
(note (xiif)) (Bt (i)
-the Company  ~ARA L . 120
Mr. Wong Yuk Man HENEAE
Edmond (note (iv) (&) R (xiv)
and (xiv))
-the Company  —ARA G % - == 3
6,238 473 - 29 6,740
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION,

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a)

Directors and chief executive’s

remuneration (continued)

Year ended 30 June 2017

10. EEME HEESHFALTRSREE

BN < (&)

(a) EBRITHAEZZME (4

BE-_Z—+tHEANA=tHLEE

Defined
contributions
and
Salaries  Performance retirement
and related benefit Total
other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions  emoluments
REMK
Fek RIERRE  REKREF S
e High  Bhefe FEIfR k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(note (ii))
(Hizt (i)
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Cheng Yang BiEEE
(note (i) and (vi)) (BEEi)R i)
- the Company /N 40 572 618
- Kantone -E# 40 = 43
80 572 9 661
Mr. Liu Ka Lim BERLE
(note (i) and (vif)) (HzE R i)
- the Company . YN 40 - 43
- Kantone -Ef 40 = 43
80 - 6 86
Ms. Lei Lei BELT
(note (i) and (vif)) (BIZE() R (viii))
- the Company . VNG 21 300 5 326
- Kantone -EB 12 - 1 13
33 300 6 339

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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GEMBRRNE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION,

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a)

Directors and chief executive’s

remuneration (continued)

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

10. EEME BeFATIRSRERE
BN (&)

(a) EBRITHAEZZME (4

Defined
contributions
and
Salaries  Performance retirement
and related benefit Total
other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions  emoluments
REMEK
Hek RIERR REREN EdiEn
we High Bhefe STEI R foke
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET FET FET
(note (i)
(Bizti)
Mr. Lin Xiang MEEAE
(note (i) and (viif)) (B0 R (viii))
- the Company NS 21 200 - 5 226
- Kantone -E8 12 - - 1 13
33 200 - 6 239
Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok B X &#%
(note (i) and (xv)) (Bt R xv))
- the Company N = 784 = = 784
- Kantone -E@ - 28 - - 28
- 812 - - 812
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung  BER %4
(note (i) and (xvi)) (BEE6)Rxvi))
- the Company NG - 487 - 6 493
- Kantone -E® 2 5 = = 7
2 492 - 6 500
T -NFFR BERNEEEERQA
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e B3R M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZZ—- %A=+ B 30 JUNE 2018

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, 10. EEME BeFATIRSRERE

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST BN < (&)

EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive’s (a) ESBSRTHAZZHNE (&)

remuneration (continued)

Defined
contributions
and
Salaries  Performance retirement
and related benefit Total
other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions  emoluments
REMEK
Hek RIERR REREN EdiEn
we High Bhefe STEI R foke
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET FET FET
(note (i)
(Fritei))
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong RAXEE
(note (i) and (xvif)) (B0 R (xvii) )
- the Company NS - 338 - - 338
- Kantone -8 - 27 - - 27
_ 365 - - 365
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling E#¥* %+
(note (i) and (xviif)) (B0 & (xvidi))
- the Company . YN 2 7 - - 9
- Kantone -El® - 396 208 9 613
2 403 208 9 622
Independent non- BUKHITES
executive directors
Mr. Zhang Jingzhi Rz ok
(note (xi)) (Bi#ta))
- the Company . VNG 10 - - - 110

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION,
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a)

Directors and chief executive’s

remuneration (continued)

R a MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

10. EEME BeFATIRSRERE
BN (&)

(a)

EERITHER S (&)

Defined
contributions
and
Salaries  Performance retirement
and related benefit Total
other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions  emoluments
REMEK
Hek RIERR REREN EZfie
we High Bhefe STEI R foke
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET FET FET
(note (i)
(Bizti)
Mr. Dong Limin ENREE
(note (xii)) (Bt xi)
- the Company . YN 56 - - - 56
Mr. Leung Man Fai RXELE
(note (xii)) (Ht it i)
- the Company N 6 - - - 6
Mr. Chan Yik Hei Ro®HFE
(note (xiif)) (7t (i)
- the Company N 6 - - - 6
Mr. Frank Bleackley Frank Bleackley’t &
(note (i) and (xix)) (B0 R (xix))
- the Company NG 50 50 - - 100
- Kantone -E® 50 49 = = 99
100 99 - - 199
T -NFFR BERNEEEERQA
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e B3R M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZZ—- %A=+ B 30 JUNE 2018

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION,
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a)

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Directors and chief executive's
remuneration (continued)

10. EEME HeFALRSREE
Bi< (#)

(a) EBRITHAEZZME (4

Defined
contributions
and
Salaries  Performance retirement
and related benefit Total
other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions  emoluments
REM/R
Fek RIERE  REKREF EZfie
ik High Bhefe STEI R foke
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET FET FET
(note (i)
(Fritei))
Mr. Terry John Miller Terry John Millerst &
(note (xix)) (Bt xix))
- the Company NS 50 50 113 - 213
Mr. Lee Chi Wah HFERE
(note (xx)) (B (xx))
- the Company N 23 23 - - 46
581 3,316 321 42 4,260
Notes: i -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The director is also a director of Kantone
Holdings Limited (“Kantone”), a listed subsidiary
of the Company.

The performance related incentive payment
is discretionary as recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company having
regard to the Group's financial results and
performance of the Directors.

The remuneration for non-executive directors
comprises directors’ fees and other emoluments
which vary with the number of committees on
which they serve.
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REMBERRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, 10. EEME BEeFAIRSHNERE

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST BN < (&)

EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive’s (a) ESRTHAZZHE (&)

remuneration (continued)

Notes: (continued) HiaE: (%)

(iv)

During the year, no emolument was paid
by the Group to any of the Directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
retirement from employment with the Group or
as compensation for loss of office (2017: long
service payment, amounted to HK$197,000,
HK$105,000 and HK$136,000, was paid to Prof.
Paul Kan Man Lok, Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung and
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong respectively). None of the
Directors had waived any emoluments in both
years.

(iv)

FERN - AEERERTAESI M
& EABMAREBLRMAKRE
B REN A AR
B E (2T — & AR
B ERRAERBAXEELN
2 REREE 9 B A197,000%8 T
105,000 7T % 136,000 7T ) ° M f
FEN BEEERECAME -

(v) Ms. Wong Man Winny was appointed as (v) EHZtItR=_FT—+tF+A+A1A
executive director of the Company and Kantone BEERARAREBWITES
on 19 October 2017.

(vi)  Mr. Cheng Yang had been appointed as executive (i) BBEER-T—FTA=AEZ
director and Chairperson of board of the TEARANTEEREESTFE
Company on 3 October 2016 and resigned on 15 WR=ZFT—+tFNATHBEE
August 2017

(vii)  Mr. Liu Ka Lim was appointed as executive (i) BREREER-_ZFT-—XRFEF+A=H
director of the Company on 3 October 2016. EEZAEABARARWMITES -

(viii) Ms. Lei Lei and Mr. Lin Xiang had been appointed (viii) BELELTRMELEER-_T—+F—
as executive directors of the Company on 24 AZTHNHEEZERARRMITE
January 2017 and resigned on 7 July 2017 FUR_FT—tFLALRAEE-

(ix)  Ms. To Yin Fong Cecilica was appointed as non- (ix) HFEFLEIRN-_Z—+E+A+HE
executive director of the Company and Kantone BREARARARIRBBIFENITES -
on 7 July 2017

(x)  Mr. Chan Sung Wai was appointed as non- x BREELER=_Z—tF+-—A
executive director of the Company on 22 T ZHEZREARRAERITE
November 2017. o

(xi)  Mr. Zhang Jingzhi had been appointed as (xi) SREMZEER-_ZT—XNF+-A+=
independent non-executive director of the AEZEAERRRBUIFNTES
Company on 13 December 2016 and retired on 28 WRZF—+tF+_A=Z+/\HR
December 2017. £

T -NFFR BERNEEEERQA
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—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION,
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive’s
remuneration (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

Mr. Dong Limin had been appointed as
independent non-executive director of the
Company on 20 March 2017 and resigned on 11
July 2017

Mr. Leung Man Fai and Mr. Chan Yik Hei were
appointed as independent non-executive
directors of the Company on 14 June 2017.

Mr. Wong Yuk Man Edmand was appointed
as independent non-executive director of the
Company on 8 March 2018.

Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok resigned as executive
director of the Company and Chairperson of the
Board on 30 September 2016.

Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung was the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company for the period up to 3
October 2016 and his emoluments disclosed
above include those for services rendered by
him as the Chief Executive. He resigned as Chief
Executive Officer and executive director on 3
October 2016.

Mr. Lai Yat Kwong resigned as executive director
of the Company on 3 October 2016.

Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling retired on 13 December
2016 as non-executive director of the Company
and executive director in Kantone.

Mr. Frank Bleackley and Mr. Terry John Miller
resigned as independent non-executive directors
of the Company on 20 March 2017.

Mr. Lee Chi Wah retired on 13 December 2016
as independent non-executive director of the
Company.

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to
or for the executive directors and non-executive
directors are generally emoluments paid or
receivable in respect of those persons’ other
services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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10. EEME BEeHFAIRSHNERE
EiN<E (&)

EERITHAR M (#)

Brat -

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(%)

BENRAENR_T—LF=A=+
REZERARBBULIFNTES
YR -F—tFLA+—BEE-

RXBEERRGHFRER T~
FRATHAERERSAARBEL
FEMITES-

BEEXEER-_ZT-NF=ZANH
BEZERARBBUIFATES-

BXEHBERN T -R"FNLA=T
EREARRRTESEREEE L
B

HRREERARBITHAE BB
ECE-RETAZHLE HEXH
Bz e BERTITRARRE
B2HEM -RER_ZE—X"F+A=
BEHETHRARNITES

BEAXRER_T—R"F+A=H
BEARBRITES-

BRELIN_E—RF+_A+=
BEREAARENTESEREBH
TES-

Frank Bleackley%t 4 K Terry John
Millerc ER=—ZF—tF=A=+H
BAEARARBYIENITES-

FEELEN T -—RFTA+=
BREARRBIUIFNITES-
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GEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, 10.
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(b)

Employees with highest emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group
included two (2017: two) directors of the
Company. Details of the emoluments of those
directors for the year ended 30 June 2018 and
2017 during their directorship period are set out
above. The aggregate emoluments of the three

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

EEME BREFALTRSRERE
BN < (&)

(b) HREFHES

AEBREERFATETRBEMRS
(ZE2—tF WB)ARAREF %
EEEHE T N\FRZT—LF
NAZTHALEFETRE SH/M 2B
SHBHEREX -AEEEHK=F (=
T—tF:-AR)ESFEES (MLkELX

(2017: five) highest paid employees of the Group, NAEF) M BBOT:
not being directors of the Company, are as
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Salaries and other benefits FekHMEF 3,557 5,132
Performance related incentive RIERBER 2 ES
payments 1,424 1,589
Retirement benefit scheme BRIREFFT B MK
contributions 333 314
5,314 7,035

Emolument of three (2017: five) employees were
within the following band:

=R (ZE—tF AR)EEZH2
NFTHNEE:

Number of employees

EEAH
2018 2017
—®-NF T tF
HK$1,000,000—HK$1,500,000 1,000,000/ 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T 3 3
HK$1,500,001 —HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T —2,000,000/% 7T = 2

—E-N\FEH BEMREEBFRAF
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e B3R M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION,

11.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(b) Employees with highest emoluments

(continued)

There were no amounts paid during the year
(2017: Nil) to the five highest paid employees
in connection with their retirement from
employment with the Group, or inducement to
join.

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Year ended 30 June 2017

On 30 August 2016, the Group disposed of its entire
interests in Vision Kingdom Limited and Top Gallop
International Limited, together with their subsidiaries,
Smart (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited and
Victory (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited,
respectively, to an independent third party for a total
consideration of HK$6,000,000 fully satisfied by cash.
The consideration was received during the year ended
30 June 2016 and has been included as other payables
as at 30 June 2016.

As at 30 August 2016, the carrying amount of net
liabilities disposed of amounted to HK$97,000, mainly
representing deposits, bank balances and cash of
HK$2,536,000, other receivables of HK$185,000 and
other payables of HK$2,818,000. The net gain on
disposal amounted to HK$6,097,000.
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10. EEME HeFALRSREE

1.

BN < (&)

FAME (ZZ2—tF B)RAEK
S EESRERNEEBBEAMARE
B 1) 1% 5 X 3R

HEME AR 2 Wi
BE—E—tE&E~A=1tHLEE

RZZE—X"FENAZ=ZTH A£EBHEH
M Vision Kingdom Limited* Top Gallop
International Limited@ R H % &8 2 M
BAREER (RFIBEFEAERB)ERA
AIRER CRMBEEERB)BERQF
ZEHRET —RBILE=F BREAE
6,000,000 7T - MRS BHER - ZAREE
REBEZZ—X"FAAZTBELEFERE
Wit AZE—R"EXNA=+HZEMEME

o
A ©

R-ZZT—AR"ENA=1+H" 970008 TZE
PEABEFECRAEIEAERS RT
4 #% %38 ©2,536,00078 7T« fE UK E M BR X
185,000 JT [ F& - E fth AR 52,818,000/
T o B 2 F K E 46,097,000 T ©



GEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
Year ended 30 June 2018

On 30 August 2017 the Group agreed to dispose
of its entire interest in Champion Technology
Limited (“CTL") to an independent third party for a
consideration of HK$300,000.

On 30 August 2017, the Group agreed to dispose of
its entire interest in Chinese Science & Technology
Limited (“CST") to an independent third party for a
consideration of HK$100,000.

On 21 December 2017 the Group agreed to dispose
of its entire interest in Zhuo Chong Investments
Limited (“ZCl") to an independent third party for a
consideration of HK$100,000.

As at the relevant disposal dates for the disposals
of CTL, CST and ZCl, the collective carrying
amount of net liabilities disposed of amounted to
HK$965,000, mainly representing cash and cash
equivalents of HK$1,627,000, inventory of HK$5,000,
other receivables, deposits and prepayments of
HK$3,934,000, property, plant and equipment of
HK$921,000 and other payables and accrued charges
of HK$7452,000. The net gain on disposals of
subsidiaries amounted to HK$1,465,000.

1.

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

HEMB AR WS (#)

BE-Z—N\ERAA=1THLEE

R-Z—tFN\A=1TH AEERZER—
EBYE=ZTHEERBEMNRERAA
(IBEMRERAIA]) 22 8iE RER
300,000/ 7t °

R-Z—tFN\A=ZTH AEERBR—
FBIE=ZTHEERPIMEERAA
(T X B )z 2R - K8 /100,000
BT

RZT—tF+AZ+—H AEERA
ER—2BUE=-ALEHERERKRES
RAR([EEREH22HKE REAR
100,00078 7T °

REERBERBZARAR AXRERES
wEZHEBEERE 9650008 T2 B H
EABFECREAEIERARRSRRS
% %81,627,000/% 7T - 77 H5,000/8 7T - FE UK
HBRR - iR & RIERTBRK3,934,000/8 7T
Y% BB K% 1#$921,0008 7T » FERT H AbBR
TR ER7452,00008 7T c HEK B A A
2RI B1,465,000/8 7T ©

—E-N\FEH BEMREEBFRAF
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—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

INCOME TAX 12. FriS®i
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Current tax: BN ERFR IR :
- United Kingdom (“UK") — R ([RE])DEMSH
corporate income tax (1,120) 272
- Germany corporate income tax —EEEREM 407 129
— Malaysia corporate income tax —BRERREMEH - 4
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (713)  ______40%
Deferred tax: BEEBIE
_~(Crediti/charged for the year cEMGER) AR n________208
Income tax (credit)/expense Frig®i (Fe) T (790) 613

UK corporate income tax is calculated at 19% (2017:
19%) on the estimated assessable profit derived from
UK.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Germany, the
Group is subjected to corporate income tax at 15%
(2017: 156%) on the estimated assessable profit of the
subsidiary which carried on business in Germany.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Malaysia, the
Group is subjected to corporate income tax at 24%
(2017: 24%) on the estimated assessable profit of the
subsidiary which carried on business in Malaysia.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
for both years. For income generated in PRC earned
by subsidiaries incorporated outside PRC is subjected
to withholding tax at 10% (2017: 10%). There is no
estimated assessable profit for PRC Enterprise Income
Tax for both years.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2017:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits derived
from Hong Kong. There is no estimated assessable
profit for Hong Kong Profits Tax for both years.
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GEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12.

13.

INCOME TAX (continued)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before taxation per the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

12.

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

FigHi (#)

AEEzHBARRABR A ME2HKER
ZBBA B RERNT -

follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F TE—F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&3)
Loss before taxation W B¢ A1 S 18 (4,476,510) (4,803,383)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 12 & E M55 £16.5%
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) (ZE—+5F:16.5%)
AEZHIA (738,624) (792,558)
Effect of different tax rates READ 7%%@%&%2%%@32
of subsidiaries operating in TRBEZwE
other jurisdiction 74 300
Tax effect of income exempted O E At BA b [ 1 28 2 A
or not subject to taxation in NP ERTIMA Z RIS &
other jurisdiction (7,018) (1,690)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 78 gt Fi 7 E R F0R 2 F X
for tax purposes 2GR 733,500 784,073
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KERHBEHIBZHIETE 12,034 11,634
Tax effect of share of result of a BiE—MEaBLEER
joint venture 2B E 1 =
Utilisation of tax losses previously FRABTARBR 2 MIBESE
not recognised (571) (1,050)
Others HAb (186) 4
Income tax (credit)/expense FRABHR (KR) /I
for the year (790) 613

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year
ended 30 June 2018 nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of reporting period (2017: Nil).

13. RE

—E-N\FEH

HE_Z—N\FEFXA=FTHLFE ¥TREK
BN EBRRBEMRE BREPHTEET
REZBREEARE (ZT—LF: &) -

BEMREEBFRAF
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—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

14.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
the owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

RS
ADFA AR 2 SREAERDEET
S AR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(E7))
Loss for the year attributable to ARAREE ABGEARAFEEIE

owners of the Company (3,811,905) (4,188,139)
Number of ordinary shares BAERK G E ‘000 ‘000
Fhi FR
(Restated)
(&%)

Weighted average number of AEEREAEEZ

ordinary shares for the purpose of I3 AR hn R 19 2
basic loss per share 410,230 316,589

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of calculating basic loss per share
for the year ended 30 June 2018 has been adjusted,
taking into account the share consolidation occurred
during the year and the bonus element of the
rights issue which was completed after the end of
the reporting period but before the consolidated
financial statements are authorised for issue. The
corresponding weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the year ended 30 June 2017 has been
retrospectively adjusted to reflect the said share
consolidation and the bonus element of the rights
issue which was completed after the end of the
reporting period but before the consolidated financial
statements are authorised for issue. Details of issue
of shares and share consolidation are set out in note
33(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

The rights issue as set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements which was
completed after the end of the reporting period but
before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, had been taken into account by
management in calculating the basic loss per share
and concluded that such rights issue did not have
significant impact on the weighted coverage number
of ordinary shares in respect of the years ended 30
June 2017 and 2018.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 30 June 2018
and 30 June 2017 were the same as the basic loss
per share as there were no potential ordinary shares
outstanding during both years.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

GEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

15. Y% BMENRE

Plant and
machinery
and Furniture
Land and  communications and Motor
buildings networks fixtures vehicles Total
BE HER
ThRET BRE4 BARKE bt @t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
AT FET AT AL FET
fnote i)
(#iti)
Cost B4
At 1 July 2016 RZE-"¥tA-H
as previously reported LEEEH 39,365 476,184 16,876 9,616 542,041
Prior year adjustment (note 3/  BEEEAR(HH3) (8,950) = - - (8,950}
At 1 July 2016 (Restated) RZE-~EtA-R(E)) 30,415 476,184 16,876 9,616 533,091
Currency realignment EiAE (242) (10,056) - - (10,298)
Additions RE - 7182 - - 7182
Disposals/written off e /HH - (80,465) (20) - (80,485)
At 30 June 2017 (Restated) RZE-tEXA=TA(EH) 30,173 392,845 16,856 9,616 449,490
Currency realignment R 502 7,142 (77) S 7567
Additions AE - 6,516 2,498 101 9,115
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-BNBAR (H#39)
(note 39) - - - 1,962 1,962
Assets classified as PEBRENELEE (Wi
investment properties (note /i) (12,598) - - - (12,598)
Disposals/written off HE/## - (15,543) (129) 5 (15,672)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 1) LEWREAR (Hz11) - (106,934) (9,291) 9,615) (125,840)
At 30 June 2018 RZE-\E~A=TH 18,077 284,026 9,857 2,064 314,024
—E-N\FEFER BEMEEEERAF
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y13 -BEREME &)
(continued)
Plant and
machinery
and Furniture
Land and  communications and Motor
buildings networks fixtures vehicles Total
RBE HER
1H#HEET BERS BRREE ARE @t
HKS 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$000
7EL TET FET TET FET
fnote i)
(i)
Depreciation and impairment ~ HEREE
At 1 July 2016 RZE-~EtA-H
as previously reported LEEZH 17478 453,867 16,869 8,181 496,395
Prior year adjustment fnote 3/ BAFEAZ(HiH3) (5,246) - - - (5,246)
At 1 July 2016 (Restated) RZF-AFtA-RB(E]]) 12,232 453,867 16,869 8,181 491,149
Currency realignment ERAE 45) 9,805) - - (9,850)
Provided for the year EREE 581 8,498 3 495 9,577
Eliminated on disposals/written off & /HHEH % 5 80,353) (20} - (80,373)
A3 June 2017 Restated)  R-F-tERAZTA(ES) 12768 a0 16 _ 8676 _ ___ 410,503
Currency realignment ERAE 122 6,617 (75) S 6,664
Provided for the year EREE 532 8,131 281 467 9,411
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR (Hi39)
(note 39) - - - 1,210 1,210
Assets classified as NEERENELEE (M)
investment properties (note /i) (7319) - - - (7319)
Eliminated on disposals/written off % /H #EH % - (15,484) (129) - (15,613)
Disposal of subsidiaries fote 17) HEWBLR (HF171) - (106,870) 9,290) 8,759) (124,919)
At30June 2008 R-B-N\FRA=TE 6103 _ __ B4600 s 15 273,987
Carrying values FHE
At 30 June 2018 R-F-N\E~A=1H 11,974 19,425 2,218 470 34,087
At 30 June 2017 (Restated) RZE-+&RA=TH(EN) 17405 20,638 4 940 38,987
At 1 July 2016 (Restated) RZE-~EtA-B(E)]) 18,183 22,317 7 1,435 41,942
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

REMBERRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

15. W15 WER®EE

At At At
30 June 2018 30 June 2017 1 July 2016
RZE-NFE RZIZ—+F RIZ-—REF
~AA=1H ~NA=FH +H—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&7)) (&%)
The carrying values of the Group's ~ AEBEZWEEZFE@E
property interests comprise: B
Freehold properties held outside REBUIMNLERE
Hong Kong (note iii) KAKREZ M (W itii) 10,886 10,893 11,248
Leasehold properties: HEWE:
Held in Hong Kong REEHE
- long leases -REBEY 1,060 4,971 5,217
- medium term leases —H Ry - 1,483 1,628
Held outside Hong Kong REBUAIMNBRFE
- long leases (note iv) —RERY (Htiv) 28 58 90
11,974 17405 18,183
Note: Kt -

(if)

The Group leased equipment to customers on operating
leases terms. As at 30 June 2018, the carrying value
of such equipment, which was included in plant
and machinery and communications networks was
amounted to HK$265,000 (2017: HK$524,000).

During the current year, certain of the Group's
properties located in Hong Kong included in property,
plant and equipment amounting to HK$5,279,000 were
changed in use from internal use to earn rental income.
Such properties were transferred from property, plant
and equipment to investment properties. The fair
value of the investment properties as at 30 August
2017 (date of transfer of the properties from property,
plant and equipment to investment properties) is
based on the valuation reports as at 30 June 2017,
issued by Hilco Global Greater China Limited, by using
market comparable approach. The management of the
Group considered the fair value of the properties as
at date of transfer is approximate to the fair value of
the properties as at 30 June 2017 as there was no
significant change in the properties market in Hong
Kong subsequent to 30 June 2017 up to 30 August
2017. The difference in fair value and the carrying
amounts of the properties at the date of transfer
amounted to HK$73,221,000 is recognised in property
revaluation reserve for the year ended 30 June 2018.
The management of the Group considered no deferred
tax is considered necessary as the properties of
the Group located in Hong Kong are not held within
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time.

(ii)

AEEREEHEFAHERETER -
—E-N\EXA=Z+A BEEREZEERE
£265,000 BT (=T — 1 4F 524,000/
) BEARE #ERBEAGBA-

RAEE BE5,279,0008 Tat A E -
WEREBEZAEBUREAZETWE
ReB% hRIEAERAWERESK
A ZEVMERDE BRERZBHERARE
BEME-R_T—tFN\A=+H (W%
BYE BREAXBEBERAMENA
) - REWER A TFEE T LA Hilco Global
Greater China Limited®—Z—+%F XA
—+tHHANGEEREAELEGATSL
AL -ARBEEREERE MEREER
HEOWAFEEEYER_Z—+F<A
=TENATEEESE BE_2—tF~
A=+tREZE=-Z—tFNA=1TAEEY
¥MSWESEREH RNERARAFEER
HEZEMERTDE L ZE$%73,221,000
BITRBE-T—N\FA=+HILFE
BRAMEEHFEE TXEEREERR
HRAEBMNNEBNYEETERELT
MIE ZEWEVHEEBEAANFE H
ENEERNEEREZSREVEMES

VBRI D BRI o

—E-N\FEH BEMREEBFRAF
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

16.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

(iii)

(iv)

As at 30 June 2018, property, plant and equipment
of the Group with the aggregate carrying amounts
of HK$10,886,000 (2017: HK$10,893,000) have been
pledged as securities for the defined benefit retirement
scheme of certain subsidiaries operated in UK.

Owner-occupied leasehold land is included in property,
plant and equipment as the allocations between the
land and buildings elements cannot be made reliably.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. W15 WER®EE

(iii)

(iv)

RZE—NEXNA=Z+H X&£EEBE@
# {8 510,886,000 T (=T —+F:
10,893,000 BiT) 2 ¥  BFE RBREE K
AIEAREREBNETHEBRARINT
BRFB KT B IEIF -

MR RETRO TR FELE S A
AERZBEELTHEFAME BERK
o

16. REWYHE

Properties Properties
located in located in the
Hong Kong PRC Amount
ERYE B -}
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 July 2016 (Restated) RZE—-—RE+HA—H
(E73)) 14,100 39,087 53,187
Fair value gain on RBTFEMBRBIRE
investment properties MEZANFEBERS
acquired in prior year (#7:23)
(note 3) 200 707 907
At 30 June 2017 (Restated) RZZE—tFA=1H
(&%) 14,300 39,794 54,094
Currency realignment P& X 3 & - 7,930 7.930
Addition nNE 3,607 - 3,607
Addition through FBWENBLARRE
acquisition of subsidiaries (BT EE6) R K1 5#39)
(note (i) and note 39) - 174,596 174,596
Transfer from property, plant #E B89 %  BE &R
and equipment (note 15) (HiaE15) 78,500 - 78,500
Fair value gain on investment KRB FEATUEEIEE
properties acquired in MEZ ANFEBERS
prior year 22,193 5,173 27,366
Fair value loss on investment RARFE TR E
properties acquired in WMEZANFEEEE
current year (note ii) (B7atii) = (178,259) (178,259)
Carrying value at R=-Z—-N\F
30 June 2018 NA=Zt+HZEREE 118,600 49,234 167,834
Notes: Bat -

(i)

The investment properties acquired through acquisition
of subsidiaries during the period are recognised initially
at cost. As at the date of acquisition, the initial carrying
amount of the investment property based on its
acquisition cost amounted to HK$174,596,000 (see note
39).
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(if)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
currently there are no relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC which precisely state the arrangements
for extension of the land use rights in the PRC after
the end of the contractual lease term. As mentioned
in note 39, the Group acquired 2 pieces of leasehold
land in the PRC with contractual lease terms expiring
in 2032 and 2043 during the year ended 30 June 2018
with a hotel property being erected on the 2 pieces
of leasehold land and with a tenancy agreement
with a hotel operator expiring near the end of the
contractual lease term of one of the leasehold land (i.e.
2033). As mentioned in note 39, the acquired assets
mainly included 2 elements: one was a finance lease
receivable representing the right to receive rental from
the tenant till the end of lease term (i.e. 2033) and
the other was an investment property representing
interest in a leasehold land with the remaining lease
term from the end of the lease term with the hotel
operator (i.e 2033 to 2043). Taking into account that
leasehold land in the PRC are commonly treated as
operating leases until the end of the relevant lease
term with no assumption that the lease term can be
further extended. As at 30 June 2018, the fair value
of the investment property element was determined
by adjusted market comparison approach by a) making
reference to comparable sales of bareland with lease
term of 40 years; b) adjusted for the term factor using
the valuation technique to estimate value of bareland
with lease term of 10 years as at 2033; and c) take into
account the time value of money at discount rate of
6% from 2033 to 30 June 2018. Accordingly, compared
with the carrying amount of the investment properties
element recognised on initial recognition which has
determined after taking into account the fair value of
the consideration paid to acquire the assets, a fair value
loss of HK$178,259,000 (based on spot exchange rate)
was recognised for the year ended 30 June 2018. The
fair value of related investment properties as at 30
June 2018 amounted to HK$4,267,000. The fair value
as at 30 June 2018 was performed by an independent
firm of professional valuers, Stirling Appraisals Limited.
The fair value of other investment properties of the
Group as of 30 June 2018 have also been valued by
Stirling Appraisal Limited, by using market comparable
approach.

REMBERRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

16. BREWE (#)

Bat -

(ii)

—E-N\FEH

(%&)

AAREFRE BRFRBEYEEBEEEZR
ERERVNARGHNEERAREERT
B+ i FAAE 2 T Bk o BB SE39AT IR - B
HE-_Z-\EXNA=ZTHLEE A4£H
RPBRRERREE L (EEOBEHRN
R _ERTBN=FER)  WRER
MRAE Tt FMEEME  BEEEE
BauZzHEPHEEREA R — A E
T ANHERARKISN (=2 ==
F) oM 39T FTKBEEEESR
EMESs —EhERRERERE &
THREFESHEEREEEHESNH (A=
TZ=F)NEFN ZS-—EAREME X
TEEESERANHERERE (A=
E-=FE-_TN=F)HTHEHCHE
B A EEREAE T — BIER
AEZBREERARZEES BXTR
RMEEHAE—SER-R=_FT—N\FRA
=TH REVESDAFEEDIERRN
T&IBa)2EMHBA0E 2 22 A & tL 8 5
&) RERAGERMTEAREBRI0F 2
WRZE==FZETEEHEEELR
B ROBEMTBR6 % R T =Z=ZFE=
T N\FANAZTAZEEBHEEED
AEZMSLBEABEE - Bt BRRD L
BREERNEEVMEBO>NEEE (K%
REEBEEENRENATEERET)
178,259,000/t 2 A FBEE B (READ
HERFE)RBEE-_T—N\FEXA=+AH
IHFEER - BERENERT—\FEX
A=+82AFEEA4,267000% T 1%
ZE-N\FAA-THZAFEEREL
BEGEMPETHERQANE - AEER
RZZE-NEXNA=ZtBEZHMBRENE
ZAFEETBERENEARAREAT
5L BRI TIE(E -

BEMREEBFRAF
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17. DEVELOPMENT COSTS FOR SYSTEMS

AND NETWORKS

17.

EN S &k 9N

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHET
Cost RAE
At beginning of the year F 4 13,769,936 13,769,943
Currency realignment PE H % - (7)
Atendoftheyear ___ _________* ... __13769936 13,769,936
Amortisation and impairment B KRR E
At beginning of the year F ) 13,769,936 13,703,042
Currency realignment ME 3 38 & - (7)
Provided for the year FREE - 17,702
Impairment losses recognised ERRBESE - 49,199
Atendoftheyear ____________° 8 13769936 13,769,936
Carrying value REE
At end of the year F - =

Development costs for systems and networks include

all direct costs incurred in setting up and development

of systems and networks. The Group's development

costs for systems and networks are amortised over

the estimated economic useful lives of 1 year (2017: 1

to 2 years).

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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GEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17.

DEVELOPMENT COSTS FOR SYSTEMS
AND NETWORKS (continued)

As at the end of the year ended 30 June 2017 the
directors of the Company reassessed the market
conditions in Asia Pacific region for the Group's
systems and networks and considered that they
were worse than previously expected. Further, no
revenue in Asia Pacific region was generated from
the system sales including software licensing and
services segment business. Management conducted
an impairment review of the Group's system sales
including software licensing and services segment
business in Asia Pacific region. The impairment
assessment took into account the fact that no further
development costs will be provided by the Group for
that segment after granting the independent third
parties non-executive rights to exploit and use the
design of certain of the Group's developed systems
and networks during the year ended 30 June 2016. The
recoverable amount based on the value in use method
was estimated as zero and accordingly, full impairment
loss of HK$49,199,000 was recognised in profit or loss
for the year ended 30 June 2017

As at 30 June 2018, the management of the
Group consider the zero recoverable amount of
the development costs for systems and networks
is appropriate and no reversal of impairment is
considered necessary.

17.

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

REBEE-—ZT—tFAAZTALFE AQ
REFEHAEERGRBENREAMEZ
TR REBBATEREZ - N RREE
(BREBHETREEIRSE) PEXBLER
DAMEEEFAKES EEBHAEER
DAMEZ ZFHEE (REREETERR
)P EEBETRESRM - REFNGHE
ERBEZZE—XR"EXAZT+BHLEFEERT
B E=FEBREFUREREABS AR
EEAERGRBERTR AEEBETE
Mz EE—PRERAENA - UFEREE
SEZARESEGBT AT B2 ERE
E51849,199,000 8 TLEREE_T—+tF <
R=TRHILFEZIBRER-

RZE-NFRA=1TH rEEEEER
REGRBERABRANIRESERTT
BEE BABAREERME-

—E-N\FEH BEMREEBFRAF
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 18. AIMEHERE
30 June 2018 1 July 2017 30 June 2017
“E-N\E e Sl of 3 —E—tF
~AB=TtH +A—H ~NA=1H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Unlisted equity securities, at cost FLEMRAES  BHAE - - 518,480
Impairment loss recognised ERAZREER - - (518,480)

The unlisted equity investments represent
investments in unlisted equity securities issued by
private entities incorporated outside Hong Kong
holding strategic investments that are involved in
information technology and telecommunications
industry. They are measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses as at 30 June 2017
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
was so significant that the management was of the
opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably.

As at 30 June 2017, the management of the Company
considered that there was a general downturn in
the market. Furthermore, the management had
not received the necessary financial and other
information of these investments nor been able to
establish contacts with these investees. Accordingly,
management has assessed the recoverable amount of
the available-for-sale investments based on the limited
financial information from or about these investments
and management’'s own experience. The available-
for-sale investments were written down to their
recoverable amount of nil and an additional impairment
loss of HK$418,296,000 was charged to profit or loss
for the year ended 30 June 2017

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 9, unlisted equity
investments are included in financial assets at FVTPL
(Note 23).
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19.

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. R—REaELE R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cost of unlisted investment in R—HEELE
a joint venture ZIEEMIBEKAK 500 500
Share of post-acquisition loss FEAG Wi 12 B5 18 (48) (41)
452 459
Particulars of the Group's joint venture at 30 June RZBE-N\FR_ZE—+FRA=THLXE
2018 and 2017 are as follows: BraERELHFBRT:

Proportion of

Principal nominal value of
Place of place of Class of issued capital
Name of company incorporation operation  shares held held by the Group Principal activity
TR £ g2l rEERBEERT
NAER ik ] gesd  ROER BAREE 2 Al TEER
2018 2017
“E-\f ZCZT—tF
Hungary Hongkong Innovation Hong Kong Hong Kong  Ordinary 50% 50%  Provision of promoting, developing
Investment Limited and marketing services for
("Hungary Hongkong") innovative products and solutions
AFFBBEIFRE £ 3 TRk 50% 50% AEEERRFER\EE FAER
BRAR([MINMEE]) 95 8 & R
Hungary Hongkong, the only joint venture in which FIEMEXEEBQYTNEERAEER -2
the Group participates, is an unlisted corporate entity BryEERE HUWEMBRE-

whose quoted market price is not available.

—E-N\FEH BEMREEBFRAF
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19. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 19. R—RBEELEZER#)

Summarised financial information in respect of the REBR—HEELE R 2 MHEERTE
Group's interest in a joint venture, which is prepared DRVNSMEBZEFBER NIREREE
using accounting policies in conformity with the s 5t BUR — B0 WA REREAR
accounting policies adopted by the Group and HEH2HINMT:
accounted for using the equity method, is set out
below:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Total assets EERE 925 931
Total liabilities BERE (21) (12)
904 919
Revenue & - -

Loss and total comprehensive loss AFEEBEREEBIBRE
for the year (14)

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2018



20. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE
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—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

20 EURHMEHRERE

Present
value of
Minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments
BEHE BEHEHERE
HIE 2 EE
As at As at
30 June 2018 30 June 2018
i i
—E-NEF —ZE-NEF
~NH=+H ~NH=+H
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —FN 4,622 4,488
In the second to fifth year, inclusive FE_ZEZRF (BEEEMSE) 18,489 16,290
Over five years AFELE 43,912 29,827
67,023 50,605
Less: Unearned finance income B ARBERENE WA (16,418)
Present value of minimum lease HREWEERBEZRE
payment receivables 50,605

Represented by

AT 51 & I8 51 7R

Current portion Bl ER &R 9 4,488
Non-current portion FEENHAE 46,117
50,605

As disclosed in note 39, the assets acquired by
the Group included a finance lease receivable. The
effective interest rate applicable to the finance lease is
approximately 3.96% per annum.

The tenant mentioned in note 39 had made
payments in accordance with the contractual tenancy
arrangement and had a good repayment record in prior
years. Accordingly, the management of the Group

considered that the credit risk is low and no provision
for impairment loss is considered necessary.

—E-N\FEH

BANMTEES9ATIL - AN E U 2 B ERT AR
KeEERE REAMECEAERFE
BEFEL3.96% °

MisE39RTIL 2 A B iR A B R HEH MR
VIRBAFEHEBRTERLHE Bt &
SEEEERAEERBR AR BEBARML
ELRE BB RS-

BEMREEBFRAF
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21. INVENTORIES 21. &
2018 2017
—E-N\E —F—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Raw materials R 7,185 6,602
Work in progress 8 5,170 5,786
Finished goods (notes) Ik (H1a2) 20,594 4,242,356
32,949 4,254,744

Notes: Hiat -

(i) Included in finished goods are cultural products, (i)
including precious stones and antiques, of
HK$12,763,000 (2017: HK$4,235,385,000) which are
held for trading and resale in the ordinary course of
business.

(ii) As at 30 June 2018, all the cultural products of the (ii)

Group were stored in a warehouse run by a worldwide
security solution company, which is an independent
third party to the Group (2017: 86.7% or 319 pieces
out of total 368 pieces of cultural products are stored
in museum operated by a company wholly-owned by
Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok, a director and substantial
shareholder of the Company up to 30 September 2016
and 1 October 2016 respectively, on a consignment
basis).

(iii)  For the purpose of preparing the consolidated financial (iii)
statements for the year ended 30 June 2017, the Group
had engaged cultural product/jewellery experts to
perform an inspection on the inventories of cultural
products. According to these experts, downgradings
and reclassifications were required to be made on a
number of inventory items of cultural products. The
Group therefore engaged an independent valuer, Hilco
Global Greater China Limited, to assess the current
market values of the inventories as at 30 June 2017
based on the findings of the cultural product/jewellery
experts concerning the grading and classification of the
cultural products. As a result of the assessment, the
management of the Group had determined that the net
realisable values of a number of the inventory items of
cultural products were lower than their costs and that
the shortfalls amounted to an aggregate amount of
HK$4,275,921,000. Accordingly, the Group recognised
an impairment loss of HK$4,275,921,000 for the year
ended 30 June 2017

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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21. INVENTORIES (continueq)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

(continued)

For the purpose of preparing the condensed
consolidated statement of assets and liabilities as at 31
December 2017, the Group had arranged another team
of cultural product and jewellery experts (the “Current
Experts”) from “China Cultural Heritage Information
and Consulting Center” (the “Consulting Center”)
being led by Ms. YANG Zhen Hua (15 &%) , to perform
a more detailed authentication on all of the cultural
products regarding their grading and classification.
According to the Current Experts, further downgradings
and reclassifications were required to be made on
the cultural products as compared to those as of 30
June 2017 The Consulting Center has arranged another
valuer, It R R B FEHBRAF, to reassess
the current market values of the inventories as at 31
December 2017 based on their findings concerning the
grading and classification of the cultural products. As a
result of the final authentication report and evaluation
report, the management of the Group had determined
that their net realisable values were below their costs
and the shortfalls resulted in further impairment loss
of HK$4,220,760,000 being made for the six months
ended 31 December 2017.

For the purpose of preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2018, the
Group engaged GEM Appraisal Center of Peking
University (It Rt KB B E F H 0 ) (the “Appraisal
Center”) to conduct a scientific examination of 360
pieces of cultural products regarding their grading and
classification. According to the Appraisal Center, further
downgradings and reclassifications were required to
be made on cultural products as compared to those
as at 30 June 2017. The management of the Group has
arranged the valuer, kR ME R EEBFEBERAF to
reassess the current market values of all 368 pieces
of cultural products as at 30 June 2018 based on the
finding of the Current Experts and the Appraisal Center
concerning the grading and classification of 8 pieces
and 360 pieces of the cultural products respectively.
As a result of final authentication report and evaluation
report for the valuation of the cultural products as
at 30 June 2018, the management of the Group had
determined that their net realisable values were
below their costs and the shortfalls resulted in further
impairment loss, of HK$4,222,621,000 (including
impairment loss of HK$4,220,760,000 recognised for
the six months ended 31 December 2017) being made
for the year ended 30 June 2018.

The Directors were of the view that, with the detailed
exercise performed by the Appraisal Center, the
carrying amount net of impairment recognised so far,
reflected in the consolidated financial statements, was
the best estimate of the recoverable amount of the
cultural products.
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REENR T —tF+-_A=+—B2ZH
PiAEERBERME  AEECRTHHL
BELZTRENRE [FEXYELEHZAT
D) ([BAFLDZE—BXWERRE
AEREB ([REER]) HAAEXLER
MR RS EETEAAEE -BRIEREE
RZEBER HEEBEE-_Z—tEXNA=1H
ZHEE BEUCERELE—SRNUT
AREHFHE -BRPLELHS —EMHE
Mt EmE R EEETEARAAIRRBZ
ENfLERZRURSBEZ2ER EFT
ER-_ZT—+tFE+-_A=+—BZBEEM
LEE RESRKREFRS RFHHRE &
SEEEBHEHATESRFAERNEZER
K REEBEREARBE T —tF+=
A=+—BLXEAALE P REESE
4,220,760,0007 7T °

REREBE-_T - N\FANAZTALFE
ZHRAVBE®REMs ALECZELR
dREBEEETH L ([EEHO])EH360MH
MIhERRERUEDBETHEBES-
BEEEHPLZER HEBE-T—+F
NAZTHZRER TEHULERETHE
— SR TAREF P HE - AEEEERE
DR HEMERME R EERTHEAR
RAIDBEBREBERREER LMSMH &
3601 ZEXLERZ MR DB #im
ENTEABHEERRZT—N\F
ANA=ZTAZEBME-RZZT—-N\FA
A=Z+R BEBEHXEREENRKREE
HERFERSE AEBEEBHTATER
FEERERA ZE2EEBRBE_Z
—N\NEXNA=Z+BLFEELBINGES
184,222,621,0008 T (RIEHRE T —+
F+ZA=Z+—BLEANEARIORERS
184,220,760,0005 7T ) °

BERA - KETHRLETHAARE R
e MBREARRZ BEMNERE BRRE
ZEEEACERMKESEZ HER
o

BEMREEBFRAF
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

22. BNE Z REMIRK

2018 2017
—E-N\E —F—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade receivables fnote (a)) = BMHESER(Mit) 30575 17910
Other receivables (note (b)) FEUCE L BR3R (Bt (b)) 21,699 28,808
Less. impairment provided OB FRRERE (H i)

for the year (note (c)) (8,751) -
12948 28,808
43,523 46,718

Notes: Hiat -
(a)  The Group maintains a well-defined credit policy (a) AEBREESEPETHABZEERR

regarding its trade customers depending on their credit
worthiness, nature of services and products, industry
practice and condition of the market with credit period
ranging from 30 days to 180 days. For the year 2017, the
Group's credit policy for sales of cultural products is
cash on delivery.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

REREZER RERERZMEE TR
RBRMIBHERMETEPNTFI0BEE180
BEEH R_Z—tF FEERHEX
CLERZEEBRERIENK-

B SEFARNBEHNTERREERTA
BZREDITZ2F/0T

2018 2017

—E2-NF —EF—kF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET

0 - 60 days 0-60H 28,622 16,179
61 - 90 days 61 -90H 1,896 1,676
91 - 180 days 91 - 180H 57 55
30,575 17,910

Before accepting any new customer, the Group's
finance and sales management team would assess
the potential customer’s credit quality and define the
credit limit for the customers. Limits attributable to
customers are reviewed regularly with reference to
past settlement history. The Group's finance and sales
management team considers trade receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit
quality as continuous repayments have been received.
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivable that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
are as follows:

REMBERRNE
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22. EIWEZRHEMIER (4)

HieF: (&

(a)

BRI HARAEESTIEREZEERE SR
RZERE DT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Neither past due nor impaired BR oK 180 B 75 KR (B 28,622 16,179
Less than 1 month past due BEHOR—M@EA 1,896 1,600
1 to 3 months past due mEB—E=={EA 57 131
1,953 1,731

30,575 17,910

The other receivables are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and refundable, and are expected to be
realised in the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.

As at 30 June 2018, other receivables mainly represent
the rental deposit amounting to HK$2,210,000 (2017:
HK$5,125,000).

As at 30 June 2017 included in other receivables
was loan to an independent third party amounting to
HK$5,744,000. The loan was secured by a personal
guarantee provided by an independent third party and
interest bearing at 10% per annum.

As at 30 June 2018, the loan has been past due
and management of the Group was unsuccessful to
demand payment from the debtor. Management of
the Group considered the loan is not recoverable and
accordingly the amount was fully impaired during the
year ended 30 June 2018.

—E-N\FEH

JFENE A R SRS B - DAt B R ATRE
TRARBEDRTHER T —_EARNLR -

RZE—NENA=ZTB BIREBER
FTEHEHELIE£2,210,0008T (ZF—+
£ :5,125,000/8 7T ) °

RZZ—tFXRNA=1+A BREMERS
Em—EBLE=HRE 2 1EE5,744,000
BB ERZBLE = HiREZEAE
RYEE IR - WIRFFE10%ET B °

RZE-N\FRA=Z+B EREBH"
A &2 (8 B 1 B R AE AR 0 B SR A5 AMEIE
BB - AEEEEERRERTAKE R
b REEE-N\FRA=ZTHLEFEE"
ZERBBURE

BEMREEBFRAF
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

23.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes: (continued)

(c)

The movement in the provision for impairment loss of
other receivables during the year is as follows:

22. EIWEZRHEMIER (4)

HieF: (&

() FREKEGRFBREBREEEZSHNT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 July HntA—H - =
Impairment loss recognised RREEE 8,751 =
At 30 June RANA=+H 8,751 -

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

23. BAVEEFABRSZEREERE

30 June 2018 1 July 2017 30 June 2017

—E-N\E i I

~B=+H +A—H ~A=+H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET

Unlisted equity investment (i) FLEMBRAERA) S - -
Listed equity investments BB ETRARA )

in Hong Kong (ii) 110,786 - -

110,786 - -

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, amount previously
included in available-for-sale investments (note 18) were
reclassified to financial assets at FVTPL.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the management
continued to make its efforts to try to establish contact
with the investees. The management has exhausted all
means practically possible, including engagement of
legal advisors and private investigators, to locate and
contact the disappeared management of the investee
companies and to try to recover part of investment
amount. The directors of the Company, after taking
into account a) the findings by the investigators;
b) the legal advice from the legal advisers; c) the
various options suggested by the legal advisers,
where the estimated cost to perform the actions are
significantly exceeding the benefit, and d) there is no
other alternative or possible further action that the
Company could reasonably take, the directors of the
Company concluded that the recoverable amount of the
investments is zero.
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(ii)

The listed equity instruments as at 30 June 2018 were
classified as held for trading financial assets.

The fair values of the listed shares in Hong Kong are
determined based on the quoted market closing prices
available on the Stock Exchange.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group's listed financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss with carrying amount
of HK$81,638,000 (2017: HK$Nil) were pledged to
secure margin facilities granted by licensed securities
companies in Hong Kong to the Group.

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a)

The cash and cash equivalents comprise short-
term deposits with maturity of three months or
less and cash held by the Group.

Certain bank balances and cash of
HK$47,644,000 (2017: HK$46,526,000) were
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"), which
is not freely convertible currency in the
international market. The exchange rate of RMB
is determined by the Government of PRC and
the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is
subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the
Government of the PRC.
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23. BAVEEFABRZEREE

(%)

(ii)

RZE-NFRA=+HZETRARE
BOBRFEERZEMEE-

FE LT 2 AT BETIIRE AT %
) P SR Uk T (B E -

RZFE—-N\FRA=+H AEEEEEAS
81,638,000 T (=T —tF:TH )L
AFEEFABFZZ TSR EECHIE
B UERESFEELFARNAEERD
ZRECHRE -

24, BERBESER

(a)

—E-N\FEH

RehBReFHBRINAR=EA
FAAZEBMERRAEEBTEZR
%o

A H47644,0008 L (ZF —EF:
46,526,000 7T) 2 & TRITHE#H KX
BEDAARE (TAR¥DEE M
ARBWIEATRBEBEMSERRBY
B ARBMEXAPEBNET ' H
FEHELZEESESTRARNER
Z INEE B I AT HRLRR o

BEMREEBFRAF
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—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24, WERIREERE &)
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (b) BERMEEREFIEEEENEER
from financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group's TREIAEEERETHMELEE
major liabilities arising from financing activities, ZRABENEH (BREASKIERSE
including both cash and non-cash changes. B)EE
Interest-bearing Amount
bank and other Promissory due to Other
borrowings  note payable a director payables
(note 29) (note 30) (note 26) (note) Total
HERTR Eff-5E%
ARE  ERERREE FE EREAER
(H7#29) (H#30) (Hri28) (i) &t
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
T T AT T T
AT = o I B mes e S
Financing cash flow: BERSRE:
Currency realignment EiA% 93 - - - 9
Transfer to other payables BEEFEBEN - - (9,975 9,975 s
Proceeds B 100,098 - - - 100,098
Loan from a director RE-REZEX - - 4780 = 4,780
Repayment of bank and other ~ BEHTRELEE
borrowings (21,099) - - - (21,099)
Repayment of promissory EREFARAZE
note payable - (35,950) S = 35,950)
Repayment to a director EE-2E%3% - - (600) - (600)
Repayment of other payables EREFEBER - - - (6,155 (6,155)
Interest paid BFIE (40,257) (199) 5 = (40,456)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, /% ____ BeM_ B8 0 T
Other changes s
Payment for purpose of EANENRBAT
investment properties through ~ EERENE R
acquisition of subsidiaries - 86,209 - - 86,209
Gain on early redemption REERZ UG - (3,444) - - (3,444)
Finance costs HBAA 40267 10377 - - 50,634
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, wny_ o ww oI ___ 183
At 30 June 2018 RZB-NFAA=TH 282,728 56,993 4,180 3,820 347721
Note: Hrat -
Included in other payables is amount due to previous BRNEMERBEEMNAES (ERZZ—LFN
director whom resigned on 15 August 2017. A+HBEE)HHKE-
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

GEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

25. BNEZREMIRK

30 June 1 July 30 June

2018 2017 2017

—ZE-N\F —E—+tF —E—tF

NA=+H +HA—H NA=1+H

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET

Trade payables EREZER 7,751 7,487 7,487
Other payables JE A EL th BR 3R 36,903 46,741 67,929
44,654 54,228 75,416

The aging analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period
is as follows:

BB SERRRE NS REEEAY
ZEBASITLIWT

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —FT—+tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

0 — 60 days 0-60H 7,751 7,487
The credit period for purchases of goods ranged from BEERZEEHNF308E60H -

30 days to 60 days.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, receipts
in advance from customers of HK$21,034,000 (1
July 2017: HK$21,188,000) are included in contract
liabilities and disclosed in note 3(b). Other payables
mainly represent accruals for daily operating
expenses.

HRIRAB BT RS LR F155  BRE
F3k1E21,034,0008 T (ZE—tF A —
H 21,188,000 T) EFt AGHBE LR
MizE3(b) T -ENEMEREEZRBERL
EHYERER-

—E-N\FEH BEMREEBFRAF
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—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. EHNEE
30 June 1 July 30 June
2018 2017 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—LF —E—LF
~A=1+H +HA—H NA=+H
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
bt FET FET FET
Receipts in advance from  FtiE AR =
customers for FEWE P RIE
provision of services (i) 21,034 21,188 -

Notes: Bt -

(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the (i) AEBCEARBVELIENEATEY
cumulative effect method and adjusted the opening BRMELREBR IR _T—+FLA—
balance at 1 July 2017 EECESEF

(i) Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously (i) WAEBPMBHMEERNE 650K LAAK
included as “Receipts in advance” under “Trade and SIVE (B 5 R EABRK] (MFF25)BET
other payables” (note 25) were reclassified to contract [FEWER] ZRBEMSOEEZENAE -
liabilities.

Movements in contract liabilities BHNEEEE

2018
—E-N\F
HK$000
FHET

At 1 July RntA—H 21,188

Currency realignment PE H & 534

Increase in contract liabilities as a result of ~ FIREREEWFBEMERE LB FH 0

billing in advance of provision of service 50,001

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FERFERNERTFAFVAHE B WS

recognising revenue during the year that MmEREHNEFERD
was included in contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (50,689)

At 30 June RNA=+H 21,034

The amount of billings in advance of performance BAZENRIBERR —FRERBKZEN

expected to be recognised as revenue after more SEAT (ZT— L 5250008 7L 5t A

than one year is nil (2017: HK$525,000, which were [ERE S REAMBRR]) -

included under “trade and other payables”).

As at 30 June 2018, the aggregated amount of RZBE—N\FEXA=Z1+H REAEERAE

the transaction price allocated to the remaining EHNNEERTENEANRZIELER

performance obligations under the Group's existing 23,533,000 BT o W HIBBRAEERE L

contracts is HK$23,533,000. This amounts would be FRAMBFPRERBREER AR &

recognised as revenue when the service is provided AR AR = F NI E -
by the Group over the life of the contract to the

customers, which is expected to occur over the next

three years.
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27.

28.

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

WARRANTY PROVISION 27. RERE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 July ntA—AH 1,073 1,055
Currency realignment M X 3 31 44
Provided during the year FREHE 132 =
Utilised during the year FREEHA - (26)
At 30 June WANA=+H 1,236 1,073
The warranty provision represents the management’s REBEEEEERBRAALRIENYE
best estimate of the Group's liability under 12-month BREMZERME BETRKLTZM
warranties granted on manufactured products, based AREEMEAEEE AREEL 2 &EF
on prior experience and industry average for defective fiy o
products.
AMOUNT DUETO A DIRECTOR 28. Eff—RESFIE

The amount due to a director of the Company is
unsecured, non-interest bearing, have no fixed term of
repayment and is repayable on demand.

As at 30 June 2017 such a director is deemed to be
interested in 27.90% of the issued share capital of the
Company under the SFO. The director resigned on 15
August 2017 and disposed of all the shares held by
him on 17 August 2017.

As at 30 June 2018, another director of the Company
is deemed to be interested in 9.17% of the issued
share capital of the Company under the SFO.

BARART —4EERE DB Tat
B EETERARAREREE.

RZE—tFXA=+tH BEIEFRHE
&P ZEFBR RN ARNRF2790% 2 B %
TRATHEAEDE ZEFR_T—LFN
A+HRABREAR-Z—+ENA++tHH
ERBBEZIRMBERD -

R-ZZE—NEXNA=Z+8 BEZHFRHE
BH AR —BREEWHRBRAEARF
9.17% 2 EBITR AT HEE#EL -

—E-N\FEH BEMREEBFRAF
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—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

29. INTEREST BEARING BANK AND OTHER 29. T ERITREMEE

BORROWINGS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHET
Bank borrowings (i) RITREE) - 3,636
Other borrowings (i) and (iii) H A2 B (Gi) B (iii) 280,000 200,000
Margin loans (iv) REBEESER(V) 2,728 =
282,728 203,636
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
The interest bearing bank and other AERZFTERITR
borrowings are repayable as follows: EEEMT :
On demand or within one year BRM—FREE 52,728 203,636
After one year but within two years —FREMFNA 230,000 =
282,728 203,636
Less: amount due within one year JE - RBBEE TR —F RN H
shown under current liabilities Z &5 (52,728) (203,636)
Amount due after one year R—FRINBPZE 230,000 =
(i) As at 30 June 2017 the bank borrowings bear variable (i) R-ZT—tEXA=Z1+H RITEER
interest at 2.55% per annum. All bank borrowings are 255 2 FHFEMERF R -FTARTIEER
unsecured. HREER-
As at 30 June 2017, a corporate guarantee was RZE—+tFEXNAZ+H AR ERF
provided by the Company to a bank in respect of TEREEBTEZWEBARIMIRITHRE
banking facilities granted to its principal subsidiary HE—RERITIRECEER - BEBEQAE
under Kantone's group. The corporate guarantee was RRBEZZ—-N\FNA=ZTBHLFEHK
withdrawn during the year ended 30 June 2018. [8] o
(i)  As at 30 June 2017 the interest bearing other (i) RZZE—tFXRNA=+B HERITEE
borrowings amounting to HK$200,000,000 were fib & & 5 2£200,000,0008 T AR —F A
repayable within one year. EiE-
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29. INTEREST BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

(if)

(iii)

(continued)

The other borrowings bear fixed interest rate at 16%
per annum. The other borrowings are secured by
pledged asset of 640,689,792 shares (128,137,958
shares, after share consolidation of Kantone which
became effective on 10 April 2018) of Kantone,
representing approximately 64.94% of the issued share
capital of Kantone, a subsidiary of the Company which
is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and personal guarantee provided by
Mr. Cheng Yang, a director of the Company during the
year ended 30 June 2017 and resigned subsequently to
the year on 15 August 2017.

The loan was fully settled upon maturity during the year
ended 30 June 2018.

On 12 June 2017, the Company, Mr. Cheng Yang (the
“Former Guarantor”) and a licensed money lender
(the “Lender”) in Hong Kong had entered into a
facility agreement which the Lender agreed to lend
the Company up to HK$305,000,000 in aggregate
principal amount bearing fixed interest rate at 13%
per annum and the expiry date is 12 months from the
date of the first utilisation. The Company had drawn
down a loan with principal amount of HK$203,000,000
on 5 July 2017 and HK$97,000,000 on 6 July 2017
respectively. Part of the principal amounted to
HK$200,000,000 was used to repay the original loan
drawn down in financial year 2017. The maturity date of
this borrowing is 4 July 2018. The loan is secured by
640,689,792 shares (128,137,958 shares, after share
consolidation of Kantone which became effective on
10 April 2018) of Kantone (stock listed in HKEX, stock
code: 1059) and personal guarantee by Mr. Cheng
Yang, a previous director and substantial shareholder
of the Company. Mr. Cheng Yang had resigned as
director of the Company on 15 August 2017 and
disposed of 1,766,860,957 shares of the Company on
17 August 2017 The facility agreement stated that the
Former Guarantor shall ensure that he directly and
beneficially own not less than 1,766,860,957 shares of
the Company at all times and he shall remain as the
Chairperson of the board of Directors of the Company.
No action has been taken by the Lender and waiver
from the Lender was obtained on 28 September 2017
and 2 March 2018 with retrospective effect. Ms. Wong
Man Winny (the “Existing Guarantor”), a director and
substantial shareholder of the Company, has provided a
personal guarantee for HK$305,000,000 to secure this
borrowing since 10 October 2017.

REMBERRNE
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29. tEIR

(ii)

(iii)

—E-N\FEH

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

Hiufg g (=)

(&)

HintE ERI16E 2 EE FF R B HAth
BEE Ty & E640,689,792/ B @D
(REBE-ZT—)/\FEOA+ARMEHE
W 1% 128,137,968 E 1 - 15 BB E B 17
RA%64.94% ) (BEBRAREBEBBERS
FERARER LT ZARRKWBAR) N
EEBEE (REBEE-_Z—tE~A=+H
IHEEARANRES FEHER-_Z—t
FNATREEBRTREZAAERER
e

ZERDREBEE=TE-)/\FNA=+HL
FEIMRETBEE-

R-ZZE—tFEXA+ZH A7 -8BH%
E(TATERRAD BE—EFER/REERA
(TERADFURERZE EXRARER
RN EE A€ 48 %8 & %305,000,0007%8 7T
(ZETEFHMRIZETL) EmBfHAYE
REAZBRFI2EA - ARFH BN =T
—tFtARAERZZFE—tFLASRBER
HY 7K € %8 /2203,000,0005% 7T % 97,000,000
B2 B3R - #5 A$200,000,000 #TTh
AREZER-Z—tEVREERINRR
/\wu%‘ihz B A-ZT-N\FLAMN
o 3% B 3 A640,689, 792 BB A 15 (R
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29. INTEREST BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

On 28 September 2017, the Lender has granted the
Company an option to roll over the unpaid balance of
the loan with the principal amount of HK$305,000,000
for another 12 months from 4 July 2018. Accordingly,
the expiry date of the loan was extended to 4 July
2019.

On 1 March 2018, the Group made partial repayment of
the other borrowing, amounting to HK$25,000,000.

On 15 June 2018, a facility extension agreement
was signed in which the Lender agreed to extend
the termination date to 4 January 2020. The Lender
discharged and released the Former Guarantor from
his obligations and liabilities under the guarantee.
The Company does not have unconditional right to
avoid repayment of HK$50,000,000 to the Lender
on or before 5 September 2018, the borrowings of
HK$50,000,000 is classified as current liabilities. The
remaining balance amounted to HK$230,000,000 is
classified as non-current liabilities.

At 30 June 2018, the Group's margin loan of
HK$2,728,000 was secured by the Group's listed equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$81,638,000 (note 23).
The amount bear interest ranged at 10.25% to 11.00%
per annum and repayable on a demand.
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30. PROMISSORY NOTE PAYABLE
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EREALEE

The movement on the promissory note payable is as ENARER2EHNT:
follows:
Amount
FCR
HK$'000
FHET
Issued on 19 July 2017 (note (i) R-T—+Ft A+ NBET(HiE0)) 86,209
Imputed interest expenses (note (ii)) HEREFRZ (M) 10,377
Interest paid during the period KEBE R F & (199)
Gain on early redemption of promissory RAEREMN &L RRE 2 K&
note payable (note (iii)) (Bt az(ii)) (3,444)
Early settlement by cash RN &8 (35,950)
As at 30 June 2018 R-ZFE—N\FANA=+H 56,993
Represented by LA &85 R
Current portion BVERES o> 1,279
Non-current portion JEBNEREL o 55,714
56,993
Notes: Byt -

(ii)

(iii)

On 19 July 2017, the Company issued promissory note
with principal amount of HK$120,000,000 in connection
with the acquisition of assets and liabilities through the
acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39). The promissory
note carries interest at 1% per annum based on the
principal amount then outstanding on a daily basis
which shall be due and payable on the anniversary date
of the issue date of the promissory note. The maturity
date of the promissory note is 19 December 2019 or
such other date as the Company and the holder(s) of
the promissory note may agree in writing. Neither the
Company nor the holder(s) of the promissory note may
assign any of its rights and obligations without the prior
written consent of the other party. The Company may
repay all or part of the principal together with interest
accrued thereon at any time prior to the maturity date
by giving 7 days’ prior written notice to the holder(s) of
the promissory note.

The effective interest rate applicable to the promissory
note payable is approximately 15.92% per annum.

On 12 December 2017, the Company early settled part
of the promissory note with the principal amount of
HK$50,000,000 by cash of HK$35,950,000 after further
negotiations between the Company and the Vendor
after the acquisition. The amortised cost of the said
promissory note was approximately HK$39,394,000
at the date of settlement. As such, gain on early
redemption of promissory notes of approximately
HK$3,444,000 was recognised during the year ended
30 June 2018.

(i)

(if)

(iii)

—E-N\FEH

RZZE—+FtA+NB AAFE
BRENBARKEBEERAERET
K4 %3120,000, OOO}%T_EZ%FL—;—TJ*
(MI7¥39) - A H BIEBIRER N AE
t$éﬁ&¢ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁ§ NI
ARAHZEHTASRZBE BB
NEhEM AAZEZHHPRAE-ZT
—NF+ZATNABREARF &AL
ZEEBEANEEABEZEM@EM
E% AR REREZEFBABT
BERES—AZRANEARAE N8
%EEH%N&;E FiNUNCTIEI 58 )
ﬁ%ﬂmﬁhﬁA¥w7%$m gl
H%Eﬁv&fﬁ%ﬁtﬂﬁiuKX%
ﬁKﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%o

FE A5 A SR iR A
15.92% °

ZERFNEOR

KARNRIEEFRRERETE—
EEg R ET—+F+=-A+=8"
AN B LAIR 435,950,0005% JT 12 A 45
7K % %850,000,00078 7T 2 2B 75 & K,
ZE Pl EREERZEHEKARE
1 B 88 & #939,394,00058 7T ° A 1t
12 AT AE B & 5 iR 2 W a5 493,444,000
BETERBEE-—_Z-N\EXA=1H
ﬁigﬁgwuo
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31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES RIKEFIFTE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FBT

Retirement benefit contributions to MASEE 2 EREHERGTEIZN

the Group's defined contribution ZRREF R

scheme 1,289 2,742
Retirement benefit contributions to AL E 2 EREE A E A

the Group's defined benefit ZRREF R

scheme 2,374 3,262
3,663 6,004
(a) Defined contribution scheme (a) EREMFGHE!
Certain subsidiaries of the Company participate ARNRETETHBAR A EE
in a retirement benefit scheme covering a portion 2E—HRAKEMGTE - ZEBEHE 2
of their employees. The assets of the scheme are BEHRAEECEESRBEE AT
held separately from those of the Group in funds REBIITEAZES 2EEA -

under the control of independent trustees.

BE-ZEEEF+ AR AEERE
REBZMBEARERERIEMERLS
HEoghlMEAES ([EEE ) &8 - n
B 2 %18 & 5T BIR KRR A
BASERRBESHEREZ XY
BB FBIER 2 -

Commencing from December 2000, the Group
enrolled all eligible employees in Hong Kong
into a mandatory provident fund (the “"MPF")
scheme. The retirement benefit cost of the MPF
scheme charged to the profit or loss represents
contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the MPF
scheme.

AEERTEZHBAREESTH
Wiﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬂ?ZE&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
BAFERE - ANEEBNETE

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in
the PRC are members of government-managed
retirement benefit scheme operated by the

228

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

respective local government in the PRC. The
Group is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

During the year, the total expense recognised
in profit or loss of HK$1,289,000 (2017:
HK$2,742,000) represents contributions payable
to these schemes by the Group at rates specifies
in the rules of the schemes.
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31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(continued)

(b)

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operate a
self-administered and funded pension scheme
in the UK. The scheme provides defined pension
benefits with reference to the final salary of
the members at retirement and their length of
service. The scheme is closed to new members
since 1 January 2003.

The contributions which are determined by
a qualified actuary on the basis of triennial
valuations using the projected unit credit method
are charged to the profit or loss. Under the
scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension
between 1.67% and 2.50% of final salary for
each year of pensionable service at an age of 65.
No other post-retirement benefits are provided.
The most recent actuarial valuations of scheme
assets and the present value of the defined
benefit obligations were at 30 June 2018 and
were prepared by Actuary of Buck Consultants
Limited, Mr. Haroon Knan (FIA), Fellow of
the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries (“FIA")
(2017: Mr. Wes Jones (FIA)), for the accounting
reporting purpose. The assumptions which have
the most significant effect on the results of the
valuation are those relating to the rate of return
on investments and the rates of increase in
salaries, pensions and share dividends.

The funded pension scheme exposes the Group
to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest
rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.
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31. RARBEAETE %)

(b)

—E-N\FEH

ERREAGE

RARETETHERRRERERT
—HBTEE RN ZERKE NG
3o A EIDRIEERRARE 2 KK
BB EL R TS F R 2 E R IR
FeoltsrtBla —TT=F—H -0
ETEXMKELE-

BEGERBEME = FIRBE
NERFZETHEBEEZHZR IR
BaPHBR-BELTE - EE—RK
ARFEEFENRRE &8
NIFEBFHE1.67%5E2.50%% 7] &
BRe2RBEHEFFE-AEH
3 f 1R f E A R K 1E 48 B o 3L 2 5T
BIEERTRHEEBMNERERBCRE
HEIR=ZE-N\FA=TH#E
773 A Actuary of Buck Consultants
LimitedZ Haroon Knan%t 4 (HEH
FEMMEERATE [REBEMG
BEREE]) (ZE—HF: Wes
Jonesit £ (REBEMBEERS
B)RE UAFEETEHREER-
HEEERSEEVEZREERA
REB®RERHe RAeHEREZ
Fti@ e

HRER S EAEEEERBEER
BmRERR FXERE RERR
REamER-
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31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(continued)
(b) Defined benefit scheme (continued)
Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit
plan liability is calculated using a discount
rate determined by reference to high quality
corporate bond yields; if the return on plan
asset is below this rate, it will create a plan
deficit. Currently the plan has relatively balanced
investment in equity securities, debt instruments
and real estates. Due to the long-term nature
of the plan liabilities, the trustee of the pension
fund considers it appropriate that a reasonable
portion of the plan assets should be invested in
equity securities and in real estate to leverage
the return generated by the fund.

Interest risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase
the plan liability; however, this will be partially
offset by an increase in the return on the plan's
debt investments.

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan
liability is calculated by reference to the best
estimate of the mortality of plan participants
both during and after their employment. An
increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan
liability is calculated by reference to the future
salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase
in the salary of the plan participants will increase
the plan’s liability.
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31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(continued)

(b)

Defined benefit scheme (continued)

The main actuarial assumptions used were as
follows:
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31. BIRERGFE (2

(b)

)

ERREA & ()

FRZEERERRNOT

At 30 June At 30 June

2018 2017

RZB—-NFE RZZT—LF

ANA=t+H NA=+8

Discount rate Ah IR & 2.75% 2.55%
Expected rate of salary increase  F&#i% & Fti@ 3.25% 3.40%
Future pension increases KRIBIKRE F 18 3.15% 3.20%

The actuarial valuation updated to 30 June
2017 by Mr. Haroon Khan (FIA) (2017: Mr. Wes
Jones (FIA)) showed that the market value of
the scheme assets was HK$357,824,000 (2017:
HKK$361,767,000) and that the actuarial value of
these assets represented 93% (2017: 86%) of
the benefits that had accrued to members.

Under the recovery plan dated 31 May 2016,
the Group has agreed to contribute GBP340,000
per annum increasing at 4% on each 1 July
from 1 July 2018 into the plan. In addition, the
Scottish Limited Partnership for the plan has
been arranged such that the plan will receive
an income stream of GBP400,000 per annum
at 1 July 2018 increasing at 4% on each 1 July
thereafter. As at 30 June 2018, the duration of
the plan liability is 17 years (2017: 18 years).

—E-N\FEH

Haroon Khan%t & (% B 15 & &0 #
BEFEE) (ZFT—1EHF: Wes
Jonesh 4k (RERBEMBEERE
B))EHE_T—+tFA=1H
ZIEEHMERT HEEE2TE
#357,824,000 BT (ZT —+ 4
361,767,000 Bir) MZEEEZRE
HEEEBEA2HEBESBSENZ93%
(ZE—+tF:86%) °

REBHA-T—<"FRA=1+—8
ZmEFE AEEREE =T — N\
F+rtA-—BR REBALtA—8BRA
% T &)1 E340,000H 8 0 5 F 1 40
4% o b Hh - B sk s Bl R BEFR AR B
AELE SE%TEBZZE—/\Ft
A—RAREZZ8@EtLA—HKER
400,000 85 2 WA - G F I8 N4 % °
RZZE—NFXRA=ZTHB &%:TEE
FZFEHRAETEF (ZE—F: + N\
F)o
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31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 31.

(continued)

(b) Defined benefit scheme (continued)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income in respect of the defined

benefit pension plans are as follows:

ORI E) ()

nj

(b) EERERIEE (%)

i RE B AE MR REH B
EEmEERTRBZSHENT

FaBm ki

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Scheme administrative costs ETEI1T B AR (2,026) (1,562)
Net interest expense MERZ FE (348) (1,700)
Components of defined benefit MRIBZEER 2 7F 58 1@ FI K
costs recognised in profit or AKX (FTA—BE
loss (included in general and THZE)
administrative expenses) (2,374) (3,262
Remeasurement on the net ENFTECHEENAE
defined benefit liability: HRE
Return on plan assets FrEIEEZB®R(TRE
(excluding amounts included BRrANMEREZFE2E8E)
in net interest expense) (2,486) 36,163
Actuarial gains arising from AOBRBREESMELEZ
changes in demographic BE K=
assumptions 6,363 4,656
Actuarial gains/(losses) arising MHBREEHMEE
from changes in financial BE W= (FE)
assumptions 17,299 (41,749)
Actuarial gains arising from KERABRMELCEER
experience adjustments Wz 15,274 722
Components of defined benefit REMEERZE (FAX)
costs recognised in other TR 2 EREE I AARK S
comprehensive income/
(expense) 36,450 (208)
Total R 34,076 (3,470)

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(continued)

(b)

Defined benefit scheme (continued)

The amount included in the consolidated
statement of financial position arising from the
Group's obligations in respect of its defined
benefit pension plans is as follows:

31.
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RKERET S ()
(b) EFERAFE ()

AN B A E AR FR R 8l 2 A Em
ELZ BRI ARAMBRRE
E AR I NE

2018 2017

ZE-N\F i

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Fair value of scheme assets FrEEECAFERA 357,824 361,767

Present value of funded EeRERE

obligations (385,598) (422,494)
Net liability arising from defined ExB®RHAEMEEZ

benefit obligation BEFE (27,774) (60,727)

The Group expects contribution of GBP740,000
(equivalent to HK$7,666,000) will be made (2017:
Nil) to the defined benefit plans during the next
financial year.

Movements in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation are as follows:

AEBMIBAEN T —HREE ETHE
& A 5T 804 5K 740,000%E 8 (HER
7666,00087L) (ZT—LF &) -

ERBENAEZREZHNT:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Opening defined benefit obligation £ /) 7F %8 & | # & 422,494 406,333
Currency realignment ME X 3 & 10,214 (4,056)
Interest cost BB A 10,670 11,389
Remeasurement (gains)/losses: sHEtE (WER) BB
Actuarial gains arising from AOBREEEEE
changes in demographic &
assumption (6,363) (4,656)
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising B BRERESFTELE
from changes in financial BE (W), /BB
assumptions (17,299) 41,748
Actuarial gains arising from KEABRMELE 2 BE &
experience adjustments (15,274) (722)
Benefits paid PfT A5t 48 7 (18,844) (27,542)
Closing defined benefit obligation F 4% & 58 48 Al ¥& 385,598 422,494
ZE-N\FFR BEMNREBAER QA
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31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 31. RABHFE &)
(continued)
(b) Defined benefit scheme (continued) (b) EEEREFAGTE(#)
Movements in the fair value of plan assets are as FEEEZATFEEZSHET:
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—EF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Opening fair value of plan assets FflstEEEZ A FEE 361,767 348,512
Currency realignment PE X & 9,091 (3,492)
Interest income 2 U A 10,322 9,688
Scheme administrative costs AT 8197 BUK AR (2,026) (1,562)
Return on plan assets BB E Z B
(excluding amounts included (TBEEFA
in net interest expense) FMERZFE2ERE) (2,486) 36,163
Benefits paid S 42 7 (18,844) (27.542)
Closing fair value of plan assets F&HEEEZAFEE 357,824 361,767
The fair value of plan assets at the end of the EEAERBREH AR IATEER
reporting period is analysed as follows: pal (N

Fair value of plan assets

STEEEZAFRERE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FETT
Equity instruments (Quoted) #mTA (FRE) 312,865 318,878
Debt instruments (Quoted) BEBITE (FRE) 34,880 33,828
Other assets HEMEE 10,079 9,061
357,824 361,767
The actual return on scheme assets was FFEIEEZ BB 45,810,000 T

HK$5,810,000 (2017: HK$44,289,000). (ZZ—+4:44,289,000/87T) °
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31.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(continued)

(b)

Defined benefit scheme (continued)

Significant actuarial assumptions for the
determination of the defined obligation are
discount rate and expected salary increase. The
sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the
respective assumptions occurring at the end
of the reporting period, while holding all other
assumptions constant.

If the discount rate is 25 basis points higher/
(lower), the defined benefit obligations
would decrease by HK$14,907,000/(increase
by HK$14,907,000) (2017: decrease by
HK$18,222,000/(increase by HK$18,222,000)).

If the expected salary growth increases/
(decreases) by 0.25%, the defined benefit
obligations would increase by HK$7179,000/
(decrease by HK$7,179,000) (2017: increase by
HK$8,141,000/(decrease by HK$8,141,000)).

The sensitivity analysis presented above may
not be representative of the actual change in
the defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely
that the change in assumptions would occur
in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity
analysis, the present value of the definded
benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit method at the end of the reporting
period, which is the same as that applied in
calculating the defined benefit obligations
liability recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

There was no change in the methods and
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis from prior years.
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RIRBRIFTE ()

(b)

—E-N\FEH

EEERIEE ()

BERTAEEZEARBERRAUR
RRFEPHFER - UTEREST
BREABEHTETERRLRARE
MREDMEMBERESTEME

Fo

bl

MBI & EF /(T Bk) 25E & 8
T #8148 I & £ #5 7 414,907,000 7T
/ (39014,9070007T) (ZF—+
o F 418,222,000 T,/ (1840
18,222,0008 L) ) °

mEBHFEEERLEH (T
B) 0.25% F TR E M H T 151
7,179,000/ 7T/ (A 27,179,000/
L) (ZZT— £ F 108,141,000/
7T,/ CRi48,141,00057T) ) °

B E SRR A TR BB
4@&2@rx7 EBE L2
HEE SR — TR REEENE
E2EBRED

AN - REFIA EGURE ST - 5
?E?‘FIJffizfﬂﬁﬁ’\\i&iﬁﬂ%%ﬁ%tﬁﬁ
AAEUEREGE BEANGERS
EHMBRRRAER 2 EBBNEE
ZJIEMR

REBEFEZHRESTKMAZ
TERBRBERZS-
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31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(continued)
(c) Forfeited contributions

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group
has also joined a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for its employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is
to make the required contributions. Except for
voluntary contribution, no forfeited contribution
under the MPF Scheme is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

For the retirement benefits of the Group's
qualifying employees in the PRC, the Group has
participated in the retirement benefits scheme
operated by the local municipal government of
Shenzhen. The Group is required to contribute
a specified percentage of their payroll costs
to the scheme to fund the benefits. The
employees are entitled to retirement pension
calculated with reference to their basic salaries
on retirement and their length of services
in accordance with the relevant government
regulations. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the scheme is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the scheme.
Contributions to the scheme are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the
scheme. No forfeited contribution under PRC
retirement benefit scheme is available to reduce
the contribution payable in future years.
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31.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(continued)

(c)

Forfeited contributions (continued)

For the retirement benefits of the Group's
qualifying employees in the UK, the Group
has participated in the retirement benefits
scheme operated by the global HR benefits and
human resource consulting firm authorised and
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.
The employees are entitled to post retirement
cash commutation. Details of the scheme are set
out in note 3 and note 31(b) to the consolidated
financial statements. No forfeited contribution
under UK retirement benefit Scheme is available
to reduce the contribution payable in future
years.

At 30 June 2018 and 2017, there were no
significant forfeited contributions which arose
upon employees leaving the schemes before
they are fully vested in the contributions and
which are available to reduce the contributions
payable by the Group in the future.

32. DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused tax losses of approximately HK$727439,000
(2017: HK$708,577,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. These tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Deferred tax liabilities
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TET

As at 1 July 2016 RZE—R"FtLtH—H 9,365

Deferred tax charged to profit or loss EERIENR BB 208
As at 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017 RZZE—tFA=ZF+HBK

—E—+F+HA—H 9,573

Deferred tax credit to profit or loss BB IEFG ABR (77)

As at 30 June 2018 RZE—NFEASA=+H 9,496
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33. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

33. AR f#fE

(a) Movements in components of equity (a)

The reconciliation between the opening and

closing balances of each component of the
Group's consolidated equity is set out in the

N

R 2 B

REBHGARAREEHD 2FNR
FRESE YRV GRS BAER
BEHRA - ANRBBAZ @R E DR

B
okt
i

consolidated statement of changes in equity. FURFERBEEEFBEHAM 41 -
Details of the changes in the Company's
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out in
note 41.
(b) Share capital (b) BEA
Number of
shares Amount
BB £
‘000 HK$'000
TR FET
Authorised share capital with par &M EE0. 1B T ZETERA
value of HK$0.1 each:
Balance at 1 July 2016, R-ZE—R"FLA—H" 30,000,000 3,000,000
30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017 —E—+tFRNA=ZTAHK
—E—tFtA—B2Z&EH
Share reorganisation (note (i) WAEHB (M) (28,500,000) (2,850,000)
Balance at 30 June 2018 RZE-—NFXA=ZTHZ&E® 1,500,000 150,000
Number of Share Share Capital
shares capital premium reserve Total
RAEE BA RHEE RAGE &5
000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
& FA1 FAT T FiET
Issued and fully paid share capital ~ SRAE0. 1AL
with par value of HK$0.1 each: EREIRBRRA:
Balance at 1 July 2016, RIE-~EtR-R:
30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017 ZE-tERACTAR
ZE-tELA-B2ES 6,331,789 633,179 2,096,276 125,036 2,854,491
Issue of shares (note (j) BOROG (W) 1,266,356 126,636 6,331 - 132,967
Share issue expense R EAEY - - (2,659) - (2,659)
Capital reorganisation fnote (i) BRAER (A2 (7218,237) (721,824) 5 721,824 5
Issue of shares through EARERTRG (Hiti)
placing fnote (i) 75,980 7598 57745 - 65,343
Share issue expense BOESTE - - (1,307) - (1,307)
Balance at 30 June 2018 RIE-NERA=THZER 455,858 45,589 2,156,386 846,860 3,048,835
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) Share capital (continued)

Note:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Issue of shares

On 10 August 2017 the Company issued and
placed 1,266,356,000 ordinary shares to
independent third parties at a placing price of
HK$0.105 per placing share and raised gross
proceeds of approximately HK$132,967,000 to
be used as general working capital of the Group
and for development of the existing and future
projects of the Group.

Capital reorganisation

On 26 October 2017, the Company implemented
the capital reorganisation, pursuant to a special
resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 18 October 2017, details are set
out as below:

share consolidation of every twenty issued
and unissued share of the Company with
par value of HK$0.1 each was consolidated
into one consolidated share with par value
of HK$2 each;

1. (i) the issued share capital of the Company
was reduced through a cancellation of
the paid-up capital of the Company to
the extent of HK$1.9 on each of the
consolidated share of the Company such
that the par value of each consolidated
share of the Company was reduced from
HK$2 to HK$0.10 ("New Share”); and
(ii) any fractional consolidated share in
the issued share capital of the Company
arising from the share consolidation was
cancelled; and

1. the authorised share capital of the Company
was decreased to HK$150,000,000 divided
into 1,500,000,000 New Shares.

Issue of shares through placing

On 3 January 2018, the Company issued and
placed 75,980,000 ordinary shares of the Company
at a placing price of HK$0.860 per placing share
to independent third parties, and raised gross
proceeds of approximately HK$65,343,000 to be
used as general working capital of the Group and
for development of the existing and future projects
of the Group and reduction of short-term debts.

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018
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33. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The application of share premium
account is governed by section 40 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents
the amount by which the Company's
issued share capital was diminished on
cancellation of ordinary share repurchased.

General reserve

The general reserve represents the reserve
arising from the reduction of the nominal
amount of the shares of the Company (after
the consolidation of shares of 25 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each into 1 share in 2002)
of HK$2.5 each by cancelling the paid up
capital to the extent of HK$2.4 on each
share of the Company in 2002.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the amount
arising from (a) a bonus issue of shares
of a subsidiary of the Company by way
of capitalising the subsidiary’s retained
profits and deemed capital contribution
from a substantial shareholder and (b)
the reduction of the nominal amount of
the shares of the Company (after the
consolidation of shares of 20 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each into 1 share in
2017) of HK$2 each by cancelling the paid
up capital to the extent of HK$1.9 on each
share of the Company in 2017
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33. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Reserves (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the reserve
arising from the group reorganisation in
1992.

Property revaluation reserve

Property revaluation reserve represents the
reserve arising from valuation of properties
under property, plant and equipment upon
transfer to investment properties in current
year.

Translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policy set out in note 3.

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Each of the Company, Kantone, a 64.9% (2017:
64.9%) owned subsidiary of the Company, has a

share option scheme under which eligible persons,
including directors of the Company, Kantone or any of
their respective subsidiaries, may be granted options
to subscribe for shares in the Company and Kantone
respectively.

REMBERRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

33. BAKf#E #)
(c) fRE &)

34.

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

EHERE
AHRBEASER A=
FRETSBEERMEE 2R
e

WEEMLHE

MEEGRBREAFEARY
X BERRBETZMEER
REMERETELELENRK
e

EL#E

EXRFEERRERINERYH
BRERMELEZZMINEZER -
&R TR M T3 L & AT IR
KRR -

BT &l

KRB RARNGHEB64.9% (ZT—HF:
64.9% ) BREZNBAREBSREREBKIE
FE B AEBALT (BIEARR-FB
RESETAWNBARZES) I ERER
BUDRIREBARRREBZRG -

—E-N\FEH

BEMREEBFRAF

241



242

e B3R M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(a)

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Company

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a
share option scheme (the “Champion Option
Scheme”). The purpose of the Champion
Option Scheme is to attract and to retain quality
personnel and other persons and to provide them
with incentive to contribute to the business and
operation of the Group. Under the Champion
Option Scheme, the Directors may grant options
to any directors, employees or consultants of
the Company, its subsidiaries or affiliates or any
discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include the aforesaid persons or a company
beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons
as well as customers, suppliers or advisors
of the Group, to subscribe for shares of the
Company. An option granted by the Company is
exercisable at any time for a period determined
by its directors which should not be more than
ten years from the date of grant, where the
acceptance date should not be later than 21 days
after the date of offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to
adjustment as provided therein) of the option
granted under the Champion Option Scheme
is equal to the highest of (i) the nominal value
of the shares; (ii) the closing price per share
as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a business day; and (iii) the average closing
price per share as stated in the daily quotation
sheet of the Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which
the options may be granted under the Champion
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of Champion at the date
of approval of the Champion Option Scheme.
The total maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
share options must not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of Champion from time to
time. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any one grantee in
any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of Champion in issue on the
last date of such 12-month period, without
prior approval from Champion’s shareholders.
The Champion Option Scheme will remain in
force for a period of 10 years commencing from
30 November 2012. No share option has been
granted since the adoption of such scheme.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

Kantone

On 30 November 2012, Kantone adopted a
share option scheme (the “Kantone Option
Scheme”). The purpose of the Kantone Option
Scheme is to attract and to retain quality
personnel and other persons and to provide them
with incentive to contribute to the business
and operation of the Kantone Group. Under
the Kantone Option Scheme, the directors
of Kantone may grant options to any eligible
persons of the Kantone Group, including
directors, employees or consultants of Kantone,
its subsidiaries or affiliates or any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects include the
aforesaid persons or a company beneficially
owned by the aforesaid persons as well as
customers, suppliers or advisors of the Kantone
Group, to subscribe for shares in Kantone. An
option granted by Kantone is exercisable at any
time for a period determined by its directors
which should not be more than ten years from
the date of grant, where the acceptance date
should not be later than 21 days after the date of
offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to
adjustment as provided therein) of the option
granted under the Kantone Option Scheme is
equal to the highest of (i) the nominal value
of the shares; (ii) the closing price per share
as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a business day; and (iii) the average closing
price per share as stated in the daily quotation
sheet of the Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant.
The maximum number of shares in respect of
which the options may be granted under the
Kantone Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of Kantone at the date
of approval of the Kantone Option Scheme. The
total maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital
of Kantone from time to time. The number of
shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any one grantee in any 12-month
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of Kantone in issue on the last date of
such 12-month period, without prior approval
from Kantone's shareholders. The Kantone
Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years commencing from 30 November
2012. No share option has been granted since
the adoption of such scheme.
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35.

36.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group's overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank and
other borrowings, equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and retained profits/(accumulated losses).

The Directors review the capital structure on a bi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the Directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the Directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

35.

EXEmEE
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EAEIE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Capital expenditure in respect of EERBERITOCEBDE-
property, plant and equipment 55 Ko 5% 1 B R AT R A A%
and development costs for FAERAZEARNFAL
systems and networks
authorised but not contracted for - 1,323

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
future minimum lease payments payable under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises and motor vehicles which fall due as follows:

37.
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KEHEZH
REBEREBEA

R Rasl AREZARERMER
MEZAAEEKEHERMARKEEN
HERBZEMBERMT :

2018 2017
—E-N\§ ZT—+F
Land and Motor Land and Motor
buildings vehicles buildings vehicles
THRET RE TWRET HE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE7 FiE FHET FET
Operating leases which expire: RIS EHER 2 EEHE
Within one year —R 7,883 2,733 13,007 2,103
In the second to fifth year F_FEENF (BREEME)
inclusive 4,673 1,71 22,212 2,738
12,556 4,444 35,219 4,841

Leases are negotiated for terms of one to five years
(2017: one to five years) and rentals are fixed for terms
of one to five years (2017: one to five years).

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
contracted with lessees in respect of leasing of
premises and certain equipment which is included in
plant and machinery and communications networks,
which fall due as follows:

KERRZHEFON T —F=201F (=%
—tF:—FERF) WHEENE-FE=R
F(ZE2—tHF —FEAF)2FHEE-

REBESHEA

N EPTER  NEEREARDERET
Bt ABE #BERBEAKIREREPS
RIMAH HBESBERMT

2018 2017
“E-0\% 3t
Plant and Plant and
machinery and machinery and

Land and  communications Land and  communications

buildings networks buildings networks
BE #E BE B8
IHREF RBEHR THEET REEHE
HK$ 000 HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
AT FEn FET FET
Within one year —ER 1,334 14,097 309 11,786
In the second to fifth year inclusive F-ERENE (RREEME) 1,264 12,026 201 15,001
Qver five years AENE - - - -
2,598 26,123 510 26,787
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37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(continued)
The Group as lessor (continued)

As at 30 June 2018, the Group has service and
equipment rental contract with customers amounting
to HK$49,656,000 (30 June 2017: HK$47429,000). As
at 30 June 2018, the future income to be generated
from these contracts with an aggregate amount of
HK$34,963,000 (30 June 2017: HK$34,091,000) have
been pledged as securities for the defined benefit
retirement scheme of certain subsidiaries operated in
UK.

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i) As at 30 June 2017 a corporate guarantee was
provided by the Group to a bank in respect
of banking facilities granted to Kantone. The
corporate guarantee was terminated during the
year ended 30 June 2018.

(i)  The key management personnel of the Group
are the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals. The aggregate amount paid to them
was HK$12,054,000 (2017: HK$11,295,000),
details of which are set out in note 10.

(i) As at 30 June 2017, included in other payables
was an amount of HK$11,353,000 due to
Lawnside International Limited (“Lawnside”) (as
the lender), a previous substantial shareholder
of the Company and is beneficially wholly owned
by Professor Paul Kan Man Lok who resigned
as a director of the Company on 30 September
2016, Lawnside is wholly-owned by a person
who is a director of the Company in the last
twelve months and therefore is an associate of
a connected person as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Main Board Listing Rules. The financial
assistance received constituted continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter
14A of the Main Board Listing Rules. However,
this transaction is exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Main Board
Listing Rules as the transaction was on normal
commercial terms or better and no security
over the assets of the Company was granted in
respect of such financial assistance. The amount
due to Lawnside was fully settled during the year
ended 30 June 2018.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(iv)

On 5 December 2016, the Group (as the
borrower) and Mr. Cheng Yang (“Mr. Cheng") (as
the lender), a previous substantial shareholder
and director of the Company who subsequently
resigned as a director on 15 August 2017 had
entered into facility agreements, pursuant to
which Mr. Cheng agreed to lend the Group up
to HK$10,000,000 in aggregate principal amount
which was unsecured, non-interest bearing
and had no fixed term of repayment and was
repayable on demand (note 28). As at 30 June
2018, the amount due to Mr. Cheng included
in other payable amounting to HK$3,820,000
was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The transaction contemplated under
the facility agreements constituted continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter
14A of the Main Board Listing Rules. However,
this transaction is exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Main Board
Listing Rules as the transaction was on normal
commercial terms or better and no security
over the assets of the Company was granted in
respect of such financial assistance.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(v)  On 7 March 2017, the Company (as the
borrower), Mr. Cheng (as the guarantor), and
Southwest Securities (HK) Finance Limited (as
the lender) had entered into a facility agreement
which the lender agreed to lend the Company
up to HK$200,000,000 in aggregate principal
amount and the expiry date was 4 months from
the date of the first utilization (note 29 (ii)). This
guarantee was expired upon the settlement of
this borrowing on 5 July 2017 On 12 June 2017,
regarding the loan borrowed by the Company
amounting to HK$305,000,000 (note 29(iii)),
Mr. Cheng Yang who is the former director
and substantial shareholder of the Company
agreed to provide a personal guarantee. Mr.
Cheng Yang had resigned as director of the
Company on 15 August 2017 and disposed
shares of 1,766,860,957 of the Company on
17 August 2018. On 10 October 2017, Ms.
Wong Man Winny (“Ms. Wong"), a substantial
shareholder and director of the Company,
provide the personal guarantee for the loan.
On 5 July 2018, the lender discharged and
released Mr. Cheng Yang from his obligations
and liabilities under the guarantee. The provision
of guarantee by Mr. Cheng and Ms. Wong under
the facility agreement constituted continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter
14A of the Main Board Listing Rules. However,
this transaction is exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Main Board
Listing Rules as the transaction was on normal
commercial terms or better and no security
over the assets of the Company was granted in
respect of such financial assistance.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(vi)

(vii)

On 7 December 2017, the Group (as the
borrower) and Ms. Wong (as the lender), a
substantial shareholder and director of the
Company had entered into a facility agreement
pursuant to which Ms. Wong agreed to lend
to the Group up to HK$4,180,000 in aggregate
principle amount which was unsecured, non-
interest bearing and had no fixed term of
repayment and was repayable on demand
(note 28). The transaction contemplated under
the facility agreement constituted continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter
14A of the Main Board Listing Rules. However,
this transaction is exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Main Board
Listings Rules as the transaction was on normal
commercial terms or better and no security
over the assets of the Company was granted in
respect of such financial assistance.

On 19 July 2017, the Group (as the borrower) and
Mr. Law Shing Hung (“Mr. Law") (as the lender),
a director of a subsidiary, had entered into a
facility agreement pursuant to which Mr. Law
agreed to lend to the Group up to HK$1,441,000
in aggregate principle amount which was
non-interest bearing and had no
fixed term of repayment and was repayable on
demand. The transaction contemplated under

unsecured,

the facility agreement constituted continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter
14A of the Main Board Listing Rules. However,
this transaction is exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Main Board
Listings Rules as the transaction was on normal
commercial terms or better and no security
over the assets of the Company was granted in
respect of such financial assistance.

REMBERRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. BE

(vi)

(vii)

—E-N\FEH

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

ATREG (&

S

RZF—tF+ZAtA T&E (1
BEFRNEELLE (FAEERA K
RAZEERREREF)BFI LA
W Bt EXTRERAEEER
AeBEE 24,180,000/ 7T - BEIK
B TR R EBETERPREREX
B (M5E28) - M A HZEIE T HtE
MZRIBRBFERERS (EER
TR ETHRAFE4AE) - R @\R
ZER 5 IIE— MR HE R E EGRET
Vo BEZVBESREEREAR
AIEEFER ZBEXSERREST
FTIRETRAUFELAZEZRERTE -

RZE—+tF+tAT+NLH XTEHE
(fEAEEA)ELaw Shing Hungst
4 ([Lawk 4. | - EAERA - —RHMH
BARIMES)STUE WS Kt
LawE EREBERAALEE HAEBE
&= %1,441,00008 70 BEERIT - 5T
8 EETENRBRBAREREER
ZEERFRE T RET IR BRI
BEEXS (TERERLEMAANE
14AZE) - R AREIBR 5 ik —
MEESEERRET L BEEZMH
EPTERE AR EEFERKE
ZBERDEHRBETER EMRAE
14AE 2 WEMTE °

BEMREEBFRAF

249



250

GREUBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

39. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES

On 19 July 2017, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Wealth Track Asia Limited
(the “Vendor”), Mr. Yeung Chi Hang (the “Vendor's
Guarantor”) and Golden Field Property Limited
("Golden Field” or the “Target Company”) to acquire
51% equity interest of Golden Field from the Vendor
at a consideration of HK$150,000,000, which was
satisfied by a cash payment of HK$30,000,000 and
the issue of promissory note with principal amount
of HK$120,000,000 by the Company to the Vendor.
The fair value of the consideration was amounted to
HK$116,209,000 as at the date of acquisition.

Golden Field is an investment holding company
incorporated in Hong Kong on 12 March 1992 with
limited liability which was 51% owned by the Vendor
and 49% owned by three independent third parties
to the Group immediately prior to completion of the
abovementioned acquisition. Golden Field has 95%
equity interest in Dongguan Golden Field Yijing Hotel
Limited, a company incorporated in People's Republic
of China (the "PRC subsidiary”). The acquisition was
completed on 19 July 2017 and Golden Field and the
PRC subsidiary became indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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S8

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The PRC subsidiary is a sino-foreign joint venture
established in the PRC on 1 July 2000 and owns a
hotel property erected on leasehold land in the PRC
of which the two land use rights will legally expire in
2032 and 2043. A hotel property was built on these 2
pieces of leasehold land.

Before the acquisition, the abovementioned hotel
property was rented to an independent third party
tenant under a subcontracting agreement (cancellable
under any one or more of the following conditions,
namely i) mutual consent by Golden Field and the
tenant; ii) in the events of force majeure, such as
natural disasters, significant changes in political and
economic environment and severe fluctuation in the
value of RMB; or iii) other legal requirements) for a
period from 11 March 2003 to 10 March 2033. The
tenant could use the name of the PRC subsidiary as
trade name for their business operation. Pursuant
to the relevant agreements between Golden Field
and the tenant, the tenant has the right to pledge
the properties to secure its borrowings by entering
into supplementary agreement with the Group and
no liability should be incurred under the name of the
PRC subsidiary upon the expiry of the sub-contracting
arrangement. As at 30 June 2018, no such liability was
noted. Under the contractual arrangement, the PRC
subsidiary is only entitled to receive a fixed amount of
RMB3,900,000 per year.

As the lease period with the tenant is almost equal
to the contractual life of one of the abovementioned
land use rights and the hotel property is erected
on the 2 leasehold lands, the key assets acquired
represented a) finance lease receivable arising from
the abovementioned contractual arrangements with
the tenant and b) an investment property representing
interest in a leasehold land with the remained
contractual life from the end of expiry of the lease
term with the tenant to 2043.
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39. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION OF

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above acquisition was determined by the directors
of the Company to be acquisition of assets and
liabilities through acquisition of subsidiaries rather
than a business combination as the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed did not constitute a business

& (&)

as defined under HKFRS 3 (revised) “Business

Combination”.

39. ZBWEMBLATAWEBEERSE

ERRBERTAARREEEETREBR
BHEARMEEGAHEREERAE
RERMEBEERE REREL THK
BRI BMELEREIR ( LER]) [¥B4A
HIBTHREZER-

Allocation of
fair value of
consideration

REAFEEIE
HK$'000
FHET
Trade receivable JEUWE 5 RR 216
Cash and cash equivalents RekAEER 254
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE REE 752
Investment properties "EME 174,596
Finance lease receivable JE W Bh & FH & IR 54,025
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R FE A H th BR 3K (776)
Amount due to a director of Golden Field JEN—ZHFEMEERKIE (1,206)
Total identifiable net assets AHE R BEEFE 227,861
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR IR R = (111,652)
Net identifiable assets AHERNEEFE 116,209
Fair value of the consideration REQAELEE
At 19 July 2017 RZE—+F+A+HHE
Total cash consideration transferred BEZARSAE 30,000
Promissory note issued ERTERLER 86,209
116,209
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition KBEEEEZFERESRE
Total cash consideration transferred EEEZABESRE 30,000
Acquisition of cash and cash equivalents WEREE RIASERE (254)
29,746

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments and investment
properties measured as at 30 June 2018 and 2017
on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13,
Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date such as listed stocks, bonds, funds
or any assets that have a regular “mark to market”
mechanism for setting a fair market value.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Level 2 assets are financial assets that do not have
regular market pricing, but whose fair value can be
determined based on other data values or market
prices. For example, valuers adopt valuation model
for assessing the market value of the properties, such
as comparing with similar assets surrounding the
properties, hence, the fair values are quoted prices for
similar assets and not for identical assets.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

40.
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40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

Assets measured at fair value

40.

N,

NP EEE @)

BATEEAEZEE

Fair value Level 1 Level 3
AFEE E—EBR E=EB&
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FETT FET
As at 30 June 2018 R-ZZE—N\EF
ANA=t+H
Assets EE
Investment properties "EME 167,834 - 167,834
Financial assets at FVTPL ERAFEETA
BERzemEE
- listed equity securities —ETRAFE S 110,786 110,786 -
Fair value Level 1 Level 3
NEEE E—ER FEZBH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FEr FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (E7) (&75])
As at 30 June 2017 R-T—+F
NA=+H
Assets BE
Investment properties "EYE 54,094 = 54,094

The movements during the year in the balance of

ENREECBRATEETEZ £HB S

these Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: BHINMT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(E5))
Investment properties "EME
At 1 July nEA—H 54,094 53,187
Currency realignment P H & 7,930 -
Addition RE 3,607 =
Addition through acquisition BRWEBNBARRE
of subsidiaries (note 39) (#7:#39) 174,596 -
Fair value adjustment on investment RBEFEMKNEREDE 2
properties acquired in prior year RNEBEEFAE 27,366 907
Fair value adjustment on investment RAFEEMKRBIREME Y
properties acquired in current year NFEEHAE (178,259) =
Transfer from property, EAWME BEREE
plant and equipment 78,500 S
At 30 June RNA=+H 167,834 54,094

Currency realignment is recognised in other
comprehensive income in “exchange reserve”.

All the gains recognised in profit or loss for the year
arise from the properties held at the end of the

reporting period.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

Assets measured at fair value (continued)

There were no transfer between level 1, 2 and 3
during both years.

The fair value of all properties located in Hong Kong
and PRC (excluded the leasehold land where the
hotel property erected (see note 16)) were derived
using the market comparable approach based on price
per square feet or square metre observed in recent
market prices and adjusted for certain unobservable
inputs including the adjustment of the building age,
location, fair value market rent and floor level to reflect
different locations and conditions. The fair value of the
leasehold land where the hotel property erected was
derived using adjusted market comparable approach by
(a) making reference to comparable sales of bare-land
with lease term of 40 years; (b) adjusted for the term
factor using the valuation technique to estimate value
of bare-land with lease term of 10 years at 2033; and
(c) take into account the time value of money.

Investment properties held Valuation techniques &
by the Group key inputs
AEEFENRENE REXTREIEZAAYE

GEMBRRME
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40. D FEEFTE#)

BAVEENAEZEE (#)

RREFER F—ER F_EBERARE=
[& A 2 Pl I 488 5 o

ERURERRPEZYDE (TREBEEY
¥mByzHELH (BME16) ) 2AFE
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EMSHESRBEZARMIELARE UK
BN E) B RO B EMEMEZ 2 EE
Tz ATEEDNRBEABETSLEES
B (a) 2R A RA0FN A AT & LLBIHE
B (0 ERABERNSFHRRFEHRAEA

HEHR=—_T==

RS R EM R EEM S

Significant
unobservable inputs

EATTBRERARE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value
FTUBEERAYEHE
ALEEZEBE

FHHARI0FNZEHEE:

Investment properties located
in Hong Kong
REBNRENE

Direct comparison method

BERLEA

The key input is price per
square feet
FZAABBRABTHIRER

Price per square feet, using

market direct comparable
and taking into account

the location and other
individual factors such as
age of the property, which
is ranged from HK$3,090 to
HK$3,830 (2017: HK$2,280
to HK$3,400).

MATSITEZ LB EL 5

RS RMERRS
EAZAGLZEYRFR
B1& /1 F3,090% 7L £3,830
BIL(ZT—+%F:2,280%
JLE34008TT) °

—E-N\FEH

A slight increase in the
price per square feet will
increase significantly with
fair value
BYRREREMEAKLR
FEEAREEM

BEMREEBFRAF
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40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

Assets measured at fair value (continued)

Investment properties held
by the Group

AEEBANRENHE

Valuation techniques &
key inputs

HERTRERGARE

N,

40.

NP EEE @)

AL BESEZEE (&)

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTUEEBAYE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value
FTUBEEB A AHER
AYEEZBE

Investment properties located
in the PRC (excluded the
leasehold land where hotel
property erected)

URFENRENE (TR
BENEMBEL HELTH)

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Direct comparison method

BELBE

The key input is price per
square metre

IRGABBRBEIKER

Price per square metre, using

market direct comparable
and taking into account
the location and other
individual factors such as
age of the property, which
is ranged from HK$20,150
(equivalent to RMB17,000)
to HK$37930 (equivalent
to RMB32,000) (2017:
HK$14,690 (equivalent to
RMB12,790) to HK$28,720
equivalent to RMB25,000)).
MAMGIERLEYET
R ARMERRS M
ERRZ®EL2ETHK
BN 20,1508 T (1S
M AR®17,0007t) £37930
B (SR ARK32,000
) (ZT—+%F:14,690%
T (AERAR12,7907T)
£28,7208 T (BERAR
#25,0007T) ) °
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A slight increase in the price
per square metre will
increase significantly with
fair value
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40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

Assets measured at fair value (continued)

Investment properties held Valuation techniques &

by the Group key inputs
AEERENRENE RERTRIEZGAYE
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N,

40.

NP EEE @)

AT BESEZEE (&)

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTUEEBAYE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value
FTUBEEBAHER
AYEEZBE

Investment property included the Adjusted market comparable
leasehold land where the hotel ~ method
property erected and located in B H EA

the PRC
RENEDRBENEMETIARN The key input in price per
RABREE L square metre

IRGABBRBEIKER

Price per square metre,
using adjusted market
comparable approach by
a) making reference to
comparable sales of bare-
land with lease term of
40 years; b) adjusted for
the term factor using the
valuation technique to
estimate value of bare-
land with lease term of 10
years as at 2033; and c)
take into account the time
value of money at discount
rate of 6% from 2033 to
30 June 2018, which is
approximately HK$350
(equivalent to RMB300)

FRERETBLREER
A2 REHAIOFHERE

AELREER: DRARE
Rt F R ZEL AR
AR -_E==FRH A0
FHTWEE Ro)EitRE
BENREEBER-S==F
ET-N\ERAZTEE
HREeNHESL 2 EYR
KEBA3B0E T (BERA
R#3007)

—E-N\FEH

A slight increase in the price
square metre will increase
significantly with fair value
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION R BB AR R R
OFTHE COMPANY
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&ET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e 1 7
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries B UL B B A R FR IR - 2,424,612
Interests in subsidiaries R B AR ZEDR 160,266 1,037.863
160,267 3,462,482
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B E 5 & H B8R 5K 1,452 959
Financial assets at fair EAFEBEFAER
value through profit or loss TEEE 51,279 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU M B A Rl FRIA 1,182 104,727
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 2,556 9,614
... . 56469 = 115300
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables FEET B A 2 FE T H fh AR K 7,524 16,324
Amount due to shareholders JE A5 AR B 3R IE 20 =
Amounts due to subsidiaries NGRS 5,148 9,753
Amount due to a director JEN—ZREERA - 6,975
Promissory note payable JE At SR AR 1,279 -
Other borrowing HiEE 51,493 200,000
e ________55A464 233,052
Net current liabilites ~~ #&af#E (8,995)  (117752)
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Promissory note payable JEH A H R, 55,714 -
Other borrowing EmEE 230,000 =
285,714 -
Net (liabilities)/assets (8E) BEZRE (134,442) 3,344,730
Capital and reserves MR AR e
Share capital [LEN 45,589 633,179
Reserves (note) wiE (K ) (180,031) 2,711,551
Total equity B (134,442) 3,344,730

The Company's statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 27 September 2018 and are signed on its
behalf by:

WONG MAN WINNY
=
Chairperson

TE
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KRB ZHBRRKERZZ—-NFNA
TTtAMESSHAERKRENE AHT
JIEEREREE:

LIU KA LIM
BER
Director
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OFTHE COMPANY (continued)

Note: Movements of the Company's reserves during the

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

41 ARRB AR R ()

B ARBARAFERBEFEZHEE

current and the prior years are as follows: BaR -
Retained
Capital profits/
Share  redemption General Capital  (accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
RBREA/
RAGE EXBRREE -REE Exf%  (RHER) CH
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
TAT TAT FET TAT TAT AT
At 1 July 2016 RZE-7~FtA-H 2,096,276 50 1,366,003 107947 357581 3,927,857
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEERZALHAR
expense for the year - = = = (1,216,306) (1,216,306)
At 30 June 2017 and RZE—+ERAZTRR
1 July 2017 “5-+tftA-H 2,096,276 50 1,366,003 107947 (858,725) 2,711,651
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEERZALHAR
expense for the year - - - - (3,673,516) (3,673,516)
Issuance of new ordinary shares less ~ E{THERRHI MK
transaction costs (note 33(b)fi) (B33)) 3,672 - - - S 3,672
Issuance of new shares RERBKETHRH
upon placing of shares less HRBRA (H#3310)0))
transaction costs (note 33(b)fiir)) 56,438 - - - - 56,438
Capital recognisation (note 33(bJfi))  BAER (H3306)i)) - - - 721,824 = 721,824
60,110 - - 721,824 (3,673516)  (2,891,582)
At 30 June 2018 RZE-NERR=TH 2,156,386 50 1,366,003 829,771 (4,532,241) (180,031)

—E-N\FEH BEMREEBFRAF
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30
June 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

FTEMBQF

7

RoE—N\ER-E—+tEANA=+H &

RABEEMBRARZFHBOT :

Place of Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERAL/ BRATRAEE/ RAREEE BT
WEAR AR fEy aHER RAEEL A TEEH
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-0\% ZE—tF —E-N\F “E-t%
100BESTSHOPS.COM Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of e-shopping and
£ EBR2E T ERR2AET internet-based activities
REERETENR
ERENRS
Aspire Management Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Ordinary 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
REARRES US$2,636,320 US$2,636,320 REER
EER LER
2,636,320%%  2,636320% T
Bingo Profits Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
REBRARES EBR1ER ERRIET REER
Champion (Cook Islands) Cook Islands Ordinary HK$1 Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited* EREE EERIER EERIEL REZR
Champion Luck International Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited B EBR2ET Ealvicy NERE
REERBRRA
Champion Million Industries Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited i LER2ET EER2EL NERE
HEEZBRAA
Champion Pacific Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited £ EER2ET Lak2ET NERE
BHREBRAT
Champion Technology Limited"  Hong Kong - Ordinary - 100%  Sales of general systems
BEMRERAF" BE HK$1,000 products and provision
ERER1,0005T of services and software
licensing
Deferred HE-RZFERR
HK$1,000,000 REBRBRIM TR
1,000,000/ 7
Champnet Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Securities trading
BEREERAT Bk EER2ET LRER2ET BHRH

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. TEMBRR (&)
Place of Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
HREL/ BRTRAEE/ RAREEB BT
WEARER Ten EMER RAEELA TEEH
2018 2017 2018 2017
I = R L A =
Chief Champion Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Property investment
T2ERRA 5 HK$1,000 HK$1,000 NERE
EER1,0008T ERR1,0008T
Deferred Deferred
HK$10,000 HK$10,000
EER EER
10,000/ T 10,000% T
Chinese Science & Technology Hong Kong - Ordinary HK$2 - 100%  Internet business
Limited" ik LER2EL EBBER
PXRBEARAR"
Chosen Vantage Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Provision of treasury services
EETHS EERIET LRRIET REMHRS
Cyber Solutions Inc. Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Internet business and strategic
BETHS EBR1ER TERET investment

EBREHRRRIERE

d-Key Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Development of telematics
Bk EBRIER ERRIAT business
ERESRE

d-Key Inc. Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Development of telematics
EEGHS EBR1ZR ERRIZT business
BREERE

Dongguan Golden Field Yijing PRC Registered - 48.5% - Leasing of property
Hotel Limited (note 1) & capital HENE
RENEHREBEERAR RMB21,500,000
(Hii#1) ZRERARY
21,500,0007T
ESP International Group Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Advertising and recruitment
ESPEREEEBBRAR e EER2BT ERERET agency
BERBBREAT
Financial Vantage Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 64.9% 64.9%  Provision of treasury services
BETHE EERIETR LRRIET REE BRY
Happy Commercial Company Macau Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of documentation
Limited R MOP25,000 MOP25,000 services and arrangement
EXBERAR EER Lk and business consultant
HPI%25,0000  RFI%25,0007 REXHBERBELZHER
EELL

—E-N\FEH BEMREEBFRAF 261
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. TEMBRR (&)
Place of Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
HREL/ BRTRAEE/ RAREEB BT
WEARER Ten EMER RAEELA TEEH
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\§ ZE+F —E-N\§ —T-t%
Happy Union Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited ) BER2ET Lak2ET NERE
EBRERARAT
Harilela Kantone Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 55.0% 55.0%  Investment in communications
Telecommunications Limited &8 HK$10,000 HK$10,000 networks
EER10,000  EER10,000 REBERER
BT B
High Win Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding and
RE#RARES EBR1ER TERIET strategic investment

RERRRARERE

Honest City Enterprises Limited* ~ British Virgin Islands Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
RALEERAA ARBRARHEE US$50,000 US$50,000 REER
EER EER
50,000 T 50,000% T
Hong Kong IT Alliance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Information technology
AREMMRHEARAT £ ERR2ET Lak2ET development
BEREAMMR
Golden Field Hong Kong Ordinary - 51% - Investment holding
Fikac] B HK$10,000,000 REER
E 110,000,000
BT
i-key (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Development of telematics
B EBR1ER LERIET business

ERERAR

i-key Inc. Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Development of telematics
BEGHES BBRIER ERRIET business

EREERY

Kannet Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Internet operations
ERREARAT i EBR2ET LRk LS
Kantone* Cayman Islands/ Ordinary Ordinary 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
RN Hong Kong HK$19,730,750.6  HK$986,537533 REER

FReNs /3% EER EAR

19,730,750.6 T 986,5375331% T
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

REMBERRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NER

42. i%ﬁﬁ%’&ﬁ (&

A =+ B8 30 JUNE 2018

)
/

Place of Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
HREL/ BRTRAEE/ FAREECRT
WEAR AR GEwy aREE RAEELA TEEH
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\% ZT—tF —E-N\§ —T-t%
Kantone Paging Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Trading of pagers and provision
ERPNETERAR 55 HK$1,000 HK$1,000 of messaging services
&ER1,000 LER1,000 BB B RRABERS
B BT
Deferred Deferred
HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000
BER EER
2,000,00087% 2,000,000 7T
Kantone (UK) Limited United Kingdom Ordinary Ordinary 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
R £5,500,000 £5,500,000 RERR
LER Lak
5,500,000 & 5,500,000%
Keen Pacific Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 64.9% 64.9%  Provision of treasury services
EETHS EERIER LRRIET REFHERS
Kontone Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 64.9% 64.9%  Provision of treasury services
BRERERAA ) EBR2B T ERR2ET REE BRS
Kontone International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
RBERARAT B0 EER2E T LRER2ET RERR
KTT (Cook Islands) Limited* Cook Islands Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERES HK$10,000 HK$10,000 REER
1B 210,000 Ei#MK10,000
BT B
Lucky (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of consulting
Offshore) Limited 1! MOP100,000 MOP100,000 services, research and
#H CRPBREERS)ERAA EER EER development, and trading of
BFI%100,000  2F9%100,0007T cultural products
REBRERE FREREAR
BENIER
Lucky Success Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited i EBR2ET el vy NERE
BRERBERAA
Lucky Tone Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
HBREARATF B EBR2ET LERET NERE
T -NFFR BEMKEEFERQA
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. TEMNBE AT (&)
Place of Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERAL/ BRTRAEE/ RAREEB BT
WEARER Ten EMER RAEELA TEEH
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\§ ZE+F —E-N\§ —E-+%
M.C. Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Ordinary Ordinary 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
HEHS £5,500,002 £5,500,002 REER
EER LER

5,500,002 % 55000024

Multiton Electronica Limitada Brazil Ordinary Ordinary 64.9% 64.9%  Distribution of communication
BA R$300,000 R$300,000 systems and equipment
EER LER PEBEZRRE

300,000EEM  300,0005 %

Marcotte Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BETHS EBR1ET BT RERR
Multitone Electronics PLC United Kingdom Ordinary Ordinary 64.9% 64.9% Investment holding, design
R £3,830,107 £3,830,107 and manufacture of
BER TER communication systems and
3,830,107  3,830,1078% equipment
REBR R REERGRED
R
Multitone Electronics Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia Ordinary Ordinary 64.9% 64.9%  Manufacture of communication
BRAD MR285,000 MR285,000 systems and equipment
EER ERER EEREZSRER
285,000 285,000

BRELT SRAEET

Multiton Elektronik GmbH Germany Ordinary Ordinary 64.9% 64.9%  Distribution of communication
&E €1,022,584 €1,022,584 systems and equipment
EER EAR PEBERZRREE

1,022,5848 7T 1,022,58480 T

New Telecomm Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Trading in telecommunications
HZEABRAA ) HK$6,000,000 HK$6,000,000 equipment and provision of
BER TER related services
6,000,000 6,000,000 T BEETERBREXEBRS

Pearl Delta Inc. Samoa/Macau Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 64.9% 64.9%  Provision of treasury services
BEGHS /&M BERIZT LRRIET REE BRS

QQKK.COM Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of e-commerce,
B EER2BT ERERET m-commerce and internet

based activities
RUEEREFHE NYHER
ERBNRE

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. TEMBRR (&)
Place of Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
HREL/ BRTRAEE/ FAREECRT
WEARER GEwy aREE RAEELA TEEH
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\§ ZT—+tf —E-N\§ —E-+%
Shenzhen Hengyu Science and ~ PRC Registered Registered 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
Technology Company Limited ~ # & capital capital RERR
(Note 2) RMB24,000,000  RMB24,000,000
BERE (R ERAA dMEAARE HRERARE
(Hit2) 24,000,000 24,000,000
Silverstrand Investments Limited ~ Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
BETHE BERIZT LRRIET RERR
Success (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary Ordinary 64.9% 64.9%  Provision of consulting
Offshore) Limited B MOP100,000 MOP100,000 services, research and
Ky CRFRREERY) LER Lak development and trading of
BRAT RFI%100,000T  2F9%100,0007T cultural products
REBRERE FERREUAR
EEN[ER
Very Happy International Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited Ak EER2ER LERVEL NERE
REBRARAT
Wollaston Limited Samoa/Macau Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
EEGES /AN EERIER LRRIET REER
Y28.COM Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of e-commerce,
BARARAF ) LER2ET LERET m-commerce and internet
based activities
RUEREFHE:
BB REHENRE
Zonal Care Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary US$2 Ordinary US$2 64.9% 64.9%  Provision of treasury services
Islands/Macau LER2ET LERET REE RS
AEBBERES/
R
Champion Telecommunication PRC Registered Registered 100% 100%  Sales of general systems
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd (Note 3 # capital capital products and provision
Bim@amaE (RIDERAR HK$2,450,000  HK$2,450,000 of services and software
(Hit3) aRER FHEX licensing
2,450,000 2,450,000 T HE-REZREmRRERE R
RUETE
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. TEMBRR (&)

Place of Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of

incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities

HREL/ BRTRAEE/ RAREEB BT
WEAR AR Ten aREE RAEELA TEEH

2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\§ ZT—tF —E-N\§ —T-t%
DigitalHongKong.com Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Telecommunication service and
YERBERATA 55 EZER2ET LEkoET stretegic investment
EARBRRERE

Eamest Century Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Provision of treasury services

EETHS EERIER LTRRIET RAEE TR
Eight Converge Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 64.9% 64.9%  Provision of treasury services
NEERAA EETHS EERIETR LRRIET REE BRY
Golden Opportunity Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 64.9% 64.9%  Provision for treasury services
SRERAT EETHS EERIER LTRRIET RAEE TR
Manning International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Management service
XHERBRAF ) HK$10,000 HK$10,000 EBRE

EER EER
10,000% 7t 10,000% 7T
Multitone (Asia) Smart Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Ordinary HK$1 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
Communication Technology 55 ZER1ER TRRET RERR

Company Limited
Brd (D) B2RARH

BRAF
United Software Alliance Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Information technology, inter
RUBBERAF 55 EZER2ET LEkoET net software development
and E-com
RN ERANARER
ETHEK
Y28 Innovations* Cayman Islands ~ Ordinary HK$0.1 ~ Ordinary HK$0.1 100% 100%  Investment holding
HEHS EER0ER ERRONBT REER
Notes: Htat -
1. Partially foreign owned enterprise for a term from 1 1. SINEEERE FHH-_TTTFLA—H
July 2000 to 19 June 2020. E-T-TFRA+E-
2. Wholly foreign owned enterprise for a term of 20 years 2. INEBERE FHHE_TTZ=F+A++t
commencing from 17 October 2003. HEst =+
3. Wholly foreign owned enterprise for a term of 30 years 3. INEBECE FHA-—NAWALEFARA
commencing from 27 June 1995. —ttERBFH=TF-
e Directly held by the Company * BAABIEERE
" The subsidiaries have been disposed of during the year. " ZEMBRARERFALE -
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The deferred shares, which are held by the Group, of
each of the above-mentioned subsidiaries entitled the
holders thereof to:

(a) a fixed non-cumulative dividend at the rate of 5%
per annum for any financial year of the company
in question in respect of which the net profits of
such company exceed HK$100,000,000,000; and

(b)  on a winding-up, a return of the capital paid
up on such shares out of the surplus assets
of the company in question after a total sum
of HK$100,000,000,000 has been distributed
in such winding up in respect of each of the
ordinary shares of such company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results of the year or constituted a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Save as disclosed, none of the subsidiaries had any
debt securities subsisting at 30 June 2018 and 2017 or
at any time during the year.

GEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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42. FEHE QT (£)

BMAKERA 2 S B R R ZETERS
BT EEE ARR:

(a) iRz AR E A —E B FE 4
F#8%1100,000,000,000/# 7T + A%
REVWEE SR 2 ERIFRTEMRE
&

b) RARBERE HFRZBEHRSP
R AREBREBKRDIKARE
100,000,000,000/& 7T 14 - B % 2 Al
ZRBEBETREZERND ZHRK
7o

ERANNARBMB AR NERERRERF
ERGEAERZESIBRAEEEEFEE
AHNEZMBAR -EERR WK EMwH
BRABZFE ML A< ERBRT
o

BLEXWEEN SHBARAR_Z—/\F
MZE—tLFRA=TEXFREAREY
BAEMEBRES-

—E-N\FEH BEMREEBFRAF
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. TEMBRR (&)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

The table below provides details of a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group that has material non-

controlling interests:

Name of subsidiary

Proportion of

HEEAFERBREER 2 EM
BAT B
TERREEBEBEAERB I ER 2 AEE
FEEWBRBIZFIE:

Place of ownership interests and
incorporation voting rights held by Loss allocated to Accumulated
and principal non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests

place of business

as at 30 June

for the year ended 30 June as at 30 June

RXA=Z+A HEAAZTAL%E
T AR L 3t B IR FERRRES BT EFERFHFERRR RAR=+HERH
HEARER TEEENE BEEREERREELA BEZER FERBRRER
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-N\f ZZ-t+%5 ZB-NFf Z—T—+F ZEB-\F ZT—+%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Kantone and its subsidiaries Cayman Islands/Hong Kong 35.1% 35.1% (576,345) (615,857) 24,863 588,025
ERREMBAR Res /&6
Golden Field and Hong Kong 51% - (87,470) - 28,095 -
its subsidiaries
HEFRAMB AR B
(663,815) (615,857) 52,958 588,025

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial

information below represents amounts before

elimination of intra-group transactions.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. FEMBLT &)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries BEERFEERRRER ZFEZEM
that have material non-controlling interests B AR ZF#E (&)

(continued)

Kantone and its subsidiaries EBEREMELA
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$000
FAET FET
Non-current assets IERBEE 29,931 31,366
Current assets mEN & B 128,598 1,770,350
Current liabilities mENE & (59,841) (63,792)
Non-current liabilities ERBBE (27,774) (60,727)
Equity =
— Equity attributable to owners of —ARREHEE AERER
the Company 46,051 1,089,172
- Non-controlling interests —FEER AR RS 24,863 588,025
70,914 1,677197
Revenue Wz 136,743 140,854
Loss for the year KEEEHE
— Attributable to owners of YNGR DN )
the Company (1,067,543) (1,140,723)
— Attributable to the non-controlling — IEVE R AR SR A m FE AL
interests (576,345) (615,857)
(1,643,888) (1,756,580)
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. FEHEB QAT (&)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries BEERFEERRRER ZFEZEM
that have material non-controlling interests BT ZF#E (&)
(continued)
Kantone and its subsidiaries (continued) EBREMBAT (£)
2018 2017
—E-N\&E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHET
Other comprehensive income/ AEFHEME2EEE (ZH)
(expense) for the year
— Attributable to owners of — AR RNAHEE AFEAS
the Company 24,419 (13)
— Attributable to non-controlling — JEVE AR AR SR A a PR AL
interests 13,186 (7)
37,605 (20)
Total comprehensive expense AFEEEEZ BT
for the year (1,606,283) (1,756,600)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from e ORL) /RAZ
operating activities ReFE (1,167) 9,623
Net cash outflow from BEESRE RS FHE
investing activities (6,054) (7.700)
Net cash outflow from financing REERL 2 REFRE
activities (1,037) (705)

Net (decrease)/increase in deposits, HFR - RITEHRLEE Y
bank balances and cash () /o FEE (8,258) 1,218
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. FEMBLT (@)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries BEERFEERRRER ZFEZEM
that have material non-controlling interests BARzs#E (&)

(continued)

Golden Field and its subsidiary FeERENBELR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$000
FAET FET
Non-current assets IERBEE 55,264 =
Current assets MEBEE 2,134 =
Current liabilities B aE (2,195) -
Non-current liabilities FnBERE - -
Equity =
- Equity attributable to owners of —ARREE ARG ER
the Company 27,108 -
— Non controlling interests —FEERR AR RS 28,095 =
55,203 -
Loss for the year REEZEE
— Attributable to owners of YNGR DN )
the Company (91,040) -
— Attributable to the non-controlling — JEVE R AR SR A m PR AL
interests (87,470) -
(178,510) -
Other comprehensive income for NEEFEHMEE W
the year
— Attributable to owners of VYNGR DN )
the Company 4,073 -
— Attributable to the non-controlling —FEERR AR R A R (L
interests 3,913 -
7,986 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZZ—- %A=+ B 30 JUNE 2018

42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42,

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

(continued)

Golden Field and its subsidiary (continued)

FEWB LT (&)

BRE/GFHERBRRED 2F2EMH

BRRZHE (&)

HEBRAKNEAR (&)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$000
FAET FET
Total comprehensive expense for AEEEEZTRE
the year (170,524) -
Net cash inflow from KEEBRAZRE TR
operating activities 1,824 =
Net cash inflow from KEEERAZESFE
investing activities - -
Net cash inflow from BMETERAZREFE
financing activities - -
Net increase in deposits, FRCRITHB RIS 2B INFE
bank balances and cash 1,824 -
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GEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43.

44,

EVENTS AFTERTHE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 30 May 2018, the board of directors of the
Company announced that the Company proposed
to raise approximately HK$91.2 million before
expenses by issuing 227,943,616 rights shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.40 per rights share by way
of rights issue, on the basis of one rights share for
every two existing shares held on the record date.
The rights issue was completed on 18 July 2018 and
net proceeds of approximately HK$86,700,000 were
raised by the Company. The number of issued ordinary
shares of the Company was increased to 683,830,848
shares and the share capital and share premium of
the Company was increased from approximately
HK$45,589,000 to HK$68,383,000 and from
approximately HK$2,156,386,000 to HK$2,220,292,000
respectively.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to
conform to current year's presentation and to provide
comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed in
2017.

43.

44,

—ZT—-\%EXHA=+H 30JUNE 2018

REHREE

R-TE-N\ERA=TH AQAE=E
B ARBIEZRACHBHEHRER
BRIRAERMNDEE —RERRND 2EE &
BRI D0.408 T 2 REE EIE AR
T3 3 17227943,6 16 B AX 17 - LN E &
#191,200,000% 7T (0FR B S AT © AR R
—E-NFELtA+NBEK BARAE
% FT 18 B8 % B8 986,700,000 L AN A
A B T E @RS H 1IN £683,830,848
B - B A A BB i 4945,5689,000/%8 7T
# A1 %=68,383,0008 0 D EER YD
2,156,386,0007% JT# f1E2,220,292,0007
it

g2

ETHRBFCTHE UNAAFEZE
IR YR —FE - FAREZEARH
e -

—E-N\FEH BEMREEBFRAF
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MBEE
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS E 3

Year ended 30 June
BERNAZ=+HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-N\E T+t ZE-RF ZT-HF ZT-OF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated)  (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%) (&%) (&3))

Revenue i 142,754 194,544 4,979,715 5,610,013 6,169,471

(Loss)/profit from ordinary BRI AT B EEHK
activities before taxation  (&i8) % F

(Loss)/profit from operating ARt EMELBEE 2 K%
activities excluding other %% (B8) %7
operating items (4,476,510) (4,754,184) 1,507,108 271,472 510,661

Other operating items Hig =188 (49,199) (1,548,411)  (249,057) (476,470)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRHi Al (E8) &7 (4,476,510) (4,803,383) (41,303) 22,415 34,191
Income tax credit/(expense) FTiSHiiK® /(X H) 790 (613) 759 (2,377) (2,825)
(Loss)/profit for the year  &FE (F8E) &7 (4,475,720) (4,803,996) (40,544) 20,038 31,366
Attributable to: FE1h

Owners of the Company VN/NETEZ=IIN (3,811,905) (4,188,139 (30,434) 14,117 28,294
Non-controlling interests FERR R A= (663,815)  (615,857) (10,110) 5,921 3,072
(4,475,720) (4,803,996) (40,544) 20,038 31,366
Dividends BB - - = = 12,564

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

At 30 June
RAB=1+H

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-Nf ZT—+tF ZT—RF ZT—HF —ZT—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated)  (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(27)) (&%) (&%) (&3))
Total assets BERME 552,770 4,516,973 9,304,180 9,466,273 9,402,237
Total liabilities BEEE 451,578 363,883 347074 457654 425,962
Shareholders’ funds BEES 101,192 4,153,090  8,957106 9,008,619 8,976,275

Equity attributable to owners 772 & A AE(G 1 2%
of the Company 48,234 3,565,065 7,753,217 7777687 7,511,336

Non-controlling interests JEPERR AR R i 52,958 588,025 1,203,889 1,230,932 1,464,939

101,192 4,153,090 8,957,106 9,008,619 8,976,275

274 CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2018



TERENx*—BEX
SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Attributable Interest

Location Existing use  Tenure of the Group
B ARAR A rEBEGES
1. 6 East Huanshi Road, Hotel Medium term lease 51%

TangXia Town, Dongguan City, B I R ERFE A

Guangdong Province, the PRC
PEARAMBEERE R

EERIRT R

2. Unit 8A on 8th Floor, Office Medium term lease 100%
Block 4, WAE F AR 49
Tianji Building,

Tian'an Chegongmiao Industrial Zone,
Futian District,
Shenzhen City,
Guangdong Province,
The PRC

Bl

B®R4A

T

BHRE
AERERABIER
REXE

47

SIE8AE

3. Factory B on 24/F Vacant Long term lease 100%
(including balcony and store room), =g REAEAD
Factory B on 25/F
(including balcony and store room)
and Factory C on 25/F (including balcony),
Kingsford Industrial Building,

Phase I,

Nos. 26 — 32 Kwai Hei Street,
Kwai Chung,

New Territories

Hong Kong

S

R

2B

REHICNHEEHTIEREE —H
2 THBB (REGERFEEE) 25 T
B(BIEEE MFEHZ) R25ZETHC (B1E%

8)
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TEREYX-BEX
SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Attributable Interest

Location Existing use  Tenure of the Group
B ARAR FHE rEEELESR
4. Factory A on 25/F (including balcony), Vacant Long term lease 100%
Kingsford Industrial Building, =B RHEEA
Phase |,
Nos. 26 — 32 Kwai Hei Street,
Kwai Chung,
New Territories
Hong Kong
EE
R
2R
EEW26-32R e T ERNESE —H
25 TIRA (BIEBA)
5. 3/F No.1 Ning Foo Street, Hong Kong Office Long term lease 100%
BEEEEH 3B /NS RHIAL
6. b5/F No.1 Ning Foo Street, Hong Kong Office Long term lease 100%
EREEH o WA= RHEIME A
7. 7/F, No.1 Ning Foo Street, Hong Kong Office Long term lease 100%
EEEEH H7E /NS RHIAL
8. 9/F 10/F and Roof, Office Long term lease 100%
No.1 Ning Foo Street, Hong Kong WAE REIHEAYD

EREEET—HIE 10BRKRA
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